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DePue: Today is Friday, August 12, 2011. My name is Mark DePue, the director of
oral history with the Abraham Lincoln Presidential Libraapdl * m i n
Quincy, lllinois, today with NorbemBentele. | hope | got your pronunciation

right.

Bentele: Absolutely correct.

DePue: It always throv me, becausgour name is spelleB-e-n-t-e-I-e. | want to say,
“BellEEL,” and that’s not correct, is i/

Bentele: No. That’'s an oludd ot ds Geromaounaene . i A
rel ati vexlsEE"BeAmnd it probably should b
“Beahtt AH, "... but

DePue: Do you have to train people to be able to pronounce it correctly

Bentele: (laughs) No.

DePue: —when you first meethem?

Bentele: You’'d be surprised how peopdTELiLnt erpre

DePue: “BeflmrELL. "
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(laughs)

Okay, tell us Norbert, when and where you were Born

Born in Macon, Missout#-not Macon, but Macon County, Missou l et ’ s
it thataway. And in 1932.

And the specific date?

November the 9th.

Okay. Were you born in the city but grew up on the farm?

No, | was born on the farm and grew up on the farm.

What’' s thehem2arest town t

The nearest towandour mailing address was Excello, Missouri.

Excel?

Excello. Probably the nearest village that had a store wasd@axwhich

was probably c¢close to about two miles
wentto schoot—country school.

And | confess, | was looking at the map of Macon Countguld not find

that. How do you spell C@own?

I t ’-osx, T&-w-n. Named after one of the old original settlers. The Cox

family was their name. And it vBaactually, a pretty thriving little burg.
There’'s still an old church standing
have a wagomanufacturing shop and several grocery stores. And when | was

a kid, I could remember, there was a general store thatsald gasoline.

They had the old pumpp gas out in front. And you went iand hadall the
countersThat was the local place. Of course, if you had to do some business

or something, you had to go Excellowhich was also the telephone

exchange. And was on the Wabash Railroad over by Highway 63. And they
had more businesses in Excell o. 't st

hundred people lived there. And, of course, Macon was twelve miles up north
from us if you went out to the Highway 63 andnivap We lived right down
in the soutkeast corner of Macon CourtyMiddlefork Township.

Middlefork?
Um-hm.
It looked like it was very much rurat

Oh yeah, it still is.

t
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There just wasn’'t much popul ation ther

No. Uhuh. In fact, the last dirt road was graveled here less than ten years ago.
(laughs) It was back in the woods.

|l " m familiar with that good, —+ich prai
especially you go a little bit east and farthertnan Illinois—had. What kind
of land did you have over there?

It was probably marginal. It would grow and, you know, the bottom land is

what the farmers all tried to clear off, and it was their best land, in the creek
bottoms. Anditwasmarginal 't wasn’t that bad, but
a lot of timber. In fact, we operated a sawmill for quite some time. And so a

lot of it was timberedWe ' ralseeverything. You had everything on the farm
Subsistencé&arming entailed only raising coro feed the cows and horses.

But you had to have ten, twelve cows. Milk themsell the cream and use the

milk. And then you had to raise some pigs so that you have s@&agkyou

know. And we used horses. Never did have a tractor. Well, we did have a
trador—I * | | t a k—when Wweaperatedaadhkash machine in the

sawmill. Had an old McCormicBeering tractor, but not a rearop tractor.
Everybodypretty muchworked with horses. And | remember the one

neighbor .Backin the early 4 (hé led a littleAllis-Chalmerdractor. The

first one in thevhole neighborhood that actually had a tractor that would do

work in the fields. So we raised chickens. And we had our ownaghs

chickens. You separated your own cream and milk. And you had a

smokehouse. It &s just like the pioneers lived. | mean, you know, you

butchered your own hogs once in the fall when all the neighbors got together.
And they’d butcher from, oh, up to twe

| ocal spot, and t h eAltheakilsapnd the motrersk al | d
woul d be there cooking. And all the ki
lard, which was very important. Lard was very important tdfangly,

because that’'s what you preserved a | o
codked with.

These pigs were a lot fatter than the lean pigs we have.tsthgt right?

Oh, you wanted them fat. And they woul
squares, you know-aboutlike that—thatwent in a great big renderingtke.

Two- or threeinchesthick fat?

Oh, yeah. And all that went in there. And you rendered all the fat out. Then
you had a lard pressa screwdown press where you ptlte little squarem
there, and you squeezed all the lard out of thhemal. then, what you ended up
then was a cake of what they called cracklins. And it was just a cake about
thatsize They were good to eat. You know, peopletaem.They were tasty,
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just like our pigskins right today, you know? (laughs) DePue: Yo u ' r e
making me hungry here, Norbert.

That' s where a | ot of us have come up
How did the family end up in that area of Missouri?

Well, actually, my grandparents came from Germany. And they had bought a
farm justnorth of CoxTown about half a mileMy father was a World War |
veteran, and then he started work for the Western Union Telegraph Company
out of Chicago and worked there for almost ten years until the Depression hit
in 1929. He was a foreman on one d time crews. So they cut himthey

laid quite a few line crews effsothat dropped him back to a lineman. By

that time, he had married my mother. And I think they had my oldest brother
onthewayatthetiméle’ d saved his money, and he
money. And he could see the handwriting on the wall that it was just going to
go downhill. And so, being as that farm was fairly close to his mom and dad
they decided that that would be a good place to buy. And iavga=e that

they couldafford to buyit. And he had enough money to buy the farm.

What was his name?
Albert.
You told me earlier the story about how he met your mother, too.

Yeah, it was during th&oplin tornado.r fact, they just had a big desbout

that tornado on the newn 1925, | think it was, that tornado come across
from southern Missouri, crossed southern lllinois, into Indiana. Three states,
and never left the ground. It killed 634 people, | bekevet * s over si x
hundred, buthat number sticken my mind—andjust flattened Murphysboro.
My mother was in Murphysboro at that time working as a clerk in the post
office. And they sent my dad down with his line crew to pick up, you know,
all the lines that were down that Western Union had in the ateelh was a

lot of them at that time-e picked up his payroll and mail and everything else
from the post office, personally. | mean, he went and got his own. And so,

t hat’ s how he Heammas thirtyttvaoyeams pld when they got.
married, anghe was nineteen.

What was your mother’s name?
Dorothy.
What was her maiden name?

Moddlin.And she’ s a ki nMotlgin, ahdDeboiB faniliessio n s ,
southern lllinois, which is a lot of the original settlerst tt@me in there from
Kentucky and Tennesseé&scotchlrish.
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DePue: Any other siblings in the family?

Bentele: Yes, | have nine brothers and sisters. Yeah, there was nine-@figlst
brothers and-

DePue: So, your dad started at age thitityo, and then.

Bentele: Yeah, had a whole bunch of kids.

DePue: And where did you fit in there?

Bentele: | was number four. | have two older sisters, and one older brdthet us

were borned on that farm. We was all borned in the bedrmimthere in

that farmhouse-ad one lady-an old German lady named M&tropple—
thatlived about a quarter of a mile up the dirt rpsice was the one that mid
wifed every one of us kids except one, and that was my youngest sister. She
was born after we moved to town1945.

DePue: In 1945 you moved to town. What town was that?
Bentele: Macon.
DePue: That was Macon.
Bentele: Um-hm.
DePue: The big city of Macon at the time, huh?
Bentele: YeahTh at ' s wh.e—+Id&dadwe yearloflgrade scheehctually two
years. It was kind of funy how that happenetl * | | have to tell vy

Missouri, at that time, they had a skip system. You skipped from the fourth to

the sixth to the fifth to the eighth, back to the seventh and graduategdade
schoolThefifth and seventh grade were catsied hard grades, so they

wanted you a Ilittle older. So that’™s w
in 1945, | was in the skip to the eighth grade. | had already started the eighth

grade in country school. Well, then when we moved into town, we alltwent

the Catholic school. My father was a Catholic, so we all was. And so | was in

the eighth grade. They just kept me at eighth grade and graduated me. | never

did take the seventh grade. | actually missed one year of grade school.

(laughs) And, you knowhtat * s t he wBwallpfuswenttoned out
grade school. We walked a mile and thoemrters—truly—across the fields.

Just had a big patExceptmy two youngest-my youngest sister and

youngest brotherthey were too little. And my next brother, pet to walk, |

think, one year. But we walked it in the weather, and never missed school.

DePue: Tell me more about the experience of going-te it the oneroom
schoolhouse?



Norbert Bentele Interview # VRK-A-L-2011035.01

Bentele:
DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:
Bentele:
DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

Oneroom school. Same school my father went to.
Do you remembeihe name of the school?

Union Grove. Union Grove School, that’
disappeared by now. The original name of it was Bear Thicket. According to

legend, the last bear in that neighborhood was killed there, across the road

from the school. But my father and his three brothers went to that same school

in about 1900. It was built about 1870, | think. And we all went therene

time there was thirtgomeodd kids at that country school. And, pretty much,

they still had fifteeneighteen students when we moved to town.

One teacher?
One teacher, yeah.
Remember her name?

Well, we had several of them. There was a Mrs. Green. And the one that was
there the most was Florene Dawsey. And she rode a. Mdedle the roads

were in such bad shape. They were all mud except, you know, they had one
gravel road that run to Cokown. The rest of the roads were all mud. And so
she rode a pinto pony. Now, she had to ride twelve miles a day, round trip

all kindsof weatherin rain, and snow, and cold, and everything.elseSh e ' d
saddle up that pinto ponghelived with her parents out on the road to
Excello—ands he’ d ri de t hat Shehadtobe atsckoolby hor
to get the fire started before the kafsived. So she had to be at that school
probably around 8:00, 8:30 in the morning to start the coal stove so the
schoolhouse would be warm when the kids all got tBexmause we was

about halfrozen when we got there anyway.

And | remember there was atd barn down about, oh, a quarter of a
mile. There was an ol d farmhouse, and
boys used to fight to see who would get to ride that pony (laughs) and go get
it—saddle it, and go get it, and feed it while you were dowrethehad a
stall in the old barn where the pony would stay, and you had to feed it, and
take the saddle off and bridle, and then you had to saddle it back up and bring
it up. It had quite a honor to do that. Sometimes, she would pick us out, you
know, if we got too rough. But a lot of times, she used to, you know, let us
fight over it. So.. (laughs)

Well, | was wondering if you had any rambunctious boys, and ihalesome
discipline for those

Oh, yeah. Yeah, | always remember this gag he actually ended up
marrying my ol drelavt Andbhe wds About thessanseiagetae r
| am because he was a Korean War veteran too. In fact, he got wounded over
there.He was just a little bit bigger than | wasd he beat me every dagut
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finally I got big enough that | could whip hjrend | whipped him every day.
(laughs) 1t was n’ mainlgvadsdiingang, ysukmow o u s . |t
That’' s what you do nweplayad basebalfhere weres ¢ h o o |
some really old, old kis in there-someof the older ones that were slgtiat

were held backvere probably seventeen years.dltiey wereight in there

with the rest of us. You generally graduated from grade school when you were
twelve, thirteen But | can remember a few ofethn that were, you know, a

little bit backwardandwere still in school at sixteen, seventeen years old.

Did you feel like you got a good education there?

Well, yeah. | think it was excellent. The way it worked was, you all lined up

from thesmaller kidsup, and the first graders were next to the bank of
windows.Then you went from grades all the way up to the eighth graders.

And she would work with each one of them, and the eighth graders and the
seventh graders were supposed to assistttiee smaller kids, and kind of

help her schoolYou learned, because you heard what she was teaching. You

kind of learned a grade ahead while you were setting there. | mean, you know,
you might be doing your work, but at the same time the next grade gbove

was being taught, all the way up to the eighth grade. So you had the benefit of
what you overheard and what they went through. And we all were pretty much
close together. Each helped each ot d have pie suppers
plays and, you know,evey t hi ng el se. Il can stil!]l r e
up where her desk was. And they el suppers to raise money to paint the

school and a community gaigether, also.

A pie supper?

That was a big deal in those days, and particulartiie rural schools. Of

course, all the women baked a pie. And everybody came. | mean, horses and
buggies would be lined up, you know, and the whole neighborhood would

come. It was the picnic. And it always happened in the fall, after school got

going goodand it was cooler weatheévlainly what the deal was lot of the

single women would bake the best pie they knew how to bake. And they had

an auctioneer auction them off. And yo
You know, it had to be, more or less, arslauction. Of course, everybody,

kind of knew, and they wasn’'t supposed
That was not supposed to happen. Of <co
put on a play. We'd have a Thldpuksgi vin
on a skit. And I can say, | could always remember they had a wire strung from

one side to the other, and had big pins

Clothespins?

No, not clothespins. The metal ones that close together, like diaper pins, on
that curtain. And it wuld screech on that wire. | still can hear that wire
screeching when they Wk pulpluti tono pe mplar
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you know, that would be something that all the kids really got into. But

anyway, they’d get b aewhkuldbepiessdmeofpi e s up
them cakes—but mainlyit waspies Come over and watch the kidsd buy a

pie. Well, some of the young guys that were after some local gal that they was
interested in, they would bid everything but their shirt on those pies. And

some of them went big money back in the thirties. | mean, you know, when
you're talking five or ten doll ars bac
like, four hundred dollars today. But that was always a big favorite contest.

The guys would try to outbithe other ones. And, you know, the gal may have
wanted the one that didn’t have quite
could eat together. And she had to set with them, and eat the pie with each

other, you know? Of course, they hadto beintheopere ¥ coul dn’ t s
off somewhere and (laughs) eat the pie. But, that was a big social event.

Did your father like farming, or was that somethhagjust felt he had tdo to
make a living somehow?

Of course, he grew up on a faraborn and resed on a farmAnd, he knew

how to farm. He was a saddler in the Army, and he knew animals and horses

and everything. That was another thingou had to know husbandry. You

had to know howto. ¥u di dn’'t cal | ..&heongtirecrai nar i a
veeri narian every showed up at a far mer
because they were so valuable to the farmer. If he had a sick horse, you know,
you coul dikebuyanev ttactod. Ydu called in a veterinarian.

Very seldom, you know,drause they cost money. Andtede successful,

you had to know how to take care of your livestock, from cows to pigs to

chickens to whatever you had. And | thibkd—again, this was in about

1929, right in there when the stock market went devandeverylody laid

off a tremendous amount of workers. And, | mean, guys wandered the roads

just trying to find a place to sleep or eat. And | thided thought,“Well, this

would be a good time to do thHafnd, | mean, it made a living for us. We

never did go humy. We never had tavly mom and everybody else would

never take commodities. No matter how desperate you were, never. And
commodities were the giveaway food t ha
They called them commodities, and now they call them ftadss. But
neveShewoul d absolutely not do that. And

What was the cash crop?

Well, probably the biggestash cropvas the eggs and cream. And, of course,

you didn’t have soybeans then.YouThat wa
had corn. And probably the biggest cash crop was, like | said, cidwm.

truck would come by, or you took it into town to the creamery. And eggs. You
didn’t sell any meat that you cured be
sawed wood and probably ddboards and plank¥ou know that would

happen. That would be a cash crop. But overall, eggs and cream was your
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main cash crop on a farm in those days, that you could take to town and sell.
You know, thirty dozen eggs, and buy your staples that you Haavtn

What were your chores?

Everything. And | always say thishad four brothers, and not a one of us
went to farming. | mean, we had all that worked out of us. (laughter)

Well, tell me about what it was likeearlymorning chors.

Earlymorningchoresthad t o be about five o' cl oclk
head out to the barn. And like | say, you had to milk those cows twice a day.

My brother anddad was milking the cows. | would have to shuck the corn

f odder whulimhythe stacldnd shuck the ears off, and they went

to the horses. And the corn fodder, we
subsisted on. Plus every once in a while maybe a little grain or something, you

know, to help them out. | remember stamgdout there on many a cold

morning, pitch black, raining or snowi
wear gloves and do it very well. And |
higher than my head. And then, after that, help with the milk and evagythi

else. Get it up to the smokehouse where we had a DelLaval separator, where

we separated the cream from the milk. And we needed the milk because every
morning you had to have fresh milk because you had no way of refrigerating
anything. So the milk that yohad from the night before, it was throwed out

or fed to the cats or the animals, or put in the slop for the pigs. And so you had

to have fresh milk every morning that we used for our cereal or drinking or

whatever. Raw milkyou know Wefiltered it, andthat would be it. Take it in

and drink it, while it was still warm. (laughs)

How about the chores when you got back home?

Well, the first thing you did when you walked bawle walked right through

the chicken yard, and there was a big pif wood that was there that was

sawed up into st ovekeptapiegsplihAndthedend we'’ d
wasn’'t none -gplitters. Yau$ad tolsmitrt evith laroage. And

there was always a big pile there becadsen had to get some duringe day

too. OrDadwould get it in. And you always knew that you might as well stop

at the firewood pile, pick you up a whole armload of wood, and haul it into the
kitchen becauseMamhat esi hpetdiwant thong
kitchen stove fomaking supper. And so you always carried that in first before

you put down your books or anything else. And when | talk about an

education, one of my brothers in thext year where | awas president of

Mallinckrodt Chemical, out of St. Louis. And,ddar se, he’ s retir
which—

What was the company?

Mallinckrodt, which is a large-
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DePue: Mallinckrodt?

Bentele: Malli nckrodt. They processed the uraniumn
how Malinckrodt Chemical in St. Louis was-awell, it still is a big chemical
company. 't s part of anehreetousandoncer n

employees, so he had to learn somethihgbrother was an engineer for the
highway, and all my sisters all worked at very gepdying jobs. All of us .

DePue: | think | know the answer to all of this. The heatinBid you have just the
heat from the stove in the kitchen?

Bentele: In the evening, mainly, when you sat down to dinner, we had this kitchen
stove. And the rest of the heating was one kating stove in the front living
room. And you had to know how to, actually, stoke that up at-righti
know, bank the fire. And sometimBadwould have coal. | mean, we was
able to, actuallysurfacemine Therewas a lot of coal over in Macon County.
And we could, actuallysurfacemine some coal. And you could bank it up.
Everybody tried to get what they called a wamorning stovelt was one of
the stovesthat stood up a whole lot of coahd you could bank that. You had
to really know howtodoths so you woul dn’t build a
last all night and keep the house warm all night. You might have had to get
upor Dadwould—in the middle of the night and chuck in a couple of pieces
of wood, you know, to bring the fire up a little bit take it warm if it wasa
particularlycold night. But that was the only heat. We grew up living in an
upstairs bedroom with absolutely no heat whatsoever. None. And the old
farmhouse was not insulateahd many a morning around the windows the
snow would bédlowed in, in drifts, coming in that room. Not melting either.

And that’'s how you done it.

DePue: | assume there was no electricity.

Bentele: No. | can remember when they forget what year it was-butthey built a
pole line and the power line for the REANd that had to come after
Roosevelt got into of f iAcdanothestbhingabout pr

about howthe REAdone thatvas the farmers got paid for digging the holes
for the poles that went alongside their property. And they got paid for doing
that. And they could dig the holes, and they getremh money fatoing that

And being as my dad worked for the Western Union Telegraph
Company as a lineman, he knew how to do that very well. In fact, we had
what they call ed a systemmmihkgow of Bxcellauss” t e
And the wires would come down, and, of course, every farmer had an old
crank telephone, ground return. You know what that is? You have one wire,
and the ground was used for the other side of the circuit. Worked perfectly

1 REA: Rural Electrification Administration, a New Deal program which built the infrastructure needed to bring
electricity to farms.

10
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until they started getting all the electricity into the ground, which made a lot
of static.

But it went down, and our house sat on the corner of threeroads
come to a junction right there. So, it was natural that we had a switchbaard
little switchboard inhere on the wall in the kitchen. To call our house, |
remember, it was three rings and a short. And wiem heard that, she
knew somebody wanted to be switched over to another line, so she would
answer the phone, and t haholdd Myrtiel | her,
soands o down here.” Of course, she knew
would throw the switches that would switch that line over to the other line.
And then when the person wanted to end their conversatbrourse, now,
everybody couldhear what was going oit was a party line-t h e give dne
long ring that toldMomt hat , okay, they’'re done, an
switches back to normal. There was a certain way that they had to have them,
so it would be hooked together.

ButDadmaini ned t hat rural telephone 1|
got paid for it or.. | think it was all contributed by the people that used it.
They just had to put the poles up and buy the wire and the telephone. And |
don’t think ther e \oatlsatnaighgorhood phong Bne wh at s
which went all over. Every farmer was hooked to it. And a lot of times it was
very important. It actually went to the switchboard that hooked to the Bell
Telephone switchboard in Extel And had an operator twertywell, she
was there not twentfour hours a day, but it was in her house. She lived right
there, so she would get up and answer the phone in the middle of the night if

somebody was sick or needed help. That
doctor in Macon bpwherever and get them on their way out there. Because a
lot of times, thatwas alifandd eat h si tuation. And that

kept the neighborhood going.
You called it a cratdandcuss telephone?

Wel |l , that’' s aylbecdusetwelk ifthedire vas ddwn, the

linemen always called it thata crankand-cuss lineTherailroad had a lot of

these groundeturn telephone lines, too. | mean, you know, these branch lines

just had one wire, and it was ground return. It wonsedectly. And

everybody was cranking on the dang t hi
be cussing at the same time. (|l aughter

When you mentioned e l-sanethingmithaty comi ng
neighborhood-do you remember the chges that that brought with it?

Well , that’s what | was going—ifo say.
you got electricity, you didnbobu have t
couldn”t afford t hem aadopwhagthat ybpu hade me mb e
Dadwired all of our buildingsthe barn and the house and everything else

11
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himself. | mean, he knew how to do thedndit was the light. Before that, we
used Aladdin lamps, which actually put out a very fine bright light. You ever
see an Aladin lamp—the one that had the mantles in it, that you pumped up?

Was this kerosene olil it was operating on?

Yeah, or the white gas, i s what you us
lantern, only a lot bigger, and, you know, set in the teidd the dining room.
So that’' s where we all done our | esson

mean, they really put out better than what the fire would. But that was the
main thing that they hadtas lights. That was what everybody really needed,
andthat was the only thing you had.

The first thing thaDadbought was an electric motefa onehorse
motor—that hooked up to the Maytag washing machine that was run by a gas
engine before. That was the very first thing that he put in. | mean, it took a lot
of load off ofMom, because, you know, thataway, she could just turn it on
and run the washing machine. Otherwise
engine, and sometimes it wouldn’t star

How about something like aregtric milker?

No, nothing like that. | never did see anything like that. Nobody could afford

it. And it was just not done. You know, we cranked the old DeLaval. But you
didn’t have control of the machine. Yo
hawe. But you still cranked the old separating machine also.

Indoor plumbing?

No. All outhouse. And that’s another s
there in the wintertime. (laughter)

Wel | | Il " m t hi nki n defiftyeos gixey gearadidiand i f y ou
waking up in the middle of the night in the winter

Well , what you done, if you didn’t hayv
they’d call a thunder mug or a sl op | a
somewhere thatvéa out of the way. And that’s w
had to go, you had to g¥.ou went out to the outside privgnd that was

always an adventure in itselithe Sears, Roebuck cataleghe whole ball of

wax. That’'s what vyou abwedtadsukmallarge r e me mb
family and little kids, we had a thrdmler. One of them was a little one for

the kids. (laughter)

How often did it get pumped d2it

Well, actually, you scooped it out. And took it out in the field to arofhe-
way place, and it’s distributed out th
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DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

mes s . But here’s another interesting t
south of Quincy, in Marblehead, lllinoigas the Marblehead Lime Company
which produced fingound | i me. And that’'s what vy

Every outhouse in the country had a sack of Marblehead lime set down in the
outhouse with a cup where you take about a cupful if you went to the

bat hroom, and vy ou!ltheldsdpwnthestink,anditt over t
helped decompose the feces, and it, you know, kept the flies from swarming it

too. But that was very importantt he Mar bl ehead Li me Comp
forget it. It always had it on the sack: Marblehead Lime Company,

Marblehead, lllinoisAnd everypl ace had it that yo

But cleaning it out wasn’t that b
in cold weather generally. And it di
threw it in the wagon, and took itoutanddissut ed i t. You woul
on anythingAnd of course, we cleaned out the barn all the-tiftiee cows

and the horses. And that was always a job. But it was necessary to do it. And,

of course, the bedding that you put in for the horses was genepaijsass

and stuff like thatReallydifficult. And they would stomp it down so hard,

you know you had ta. | mean, you had to work to get it out of the barn. But

that went on the cornfield. And the chicken house, which | dearly hated to
cleanoutThatwas one job | would al mdst take
dust in there, and the smell of 1t jus
Of cour se, |l had to do it. But | r emen
thereworking and run back outsigdeecause itwasjustl don’It know.
always did bother me. It bothers me right to this day.

It sounds like you had more than just one or two chickens.

Well, we had a flock. They would start out with baby chickeasleast two

hundred or morgecause we raised them, sometim@sd we sold chickens

when they got to be pullet sized or frying sized. And you sold, also, the old

hens for boiling chickens. And you would sell chickens to the people in town,

and that was a good market also, besidesdigs. And there was a lot of

them. You raised them from the little chickens you got in the-rgolu

know, |little baby c hi-alitlsboxfllllofdogby d ¢ o me
chicks. And, in the cold weather where you generally started them, a lot of

times you had to keep them in the house next to the stove to keeplitbem

When they growed up a little bit, they
they had a brooder house out in @fi¢he chicken housedVe had two

chicken houses. And that was axfeour main sources of meat, too. | mean,

we ate a lot of fried chickernd ahen— boiled chicker—or whatever it was

we had. That was a good source, because if you wanted a chicken, you just

went out in the chicken yard with a hook and grabbed one wof #mel took it

over to the chopping block and whacked his head off. Mom would scald him,

pick him, and have a chicken.

Did she tell you to go get the young ones or the old ones?
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Well, it all depends on what she wanted to make. You wantettazhicken
for chicken and dumplingsyou know the ones that you boiled. Young

chickens were fried, you know? And, no, we had a lot of chickens. Now, the
chicken manure was the kind of manure that you wanted to spread on your
vegetable garden. And you hedbe careful with it because chicken manure is
very potent. | mean very rich, and you camat they called*burn up your
gardefi’ by putting on too much. You had to kind of temper it with the horse

manure. Horse manure was another gotidvas spreadut on the gardens,
and then plowed

l " m assumi
No, all draft horses.

Big horses.

under . And t hat'’

ng you had

s how

-bredaoff thorouglobredse s and

And another thing that we hadalking about this and choresve had a big
garden. A big garden. Anidom would canat least a hundred quarts of

everything that we grew. Beangverything.Beets And then, on top of the

big garden we had next to the house, which ahamsta good, acreand we
grew everything in there, and around the sides we had different berry bushes
and everything else that we had. Then, on the hillside, a little ways from the
house, is where we grew a truck garden, they called it then. That was potatoes
and sweet potatseWe grew a lot of sweet potatoes and melons.

Let’ s see,

We’ d al ways

of peopl e

don

wh at
have two

t

do thi s,

or t hree

el se did we

have? T
rows of
processed. Of course, the first thing you done in the merramglwhere a lot

a n-dyouwbné y wo nd

out early in the morning and worked your garden before the sun got hot. And

that was the better time to work-doing yourhoeingand weeepulling, and

picked up what vegables she was going to have.

And all that processing Y et dondhe front porch and snap beans.

All of us kids would set there witlom and, you knowsnap beans or peel

carrots or

theyearand vy o

a root cellar whe e

whatever
together And, generally, we had a root cellar that was attached to the house.

Like | say, a hundred quarts of everything that we raised was put in that cellar
along with some meat that was put in crocks with lard on the top of it. And a

big rack with potatoes ithere. They would try to keep enough potatioes
u could do
We had a big potato patcffhat was another wholamily exercise because
Dadwould take the horse and a small plow and turn theen, @nd you
would pick them all up. And he wanted you to get all of them. | meanyou had
to go through and pick them, because he would check and makesauget
all of themHe also picked them upyou never washed them, but generally, in

t hey
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with slots in itin there and potatoes would keep, generally, all wintetil

early spring. You’d have potatoes. And
monitor and pick out. If one of themturnedbo t t en, vy ofuherd. get it
And so, that was another thing. The root cellar was very importgouto

Actually, it would keep you from starving.

DePue: And obviously, you didn’t have refrige

Bentele: Yep, ou root cellar was about halfway in the ground. And it stayed cool in
there. You know, it had a dirt floor, which you had to have in a root cellar.
And it would stay cool, but not cold.

DePue: Now, the things you’'re taltde@md@d asbout w
Bentele: Yes, the late 3 Gandwearly 4 0° s
DePue: Do you remember anything about the Depression years?

Bentele: Oh, yes. | was born right in the depth of the Depressit®32 was the depth
of it. And, like I say, | can remember very well i836 when we had that
severe hot weather that killed a lot of people. | was just reading a piece from
the St. Louis PosDispatch four hundred and somadd people died in St.
Louis during that heat spell that we went through Hérgou notice, the
recorcs were all, pretty much, set back here. And | can remember, we slept in
the front yard all summer long. Mom ab@d moved the beds out in the front
yard underneath the mulberry tree, and
rained once. Now, you think abaile depth of the Depression, and you had
to have your vegetable garden to subsist on. If you had any hogs or cattle,
even they had nothing to eat. They would cut down trees and brtish so
hogs and cattleould eat the leaves. When they run out of tiat farmers

had to sell them for whatever they cou
They would starve to death. And a lot of animals did. And here you are, in the
depth inthe DepressieAfn 0 money. And you can’t r ai

or a vegetald garden. How are you going to feed your family the next winter?
DePue: Did the family have a well?

Bentele: We had a well, but they all dried up. Now, remember, you had cisterns. The
only thing we had on the farm, about half a mile from the house, waalh s
spring that never did quit flowing. But even at best, it never flowed very
much. It was a small spring that come out of the hillside. That was the water
we used for anything other than drinking. And what you had tewlloenyou
had cisterns and no raiyou run out of water in your cisterarsoyou had to
buy water. A tank truck brought a tank of water out and dumped it in your
well . And I forget what it cost then,
big business-hauling water.

DePue: Did you keep tk garden going with that water?
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Bentele: Not very well. We got some garden, because it was planted early and matured
before the hot weather. And we was abl
what you done. If you got it planted at the right tiviéthe srow went off,
anditthawedowty ou’ d pl ant potatoes in the en

April. Well, generally, you had your garden pretty much on the way or

matured by the time July and the really hot weather hit. Well, we did get that.

But anything aftethat that would come along in, like melons or whatever

nothing. Because it just dried up. Same way with the corn crop. It just dried

up. The 1936 drought | ooked I i ke what
you see those pictur easlookedtheheArdals. That
mean, it was terrible.

DePue: Was the family close to running out of

Bentele: We had to be careful. | can remember that we had enough put away. And then,
of course, you had your meat and stuff. But | thirksurvived pretty well. It
was no glory time. We had to be careful about what.\Wweother words, you
ate everything that was put out there.

DePue: Did you say your father bought the far
Bentele: Um-hm.

DePue: And he never rented?

Bentele: No. Well, he never rented at all. He bought the fasiock, stock, and barrel,

by the way. The old German family that was th&eitzwas their namesold
all of it. In fact, there was a horse that went with the farm, and all the
machinery. A lot of farmerdone that. In other words, he retired. He was an
old guy, and so he sold-teverything that was on the farm.

DePue: How many acres?
Bentele: There was ninety acres, aBadrented another forty beyond in the bottom.
DePue: Wel | , t he r asbeausghidis aiso thedirke thatgso many

farmers were going bankrupt and so many farms are being foreclosed.

Bentele: Wel | , her e’ sltkmdhdremindayoyothask d few years ago,
when they had the farm t kind of like this right now. Whathe farm
produced was selling at high pricéettymuch you could borrow money,
and the interest rateas high. Youwcould borrow enhundrecthousand dollars
in the spring, and inflation would make it 120 by the time fall came. Well, a
lot of farmers boulgt new pickup trucks-it happened right hereand
everything else. And they lost their farm. And the same thing ih tBeDif s
you paid your bills. And after World War |, the government made it very
generous, because they knew they was going to haved@denof food over
to Europe. And it was supposed to boom the farm, which it did for a short
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DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

while. A | ot of farmers bought | and an
of f. So they’'re the ones t hatndDadst it .
bought the farm outright, so he didn’t

So, he was very fortunate in that respect, then
Yeah, umhm.

Again, you would have been awfully young as this time, but towards the late
1930s, you know, the world getting to be a more complicated place
especially in Germany, for example. And your father being German, do you
remember his feelings about any of that?

Yes, | do. In fact, we were the only people in the neighborhood that had a
radio—a batterypowered radio. We had a wind charger that would charge the
battery setting there on it, and we had one on the radio. And we were the only
ones that had a radio. And the neighbors used to come in, particularly on
Saturday night, to listen to the radr listen to the news.

Did they listen to the barn dance or something like that?

Yeah, well, the oldribber McGee and Mollyas popular, and th@rand Ole
Opry. And there were several other old country plays on the radio that people
would actudly walk several miles to comend listen to it, you know? But

Dad would follow the news close, being a World War | veteran. And, of

course, his parents just came from Ger
family over in Germany that we know. | ceamember that, you know, Hitler
would have been a very good chancell or

neighbors? (laugh He actually brought Germany out of the deepest

depression that any country ever saw and put everybody to work building
superhighwaysmad ever ything el se. But he just
Pol and and the rest of them. That’'s wh
there | remembe¥viom cautionedDadnot to be so vocdlecausehe could

kind of see the handwriting on the wall, whiit did turn out thataway. Of

course, then, when America got into the war and stuff like that, well, then it

was all the other way, you know?

Well, let’s talk about that. You woul d
at December 7, 1941. Canwyremember that?

Yes, | can.
What do you remember about that?

Well, | remember the biggest thing was shock. I think everybody was just
dumbfounded that it happened the way it did. Not that the Japanese attacked

us because all dhe newspapers and everything else was full of everything

where we were embargoigndwe wer en’t all owing the
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the oil fields and stuff like that. And | remember they were just shocked that it
happened there and the devastation thgtthe a u s e d . |l mean, t
expecting them to sink thrdeurths of the Navy. And of course, at that time

there was a lot of people that had sons and everything else, you know, in the
servicebecausehat was one place they could go where they coulhat get
something to eat and live. And | remember that, definitely. The radio was

going all day longand all night when that happened.

DePue: Do you remember when you first heard it? Was it on the radio?

Bentele: Yeah. Oh, yeah. It was on the radio.ddhcome over the newscast. In fact,
the speech that Roosevelt put out to Congressithditday—I remember
hearing that.

DePue: The “Day of I nfamy” speech?
Bentele: Um-hm.
DePue: Okay. How did life change for you guys, now that the United States was at
war?
Bentele: Well, it didn’t change hardly at all
|l ot of peopl et hdeonwatg erse awei rzee ftrhozsen. Yo

more money even though t hlecagséwassn’ t no

frozen wages. Thenly thing that the farmers had an advantage of was they
got an Acard—the gasolingation card—which allowedthemmore gas. Not
a hell of a lot.

DePue: Did the family have a car?

Bentele: Oh, yeah. We hadbora ' 32 Chevy four

DePue: Since 1932 you haa Chevy?
Bentele: Wel | | |  d o rDadboughntlatrcarw Wwas trying to think the other
day. |l don’t remember any othend car s,

we still had it when we moved to town. And he finally bought a nice little
pickuptruck to do his work in. But | remember the raticard stamp that you

had out on the windshield. And they rationed sugar and stuff like that. That

made a change. But the farmers could get that because they had to preserve

the crops. But a farmer was mareless tied to his farm too. (laughs) If you

had an essential job, which they considered the farmers as an essential job,

you was restrictedrouc oul dn’ t sel | out and go to
was no raise in pay. In fact, things did not changé aftér the war ended.

DePue: Did you have any older brothers that were in military?

Bentele: My brother went in the Navy in 1945.
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Bentele:
DePue:
Bentele:
DePue:

Bentele:
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So right at the tail end?

Right at the tail end. My oldest brother.

And you said that the family med to town. When was that?
Nineteen fortyfive—i n t he f al | of 45,
Was that because your father found work in town, or something?

Well, for years he had already been a carpenter. And my grandfather was a
carpenter, also. They bBua lot of barns in that part of the country, and
houses. AnBDaddoheas d sapplenterat to the farm. | mean

couldn’t very well rai se al l of wus kid
farm. And, so, he was already doing that almost full titmel me and my
brothers were actually doing the farm

farm. You know, she was a city girl to start out with. Not adiig girl, but

she lived mainly in cities. Her dad was a railroad telegrapher down in southern
llli nois and moved around all over Pinckneyville and all of those little towns
down there. And she was afteadhot and heavy about it. And we had

several families there that weren’t ve
you know.. And hereshe had theseur daughters growing up. Arddom,

she just said, “I’m not raiWwi’'mg my dau
moving t o t owrbDadsell duh dmeanhhe would lthee stayed
where he was, Il t hi nktownYAouw’ he gveaiimg t*
a big building boomandwa ges are going up.” My dad
carpenter. And you know what he got paid for it in the middle of the
Depression, building houses for peopl e

foundation, the plumbing, the wiring,gltabinets—everything in that house
Dadmadethirty-f i ve cents an ho doryearsTAndvhens what
he moved to town he was very hesitant alaising He was almost afraid to

do it because he was afrai drpemters woul dn’
were making well over a dollar an hour. So finally he raised to seviesty

cents an hour and then moved it all up from thideawas still the cheapest

carpenter in town. (laughs) You know?

Did you personally follow the war pretty clogel

Well, from 1936Dad subscribed to thi#e magazine, and that come weekly.

We always kept them in a trunk in the attic. Every issue ofifeanagazine

was in that trunk when we moved off that farm. And we left them in the attic.
(laughs) Youkow, it was something that you d
every issue from 1936 when they first started publiskAmgl that was our

main source of information about the war. And, of courge,magazine was

the premiere magazine. And they coveredmtgeln, everywhere. And it was

really something to see, those bifk magazines. They done a good job. And

t h amainlg how we did.
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Also, one thing else that us kids dotrethe wintertimeparticularly
the roads were so badth the snowdrifts and evettying else. You had to
shovel your way out a lot of times. And the trip to town was not very often.
You maybe got to town three times a winter or less. Or a little more if the
weather was good and roads werelokgausehere was mud holeand ruts
and swowdrifts and everything, you know, going to town. Plus, it cost you a
little bit of money, too. | rememb&adwould get gas to go home. It was
t welve miles away from Macon. He’ d buy
a doll ar’ s wor give yau five gnd & half gallons of gas.eAyd’ d
that would be enough to run out there, and run around a little bit, and get back

to town. (laughs) A dollar’s worth of
we had a very good ptllahereiofadt i bbmedfsy 1 n N
the Carnegie |libraries they expanded o
And the kids would go. That was our | a
each one would check out three different books. And by the tingoieack,

we' ' d al l read everybody else’s book. Y

twelve booksMy oldest brother was a mathematical whiz. He was really
good at mathematics. So, we all had our education set around reading books.

DePue: You mentioned bef@ that before the war started, your father was at least
admiring what was going on in Gernyawith the economy.

Bentele: Well, and—
DePue: How did he feel about it after the war stafted

Bentele: Well, it was a completely different ballgame. | mean, thenvas against
Hitler all the way. And | think some of the stories started cominghaithey
were pretty sure that he was running death camps. And that was all coming to
bear. You kno w;lovdnbutatthessamettimeahe Ikedwhate r
was gingon. A lot of the people in the United States could look at Germany
asa model.Theyhad countered their high inflationratken d t hey’ d put
to work. Hitler had them building that infrastructure up, and the highways,
and everything else thate did. And it was a model country. | mearil935
and ' 36 and ' 3going coumtey tin Ewapeprobabletheb e s t
world. And so it could badmiredparticularly when we were back here.
People were struggling even to find something to eat. Thesgwaa@ple

wandering the roads, couldn’t find a h
the wivesof a lot of the megrass widows. And a grass widow was one that
sti |l | had a husband, but he wasn’t pre
leave the home dbe wife and the kids could get commodities to live on.
And, of <cour se, he’d sneak back, you k

visit. | knew several of them. There were several of them in our neighborhood

that done that. And they had to, or their famgyuld have starved. We had an
uncleemy mot her ' s un-eaned fhreo ntc oSutl.d nL’otu ifsi nd
he’ d come u pdDhdentlee faam Well there waso of them

two different times. They manlycomé | y cou
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up hee and worked just for their keepheyhelped saw wood and do all the

farm work and everything else. | remember Uncle Henry, and after working

three months up there witbad, hefinally got a job in St. LouisDadtook

him out to the Highway 63 so he codldimb a ride south. AnDadgive him

half the money he had in his pocket for helping. And that was fifteen cents.

Dad had thirty cents in his pocket. Th

DePue: You mentioned earlier that the family was Catholic. Was it a chgoaig
family?

Bentele: Yes, we did. We went as often as we could.

DePue: And your dad being, | guess, secegeheration Germamvere you guys

occasionally going to a church where there was German ispoke

Bentele: Well, not in Macon. There was no Germanssithere. AndQuincy was a
large German population. They had several German newspapers, and they had
German massdarticularlyl i ke St . Mary’'s down there

massIn fact, we had an Irish priest. (laughs)

DePue: A what?

Bentele: An Irish priest.

DePue: Oh, an Irish—okay.

Bentele: From Ireland. Yeah. And that was a time when all the Irish priests were

coming over to the United States and operating parishes. Kind of like the

Hispanics now. We would try to get to church. | médom was a cavert

because she was a Baptist from southern lIllinois. But she joined the church.

And the funny thingvas my grandfather was a Catholic, and my grandmother

was a Lutheran. And she never changed. She always went to the Lutheran

church in Macon. And | werwith her. We go back a long, long ways in the

CatholicCh ur ¢ h. Il mean, |l " ve seen records |
family being involved with the pope that wiasKronenberg

DePue: Oh, back when thenseretwo popes?

Bentele: And | had severalrcestors that were abbots of monasteries.
DePue: Where was the family from originally in Germany then?

Bentele: Well, our branch of the family is around Ravensburg or oBtiaenseg

down in southern Germany. And at one time, back in the tenth ceritayy, t
were aroundronenbergwhich is where the Roman Catholigsre. They
had three popes thefihe German popgot in more or lesa power grab with
the pope in Rome and lost. Well, my family was involved in that, and they
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stripped them of their lands, @&they had to go down to (laughter) another

place to settle. So, anyway, there’s q
DePue: Did life change for you, personally then when the family moved to town?
Bentele: Yeah, it did. At least | was able to get a job and make sondeckimoney.
DePue: Now you would have been thirteen at time?
Bentele: Yeah. | worked three different jobs.
DePue: What were you doing?
Bentele: Well, I was setting pins in a bowling alley in thés Club in the evening,

which was a pretty good job, toltgbu the truth. We got ten cents a line for
our game, and they had a couple of alldysen of course, if anybody wanted
to bowl extra, they had to tip us to get us to do that. You know, they were
generous, pretty much, with the getters. And that wdsefore the days of

the automatic phsetters. You set them by hand. And that was one job | had.
And another job wadeliveringnewspapers for thlacon ChronicleHerald.

And |’ d mow grass. | done about everyt
had jols.

DePue: You did about everything except clean out the chicken coop, right?

Bentele: (laughter) That’' s right, | woul dn’t do

about it, wherDadmoved to town after he sold the farm and everything, he

actually bought albck right at the south edge of Macon, almost in the

country. And he bought a whole square block. And we actually brought one of

our milk cows to town with udNe had a barn on this propewjth a big

house. And we raised a big garden the same way aglvea the farm. And

we had this milk cow. They had a pasture in the back there by the farmhouse.

Of course, that’'s all been built up no
milk cow, and we was practically just like on the farm.

DePue: So,itsoundslik¢ our mot her didn’t hate the far
bring a little bit of it with her.

Bentele: Well, yeah, we had to subsist, you know?
DePue: The last year of the warand you were a little bit older by that time 945.
You mentioned before thinkirtpat they had death camps. Do you remember
what your thoughts wer e, or what the f

out what the Germans had been doing?

Bentele: Well, yeah, it was pretty sadiruth be known, our family was probably
involved in some ofti But | never seen any records of them ever being in
there. | think thekind of helped—

22



Norbert Bentele Interview # VRK-A-L-2011035.01

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:
DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:
Bentele:
DePue:
Bentele:
DePue:
Bentele:
DePue:
Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

You mean, your relatives back in Germany?

Yeah, in Germany. In talking to a lotofy relatves—and | ' ve been ov
Germany several times | learnal thatyou could not be againgte Nazis
but you didn’t have to be exactly with

back if you were smartenouglpy ou woul dn’t be invol ved
what they were doingBut still, at the same time, notbeagast it wher e
put your own self in danger. And there was a lot of that went onsAnd

can’ t rifthaylwerginveheey | don’t Kknow. I do kn

ancestors that wrote a book about our family where all of this information
comesfrom was the city treasurer tim, Germany, which is a huge city. So
he had to be connected to be in there.

Do you remember the celebrations when we had VE Day? | think that would
have been in May.

Yeah.
And then VJ Day in August.

Oh, yeah. Yeah. In factife magazine, again, had all the pictures from all
that. And | remembe©Of course, | was in towandwe hadaradio—not a
batterypowered radio. Of course, we already had electricity on the farm. But
we had radios. Of aose, no television. | can remember all of us kids went
together in 1947 and bougkiorn andDada television set. Of course, we
watched it, too. (laughs)

Boy, in 1947. That would have been just when it was getting started.

Yeah, it was. Ya only had three channels. And then, they were not too good.

Were you pulling them in from St. Louis?

And here. You could pull this one in from Quincy, too.

Oh, okay.

Yeah.

Let’ s talk about ¢Ha was 1946gvhean gou startéd? gh s c h
Um-hm.

Were you involved in any extracurricular activities?

Yes, | was a football player.

What position?
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The guard. And the funny thingaboutit ° m not br aglutiing abou
just so happened my two sisters were in school. | never did go to high school

with any of my brotherdMy younger brothers were too young, and they

started a year after me. And my older brother graduated a year before | started.

So | had two sisters atthensa t i me . Il n 1947 and ' 48 M
the best sports teams in the state of Missouri. We had an undefeated football
t eam. I mean, we scored 270 points aga

ever scored more than six points on us. We were condittegremiere team

in Missouri at that time. And we stomped Palmyra and all the rest of these

schools. Hannibal. (laughs) Anyway, all of us kids were Depression kids, and

| lay it to that facth at we had an undefeated girls
undefat ed boys’ basketball team and an u
way, all in that space of time, we won twerfyur games in a row. And they

always compared our team that | served on against one of my younger

br ot h es Heshadtascaatarship téay football when Missouri was the

numberone team in the nationO h , > 11 thi#waveyf 1t i n e
popular coach in Missouri. But they had another powerhouse team when my

brother was playing. | mean, huge. | mean, actually, their stats welte hititt

better than what ours were.

|l " m surprised you tal keldecaask o ut tthh en kg inr
at this time IIllinois doesn’t even hav

|l know it. That seems a |badkdtbhlleButst r ange
that was a very popular sport in Missouri. | mean, the girls all played

basketball. And | mean they played a rough game of basketballlteghad

a little different rules, but-

Were they playing threen-three?

No, they wee playing fiveman teams. And they played almost the same way
as the boysMy sisters, they played a mean game of basketball.

Did you have a basketball hoop at home?

No, we didn’t. Wel | , now, | t ke that
barn.

Once you moved to the city?

Yeah. But , no, I |l ettered in football
got this crooked thumb.

Okay. I ' m assuming by the time you mov
school ,rg@adyveealded, “I ' m not going t

That' s right.
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Did you know what you wanted to do?

Not really. In fact, | had a chance to go to Kirksville Collégaiman
University) because | went up and tried out for the foottedim, and |
actually got on the team.

Kirksville at the time?

Yeah, it was Kirksville Teachers College at the time and Truman University
now. And, of course, | had no money and very few clothes, you know, that
were suitable for a colleg®y. And | thought;You know what? And | said,

“1 don’t think | carheydliodn’hti sofrfigrhty au
that time. You got your room and board
And everything else had to come out of yourppect . And so | di dn

themup on that. | wish | had went back with the G.I. Bill after | got out of the
service. And right shortly after that is when | went to work for the railroad and
stayed with it.

How did you get that job?

Well, | heard from another guy that they were building the last piece of major
railroad line built in the United States. It was between Brookfield, Missouri,
and Kansas City. They had a-aiff, they called it, in Burlington. CB&Qthe
Chicagg Burlington and Quiay RR)in Burlington built a brand new railroad

all the way to Kansas City for eighty miles. And that was then, and | knew
some guys that was working on the line crew. And so | just went over to
Brookfield, applied, and got the job. | was just a coupléays past my
eighteenth birthdayvouc oul dn’t go to wor k befo

re

Actually it turned out to be a good move because when | went in the service a
couple of years later counting from my seniority on the railroad, | come out of

theservicewh a f oreman’s job up in 1111
very well for, you know, the way the union rules were set up. gemyority

you had with thgob that you could take at the time yaentin the service
gave youa chance to bump that guy the job when you come back.

That was federal law, or that was union?

That was a union and federalhatwas to protect the jobs of people that went
into the service at the time of wawthat they could come back and have their
job back.

What was the railroad that you worked for?
Burlington.
The Burlington Railroad.

Yes. Yeah, CB&@-the one that runs through here.
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DePue: CBQ.

Bentele: CB&Q—Chicago, Burlington, and Quincy.

DePue: Okay.

Bentele: We |l | , theoBNSH. The ane that Warren Buffett bought.

DePue: What did you do for the railroad?

Bentele: Well, | started out as a ground man and worked my way up to a lineman in
about a year’'s time. And then was on t

service. Andvhen | come back, | was a lkgang foremanStartedn right
north of Galesburg.

DePue: Okay, tell me what a line gang does.
Bentele: You do all the line work. You build pole lines.
DePue: You're stringing wire?

Bentele: Oh, yeah. Stringing wire. And éfrailroads all hag-still have—their own
communications. Always have had, completely. Right now instead of wires on
pole lines we have microwave systems that handle all the communication, all
the computer work, all the dispatching of traiasd everythinglse. We have
these microwave stations all over the counifihye Burlington itself—andit
wasn’'t near t-hhadovertengheusand milesiofl poleoliaed
And on the main line that runs from Chicago to Denver, in lllinois we had five
full arms d wires up there-the huge pole line that handled everything: all the
telephone circuitdispatcher circuitghe teletype circuitdelegraph circuits.

And we even leased some space to oil companies to run their phone systems
and control the oil lines.

DePue: Well, | want you to paint us a picture of exactly what it means to be working
on this line gang. What kind of work is that?

Bentele: Well, it is very tough and hard work at that tilmecausén the’ 5 Gandsclear
up until, well, probably the 6 Qthesailroad line gangs weparticularly
close to the territory we had to go. T
drive some fancy lift truck alongside of and do your work off of that. We went
across country. And the righbf-way is not conducive to arkynd of a (laugh
s) wheeled vehicle. It was all mairthandwork. But we did have a Caterpillar
that done our heavy workset pole—if you could get it in there where you
needed it. But all the stringing the wire and everything else was done by hand.
You climbed the poles and put it up, and sagged it, and done everything else
that you had to dd/ery difficult work.
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DePue: So, when you’'re saying ctwhandoiyaugallt he po
them?2—thehooks on your shoes?

Bentele: The hooks? Oh, yeahllAjour gearOurf amous saying was, “E
doesn’t have to harness himself” Becau
your gears on, you’'ve got about sevent

the pole was only getting you to where you had to do ywork. And they

were big pole lines. | mean, when we ran out of Chicago, that was a big pole
line up there. And the averabeightof the pole was fortyive foot on up
because you had to clear all the streets and everythindtelses a heavy job.

DeRue: So, the kind of job that people would get hurt?

Bentele: Yeah (laughs), they can get killed very easily. Yep. And the old rulefaidk
you can expect to be injured or be killed on this job. Watch yourself
(laughs).Oc our se, they Huttnthedontbatrobwes
as tight as they are now.

DePue: Well, how did people get hurt, then?

Bentele: Well, one major thing was falling. If something broke with himhejust was
not experienced enough thtewo ul d, what we'otbhercal |, cu
words, lose a hook in a peleandhewould fall. Well, a fall thirty to forty
feet will easily kill you, you know? A

killed or crippled. And, of course, you always had the electricity problem that

y 0 u’ r ceto hgwe if you have any lightning strikes anywhere around. Of

course, we were supposed to get down when that happened, but that could be

miles away—a storm cloudnd it strikes the line, and you might be ten miles

away from ther e, deatrdcutgdgust’like anybgpdyelseg t o ¢
right up closer. So you had to kind of keep an eye on all that. And then also

you had just the danger of things falling on you. We used a lot of tension on

the wires and cables. They could break and snap or get awayduw And

you could also be run over by a train. We had guys that got run over by trains.
They weren’t watching what they were d
they were standing too close to the rail. And | remember thasguys over

in lowa. Trey were a wire takedown crew. They were taking some wires

down. It was in the wintertime, and they were walking down the middle of the
tracks with their hoods up on their pa
busy talking to each other. The train might over them. There was all sorts

of things that can take you, you know?

DePue: Did you have anybody on your gang or your crew that got hurt?

Bentele: | was really lucky. Of course, | watched them real close. | mean, you know, |
made sure that they wegealified to do the job | sent them to do. And | had
oneguyl * | | n e Wewere falong doert some of the old iron wire that

they used to use for telegraph circuif®u just cut it one wagnd then knock
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itdownt hen we’ d cut Helne Bometimgahercutwies c |l ear
would hang up in the other wires up there. Well, it was always against the

rules to jerk that wire down. Well, this kid did. He turned his back like this

and jerked that wire down. Well, that piece of wineow, this is old#8 rusty

iron wire—come right over his cap, went right in his eye underneath here, and

come out in the roof of his mouth. Went right through his palate. And, in fact,

it was cold enough that he didn’t even
away, it jeked him back, (laugh) this wire.

It wasn’t that it?2cut 1 t? |1t just pier

It went right underneath his eye socket, right here. And it went right down into
his mouth. Anyway, the funny thing about it was, | was up in Princetonewhe
this happened. And so | took him into the hospital. He actually had just a little
trickle of blood and just a small cut in his face right here. Went into the
hospital and sat there in the emergency room. And the nurse come out and

said, “Okawnwg whath yowr?” Well, he was ¢
cigarette. And so he took a drag of his cigarette and blew smoke right out of
his eye. And she said, “My Golly, (1l au

got to remember, line crews were a tough bunchuggdell, they were
tough. And, you know, we liked to party

Did a little drinking at night?

OhyeahTherewas all young guys. You know, o
of work. (laughs) | had about twelve to fourteen men all the time.

Wel | | | assume you' ' ve got no place to
moving all the time

Well, we had the outfit carsthe railroad carld converted coaches and
everything else, as our living quarters. And | even had cooks. | had awhan a
his wife that cooked for us. We had a dinex converted diner

Would they feed you pretty well?

Oh yeah. Yep, she was a German | ady fr
forget her.Old Sophia BootlShe was quite a gal. And she was i@ ltlabit of

giving the hobos a little handout down thekdl.the crews on the railroathe
traveling crews or system crews, lived in outfit cars. You had all your

material. | had about nineteen cars in my outfit. You had your digging
equipment. You had yw tool car. You even had a recreation car where they
could set and play cards and, you know, relax. And bunk-danad my own
separate quarters as a foreman. The cooks had theirs in the cook car. And then
we had tenders and waté&ndt h e n, u s hiagelhalfya dozen enatatials

cars where we worked out of. And all of the crethe B&B [bridge and

building], and the welding gangs, and all the gangs had cars. Everybody lived
on the railroad then. Mainly, it was cesffective | d o n *howtHeynladw
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at it now.Theygot more mobile now. But you had to be closer to your work.

And we’ d move r iWehttve right iwd that senallitobvn wa s
and set up. And we’'d be right next to
any time traveling to the worlAnd it was quite an outfiAnd wintertime was

kind of rough in those cars tpbecauseou had coafired stoves in there to

heat them up. And you had the watdiremember one time in Buda, lllinois |

had a twentyfive thousand gallon tender, which i a steam engine, for

water supply. Used to fill it up in Galesburg. And it got so cold that winter

that we couldn’t get any modfie water i n
thousand gallons. Usually you could chop a hole in it and water would always

be iquid in the middle. | mean around the edges it would freeze. This winter it

got twenty below. Stayed that way. Froze the whole tender. It was full of

water. And they had to take it down to the roundhouse and stick a steam hose

in it and melt all that iceut of the tender. (laughs)

DePue: Now, did it crack it or burst it open?

Bentele: No. Uhuh. It was a big, old meténder.

DePue: What would be considered a good day of stringing wire? How far would you
string it?

Bentele: Well, three of usvould godown the cutoff where it was all clear pole lire

there was nothing else except pole line, and there was nothing in a@fway

course, it was really muddy, because it was brand newafghtiy. They

graded it, you know? In the gang, they had to have someawidyg the wire

out off of the motor car and the push car, and they had to reel it off of reels.

And this is numbenine copper. And there would be two or four guys,

depending on the terrain, who would lay that wire. They had rings in their

hands that thewould run the wire over, and lay it down by the pole line. And

then, we always had one guy that had a long pawme#blocksthat he would

hook into thepoleand snap onto the line. And then, it would even itself out.

And then, three of us-usually abouithree, sometimes foarwould carry the

wire up on the poles, put it in place, sag it. You had temperature gauges that

you had to lookatduring the day because your wire had to sagany inches

below thearm You actually sighted it so that in the wirttene when it drew
up—contracted—i t woul dn’ t pul | i n two. Howe vV e
it got really hot, it wouldn’'t be so s
wrap up. So that had to be watched. And the way you done-thats real
interesting~y ou’ d | ook wunder neaarrhantdight bot t om

down to the next pole wherethecress m was. And you’'d | oo
much sag was in that wire. And i1it’”d te
inchesof slack, dependingonthetemperat e . And t hat’' s how vy

And then you would signal the guy that was up aheald, hell, fifteen or

twenty spans aheasghe would be pulling on the blocks until you stopped

him. And then you made sure that the slack was right, and then he would stub
it off, and you would tie it in and move on to the next one. And we would
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string six miles—threeofus-a day. That’'s a |l ot. And
time. We were young.

[ n e Wewas oveo at Breokfield, and this one guy worked

for the powero mpany . Now they worked differer
handle their wires naturally. And t hei
climbing and stuff is about the same. He comes out with his belt and

everything else. And weks,cdnddvecatriedwe ar no
ourtewi re in a |l oop on our belt, period.
hand | ine with us because we’d throw t
the pole, and put it over thereonthecrass m and put it i n pl e

do that. And so he wore his tools. Well, he made one pole that morning, and
the rest of t hewalkaddosvn thegrack and keeprup with h a v e
the rest of wus stringi.nlg IwWi rnee.v eSo fhoer’gd

He wantedto hireoutas | i neman because, you know,
guite a bit. And the old boss said, “N
course, he couldn’t have hired him any
sad“Hel | , you ain’t goithypupromotdhalloafe hi m a

us” You know? And, anyway, he come in at noon and went over to his car
openedhis trunk threwall of his tools in there. And we saitiVhat are you

doing? He said, “I’'m quitting.” He said,
Andthe ol d foreman actwually said, “Don’t
ti me?” And he said, “Keep it 't was a

You'd probably consider that a complin

Yeah. Andwereallwasn’t trying to woaoghavehi m t ha
races, just to see who could do the mo
anymore.

Well, you graduated from high school, I think, in 1950, right?
Right. Umhm.

Which would mean that, a couple of months after you graduateslybeone
month after you graduateethe Korean War starts.

Yeah, and you know what? | don’t remen
You don’ t?
No.

Well, by that time yowerealready working on the line it sounds like

Yeah, wel | [|vitetheeKorean Wdr.eherk evere still skirmishes
going on on the island with the Japanese soldiers. The Second World War
wasn’'t really over with yet. And there
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like my brotherand the rest of thenthe service wagtidl very active in
everybody’s mind and business and ever

us a disfavor when he called that a *“p
Berlin crisis. The Trieste deal was going on. And you had all this here stuff
constait y going on, so you -ftedgddwartlt | ook at
looked like another hot spot. Yeah, you knew that something went on, and you
remembered that, you know, they’ve tal

of it. But i tinon peapleluntil we stadted’gettingaadot aj h

soldiers killed in action over there in the first couple of momthenthey

started pushing everybody down the Pusan perimeter. And then that got
everybody’'s attention. Weldricantwdps?t t he
You know, here we’ve got an army over
What is this? You know, that’'s when it
actually the day it started’caudsetheyr eal | vy
come acrosthe line Theythought,“ O k,ou know, another push by the
Communists,and that’s about what it was.

When you first heard about it, did you even have an idea where, exactly,
Korea was?

Yeah, | knew where Korea was.
ReadingLife magazine helps in that stuff.
Well yeah. Well | like geography. So yeah, we knew where it was.

At what point in the next couple of years did you thinkiell, gosh, this
might have an impact on me, persondly

| knew several guythat were already in the service back there. One of my

buddies | grew up on the farm with had quit school and joined the Airborne.

And he was over there, for one thing. And | knew several other guys that had

been in my higkschool class that was in thengee. And going in the service

was what everybody done. |l mean, it is
hoopla, you know, that they hawtelly eah, it s somet hing t
and you can go do it. So going in the service was not that bigezia d

Was being on the line crew something that was an essential position?

Well, yeah, it wasThatwas another thing, too. | was promoted to a lineman.

I n other words, |l couldn’”t go any furt
know, tree or four or five more years, at leashaybe more. It all depended

on how fast the turnover. And | needed to learn more about what | was doing.

| wanted to be a repairman. You had to know the equipment and everything

else. Wel] they had no system onefailroadthatdone that. You had to know

that or take an outside coulisesomethindike radio or whatever. You

coul dn’”t gai n*Yolhkaow what® dhe kervicehnwouwldgob d |,

good place to do that, in the Signal Cotgsnd | was the right ageOf
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course, | could have gotten defertadink because | was in an essential job.

But | wasn’t sure. And a buddy of mine
worked on the line gang then. In fact, | got his job when we needed
somebody. And nhet swe dg o “iWwhtyo dtohe ser vi
“Wel | , . "don’t care

What timeframe would this have been? Do you remember?
About 1952.
Early 5272

Yeah.We knew the recruiter there at Macetthe Army recruiter. And | said,
“Yowwmwhat ? I f we can go in and get i
mind doing itbecausé¢ * d | i ke to go to school . And
job, I need to know something more than climbing polAsad with the idea

of maybe, you know, even going tadio schoct-radio repair. And so we

went down and talked to the guy. And |
for a branch of t hMows elr vdane’'?t” gHuea rsaan tde
going to end up there, but if you quakfypass all the testst h awthéresyou

stay.” So | said, “Okay, |l et’”s sign up
got into the service-in the Signal Corps. And besides, it also helped that |

was i n communication. So that give me
inthere.Buty ou sti | | had to qualify with the

take every Tom, Dick, and Harry. They wanted a guy to have enough brains to
(laughs) understand what we was doing.

| would think thougt hat there’ s pl entwthywfr opport
kind of skill also inthe Air Force and the Navy.

Oh, yeah.
Either of those branches were

No, | was interested in the Army. Even though my brother was in the Navy, |
never thought about it. | wanted the Army

Now I think I know the answer to this: Did you have a girlfriend or any
attachments at the time?

Well not really.Of course | had a lot of girlfriends, you know? But none of

them real serious always wondered about guys like some of my buddies
aound here now, that’s in this group.
went overseawhen they were drafted.

You mean right before they shipped over, they decided to get married?
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Yeah, yeah. Al most al | arriedto thelr wivas. | know,
They all got married when they went in the service or when they went

overseas. When they come out of basic and come home and they were

assigned. | always felt that thatwasamistakec ause | ' m | ooki ng
| was a platoon seegint. And one of the things that you always had to guard
against when you’ wasyouwanttokeeppadplat si t uat
concentratingn what they’  re doing and where
in the moment. And | 'udheadlhevaopubvet el | t he
here. You go back home to visit. You |
want some guy roaming around thinking about his wife back home, or his

kids, or whatever. | wanted him to be there. And | made sure they did.

You hal mentioned, a couple of times before, that
And you missed out on a lot of fun, too, if you were married.
(laughs)

When you went on R and R to Japan, those guys missed out on one hell of a
lot of fun. (laughs)

We | | , ngto ask ypwto hold off on that story for a little bit, Norbert.
What | do want to ask you abewtindthis might sound a little bit peculiar
butl know thatLife magazine was important to the family when you were
growing up. Did you continue that traditiqqourself?

Well, yeah, | didMy oldest brother always subscribed to it. | did when | was
locatedor if | could get it. And | always read it, you know, whenever | had a
chance. And now | have all the copied.dé magazine that was published
during the Korean War. | was able to buy one from a dealer down in Missouri
that had a whole barn full &iife magazines. (laughs)

Wow. You had told me before that | should ask you about Margaret Bourke
White..

Well, she was the main photogteer forLife magazine. And she took some

very good photographs and everything else over in Koksdong as she was

over there—she was famous, by the wayaking her pictures and everything

else, the Korean War stayed on the front page. And it was featly. When

she was not over there anymore, the ot
reputation that she did. Yeah.

Okay. Well, we’ve got you into the ser
for basic training.

Okay, | processed in at Keas City. Then they sent us down to Camp
Crowder, Missouri, which is south of K
all of our indoctrinator~ry ou know, where you' ' d actua
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and swear yourself in, and rwehetrhee ywod ' d
decide on what branch of the service y
extensive tests. | never have heard too many people talk about their IQ tests. |

don’t know what they done. But we had
a full range. Ad luckily when | was in high school, | took physics and
chemistryandmatfb ut not a f ul | cour seltookk mat h

theOCY Of fi cer s’ C test whicld| avas eualBied oo vath the
IQ score | made. There was another that said he was an electrical engineer
graduated from college that group Anyway, hetook that same OCS test

and flunked it. And | passed it. I al w
t haty'oss know, he’d been t o shlelwanmn?al yeart
(laughs) 1711 tell you what his probl e

come out of a book, and what math question or whatever. | mean, he was a

whiz on figuring out schedules and everything else. But he did not even know
whatacrescentwrnch | ooked | i ke gearsodanythmg t kno
like that. He had no common knowledge that you would expect some guy to

have. He just simply did not ever see it or do it. So he was-auject

person. Sanywayf r om t her e, ,ligctdeparatecciroremy f or get
buddy—the guy | went in the service with. FrankyD&as his name-e got

held back for something for a week. And | went ahead on down to basic. |

think 1 was by myself. And they shipped us from Camp Crowder. Anyway, |

ended up in NevDrleans and had a day to spend in New Orleans which was a

real treat for a guy eighteen, nineteen years old. (laughter) And this was back

in the old daysvhen Bourbon Street was not a tourist attraction. It was a

hellhole. I mean, hell, during the day teevas drunks laying out in the street
andthere werea bunch of whorehouses and everything else. It was a dirty old
dingy alley, really. But it was interesting. | got a big kick out of New Orleans.

(laughter)
DePue: As |l ong as you ickiouaf New Odeans,huhd o bi g a Kk
Bentele: Yeah, that’s right. And | finally got

Georgia, where Camp Gordon is where they trained the Signal Corps. Still do
tothisdayt hat ' s a Signal Corps post.

DePue: Well the signifi@ance here is, the Army actually gave you the job you wanted

Bentele: Yeah, really. And | qualified for it because, you know, there was quite a few
guys that signed up for different bran
And, you know, they had the rigto do that. Of course, they always told you
that after you swore in. (laughter)

DePue: “Wel come to the Ar my, yeah?

Bentele: That’'s one reason why | didn’t go to C

went through basic, amdy buddy was just in the nexbmpany, about a week
behind me. And sbwent through basicombat training. And thenwe went
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over to tech school which is telephone installation and repair. That means all
the switchboards and all the instruments thaywould have with a

telephone syste. T twhat I'was inWhile | was in theremy buddy and |
wereboth in the same company théime techs c hool compani es.
never forget thisThe old first sergeant there was, | think, a major in the

Second World War. And he was quite a ginogsoldier.He knew both of us

had passed the OCS testd we were supposed to go from that school over to
the leadership company and then to OCS school.

So Camp Gordon would have been running its own OCS caourse

| guess th&tps where tdheynw’t go that
ahead and wenbutafter looking that over, | said this Korean War was really

a hot war. You know, t handldhouglatsboud | o't

f

it, and | said, “Yoanchkohservce iwartoBeirBei ng

I know | ' 1| do wel | in here.?” I di dn’

thetop grade Thetop people get their choices, and then it works on down to
the infantry. And if all the top places in the Engineers ardSilgnal Corps

and everything else is filled, you'r

platoon up a hill in Korea. And | thought,Y ckun o w , |l " m going
what’' §Sgoold. di dn’ tThe oidHKirst serghaamtigged meu r s e .

somethingter i bl e about that. He sYaugdo,. "you

But my buddy did. He ended up down in Puerto Rico as an artillery advisor.
(laughter)

And never made it to Korea?
No.Anyway,l " m gl ad | took the choice.
| had a Id more fun, and a lot more experiences than the other way.

Well, for a lot of kids getting into basic traininig t

e
(0]

S pretty rigoro

l " m thinking that after growing up on

under and being on the linesgv for those years

Yeah. | never had a bit of troubM/henl went into basic training, Weighed

195 pounds. | come out 195 pounds. And that was down in the heat in
Georgia. | mean, | was as tough as they come. And it never bothered me a bit
to do all the calisthenics and road woylkou know, | imagine some of the

guys that was in that platoon thought/hat in the hef ‘(laughs) In fact, |

c

0

t

k

was the squad | eader i n b abstaclecoursesai ni ng
the way thasegoudrg@osuppough there, an
anybody to race me backwards through the same course. Go backwards,

which is a lot harder than going thataway because the ropes and everything

el se is on the other si denevefgottbbae boar d

you know?

Remember any of your instructors you had in basic?
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Bentele: I remember this one guy. [ never fo
held the calisthenics clasghe physical trainingThey were shorsergeants
andboth of them were real stockiye could stand there and do esxened
pull-ups, and talk to you for ten minutes, and never stop doinguoned
pull-ups. | was always amazed at that. He could stand there and do those one
armed puHups and tell us what toxpect. But no, | never had a bit of trouble.
| was in good shape. In fact, it was easier than the line gang. It was.

DePue: There you go.
Bentele: It was. It was easier, physically, than working in the line gang.
DePue: Well, having all this handen, realexperience, and a pretty rugged
environment out there, what was it like then when you went to the specialty
training? Were you |l earning the same t
Bentele: No. Mainly, we went to class. The way the Army teaehesdid hen—is,

really kind of a neat way. First you went to the laboratory in the morning in a
sit-down classroom with the equipment and everything else. And you had to
learn how to wire it and how to repair it. They would give you equipment that
had stuff wrongwith it, and you had to find it.

DePue: Is this telephones and switchbodtds

Bentele: Yeah, switchboards and all the rel ated
related to communications sap. And then in the afternoon you would go out
in the field anddo the same thing in the field. It was applied to the field work.
So they really had a way of instilling that in you really well. You learned it
first in the lab—in the classroom-and then you went out in the field and put
it to work. And actually, they haal good way.

DePue: Did you enjoy all of that, then?
Bentele: | did. Yeah, | really did.
DePue: What was youMOS? coming out of there?

Bentele: Okay, 30%7at ' s
DePue: 3-0-9-7.

Bentele: Yeah, that’'s telephone | my®Ofaduksealt i on an
was sent home for a leave between assignmerts ortwelve days | think it
was. And the funny thing about that was, if you were coming out of Georgia
back in those days you have a hell of a time ridinghe highways across
country thisavay. To get to Missouri from Georgia was a feat. If you had to

2MOS: Military Occupation Specialty, numberfsdt convenience and brevity.
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catch a train, you either had to go north or south or straight west to get it. |

wanted to get home as soon as | coadd hitched a ride with this guy from

Warrenton, Missourihe was permant stationed down there. Aodl course,

thoseguyst hey’ d go home. The training camp
and they’ d | u“RitetpMissoura Call sahdisa’ &olu p :

hitched a good ride with him andtgegp hereln aday and a H&al was back in

Missouri. Butlater| got on the train to San Francis¢avas stationed dhe

Presidig andthat was right in San Francisco. And thdseeold sergeants

that have been on ROTC duty for a number of yeagse on levy to go over

to theFar EastHerel was, a buck private-private E2 then. And they said,

“Where are yougoingAnd | said, “1"m goifHow to Pr
in the hell did you get assigea@d to Pr
“No, —whjy®st He Is,aitdhat“ "Welt he premier Ar
country That beats anythingelse’ ve been trying to get
career. Haven’'t made it yet.” And it w

It was the SixthArmHe adquarters, beautiful ca

tourist attraction ght today. And you were stationed right in San Francisco,
right in the Marina District. And you got@lassA pass when you went in.
We worked with a civilservice employee fixing communications generally
just right there on the base and around the Sawmck@ area where they had
a lot of stuff going on. I was therefew e | | , It wasthedirstofe e .
November when | got back in Macon on leave. So | was there prahabéy

or four months before they got a big levy that everybody had to go on levy
They had taeplace a lot of troops in Korea.

“Levy, meaning you're going to a new
Levy—yeah, another assignment. They levied so many stateside.

So you say you had three or four months at Presidio?

Yeah. Umhm.

You also mentioned you went home for a while. Did you have any other
brothers that were also in the service at the time?

No, not at that time. A little bit later my neyxbunger brother was in Germany
about the time | come back from Koré#e had enlisted and was assigned to
Germany. He spent his whole career over in Germany.

What did your parents think about you being in the service and then heading
to Korea?

Well, you know what? Here’s Wwtoat I don
problems with more or less a nervous breakdown about thaatidhehe was

having difficulty. So | assured her that | would never be sent to KOfea.
courseDadknew different. But for a long time when | wrote home, | would
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sugarcoat everythin ou know, this is how it 1is,
you know, stuff I|ike that. But when |
in Japan. And no problem.” But | wasn’

overseas, | remember | gavm a kissand shooky dad’ s hand and
the train.

Tell me a little bit more about what you were dowgjle you had those four
months in Presidio.

Well, they had the old shore battery emplacements. At that time, they were

putting in rockets and guidedissiles. So we put in a lot of fueontrol cable

in Marin County across the Bamd also, on the peninsula area in San
Francisco. |l | ove San Francisco. That’
times there in San Francisco. That was a nufoherplace(laughs)

So, what was going on when you were not on duty?

Well generally what you would do is head down to the Tenderloin District

which they called it then. | think they still do. Probably Haight Ashbury when

the flower children got dowrhere. It was about the same area of town. That

had all the honkytonks in it. All the
want to see or do. And of course, being eighteen or nineteen years old, they

would serve you in the taverns. But you kind ofl ha play it cool. (laughs)

I "1 1 tell this ontheyyhadehe dffimtsAnyway, o
posted in every barracks. You know, pl
to. Well, they just plain advertised the places. Everybody went to the places
they sid not to go to. So, a lot of the places that werdiwiits were the gay
bars and they had a lot of them in San Francisco. But if you watched yourself,
and you went in the gay bar and sat up at the end of the bar next to the door,
you would get free dinks coming to you almost as soon as you got in there.

So you’'d drink two or three drinks, an
you, you just got up and walked out the door. (laughter) All the guys used to
do that. That was a way to gete drinks.

Well, Norbert, you don’t necessarily h
wondering if you remember any of the VD lectures you might have gotten?

Oh, yeahThosewere hot and heavy. You ever see one of those movies?
No, | &eon’t thin

Yeah, of course, they were all black and white. And they used to show some

of theterriblestpictures if you caught the syph#isand | guess they were all

true. You know, there’s certain kinds
will definitely rot your thing off, you know? (laughs) And they had all that

that they showed. Come to find ountthe prokit that the services always
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used then there was an ointment titimgtd i dn’t do any good at
They issued them anyway.

When you were on dutythe artillery sites—was that all you were doing?

No, we were also maintaining the telephone system in the private residences

there on post. You know, the officers and the first tlyeelers had beautiful

homes there on th@ost ard they had a telephone system. All that was part of

our duty. And also the Letterman General Hospital which was a huge complex

down on part of Presidi®f course, the Sixth Army headquarters was a vast
compl ex al so. | do nweteinkhatanavthereavas many o f
always somebody wanting their phone moved or changed, or something was

wrong somewhere. | think there were six cresis of us guys working out of

the central office, that went around.
hadever yt hing wrapped up by two or thre
and set at the Bay, and watch the water.

Well, from working on the line gang, (laughs) this is quite a change of pace.
Oh, yeah. Yep, yep. It was.

Yo u' r edlythninkondpadbout this time, This Army life is pretty good.

Yeah, like | said, it was a lot easier than the line gang. (laughter)

Where to after that?

Well | come home on leave, and th@assent out to Seattle, Washington, to

Camp Lawtor—therepo depbat Lawtor—whichis a hellholelt should have

been burned down after the Second World MWaprobably before. It was the

same barracks and everything else they had during the Second World War. Of
course, this was getting into Newber and the first part of December and

getting cold. Seattle in the wintertime is not a place you really digoguse

it’s wet. And t hose oi{fodtwidelIrmeancybus wer e
could put a bunk on each sidelouble or triple-layered buks. And you had

just about this much space to walk between them down the barracks.

About two feet.

Yeah. And these barracks were a hundred feet long with a stove at each end of
them. And they had nothing biatr-papermroof and tatpaper siés. Just

temporary buildings is what they were. Aid course, you was only

supposed tbethere like maybe two or three days or a week at the most. You
just processed through. And they had a mess hall there which was-thege
biggest mess hall, | thinky any service. They fed on the average of twenty

five thousand guys in that mess katihe mess hall-every meal. You had

four lines that run in it. And if you stood in line for three meals a day, you

stood in line all day long because it was no soonekfastwould get done,
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they started feeding the dinner. | mean, just to show you how big it was,

besides | don’ t —Kifypsity—htloereweneaeguladudtyo o k s
people Theywould put 210 men on KP in that one mess hall to handle all the
restoft . So that shows you how big it was

forget this | never did pull this dutybut they had six guys with wheelbarrows

and shovels that would go outside to a great big coal pile that was put out

there. And there would be threa each side. They had coal ranges lined up

down through the middle of —iftp@a ki t chen
sixty of them—all going Andthese guys would do nothing but shovel coal in

those ranges all day long to keep them stoked up. It was a wightm

Did you know, at that time, where, exactly, you were headed?

No. Unh-uh.Y o u Knaw that you were going to go down to Pier 91 which
was an embarkation station where you got on your, shibyou knew
nothing about where to go. Welllcarried my records from Presidio. | had

them with me. Give them to the clerk w
records,” because all the guys compl ai
sent from their previous assignment in time. | carried nlihe.guy down at

Presidio said, “Takeugrhedsces swvia hl gtouf ad

did. Well, my name started withBa | was the first rotation out of there,

within a couple of days. | go down to get my pay. At that time they had to

give youwhat they call a flying fifty fifty dollars to spend on your last night
stateside. Had to have it. So |I come u
records. They said, “Your pay record i
me back to another two week

Well they still hadn’t found it.
weeks | shipped out the first day of the new yealanuary 1st, out of Pier 91.
In that hellhole, with nothing to do. | mean, you had no duty whatsoever. |

wentdowntothemesah | and told the mess sergea
Give me a job.” Well you know, it was
didn’t have mealsivmadtson he ngaifdr “ Oh, I
you.” The only t hi ngmehlevouldseive theemeato wa s
in that one | i hecausevdrybady wanted mare. And don e

that’'s the only thing | had to do. Wel
And so that wasn’t too bad. I ewen tol
|l > ve got money. | donJustmanreke di ti taf fD.o’n’ "t
we can’'t send you out of here without

So (laugh)finally, 1 get down to Pier Qaandhere it is, right before
the New Year holiday. Everybody in Seategoing to the big blast. So me
and another, | think, two guyswe ended up with these three gals out in some
apartment there somewhere in Seattldorget where now. You could see

Mount Rainier, I know that. —%Healdit beaut i
was on New Year’'s Day. And we were alr
hol ding place where your next step is
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other words, they cournartial you during war time if you (laughs) miss that.
So we’ re out gatshnd pagying/all night. Ended epeout there,

and | said, “You know what?” We had no
going on. | said,.”" EoeenkndhwugWwetdhelyenmt
togooufl said, “We’'d bettlert obd igwadi nogu tb awvhk
shipping out.” And so we | eft the girl

(laughs) the next day, we shipped. | mean, they assigned you a number and
l ined you up, and you’'d go on the ship
to do insead of hanging out thebecausehey could have got you.

So, you shipped on January 2nd?

January 2nd.

Of 19537

Yeah.

Okay, so the war has been going on for two and a half years, by that time.
Yeah. With o sight in end. Yeah.

Well, the peace talksy that time had been going on for a year and a half.

Yeah, they hadEverybodyhad figured that was just a phony bunch of bull,
you know. And, generally, it was.

Okay. We’ veclloeseen tat ttwhoi shours today, N
to do is, to get you over there. So, if you can tell us anytihiaigyou
remember about getting across the ocean.

Okay, well, | was lucky. | was assigned to Bgckner which was a beautiful
sh p. |I"ve even got a picture of it her

Wel | | * v e glevas really impressed, toeking at tloisothing. This
is not your average Liberty ship, is it?

No, no, it isn’t. I n fact+thawal s what ofh
shipped over on was tiBuckner And t here’s only about,
than a hundred troops. Anegk were only down here, on the second deck.

That was it?

In the middle of the ship. Yeah. That was it. All the rest ofas dependents:

kids, wives, officers. That’'s what the
Well, the kids and the wives are going
then
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Yeah. And dependents, atitbserotating back. But there was only, | could
say, a hundred or maybe a hundred and fifty at the most that was on that
ship—enlisted personnel. Troops. It was the fastest ship on the West Coast.
And it could make the crossing in nine days from Seattle to Yokohama. We
started out, of course, up thrduthe greatircle route. Real rough ocean

very rough—andgot about halfway over there and tarine Adder which

was a Liberty ship-onestacker.

TheMarine Adde?

Yep. Therewas three ships called tMarine Adder theMarine Serpent-

wha was the other one? | can’t -remembe
stacker tin cans. The old Liberty troop ships. Very reaghry bad

conditions on them. And they packed them full, too. Well, we got out there,

and run across thdarine—of course, theprobably called for th8uckner

Their anchor had beat a hole in the bow. And we had to stay with that ship all

the way across to Yokohama. That ship would disappear into the waves. |

mean, just like this. And they were in danger of sinking, so they wémed

other ship to stay close by. It took us eighteen days to make the trip instead of

nine.

Did you find out if you were a sailor at heart, and your stomach was up for it?

Oh, boy—seasick the first three days. And four days on that Bkéto died.

You were never really, truly sick unti
You are so sick that you can’t do anyt
ship—which we were, luckivand | ay stretched out, yo
But the minte thatyousatyio ack si ck again. You thre
telling you. It s terrible. Terrible.

Did you get to the mess hall very much, or the galley?

No, never got to the mess hall. Well, | did, after | got over the seasickness.

Buu t here was one guy, as always, that
orange or an apple or something, you know, for the guys that were in their

bunks and couldn’t get up. I woul d hav
have got wup,.ltwastertiblet el | you t hat

But after three days you kind gbt over it?

Yeah, you gradually get over it. And t
know? It’s kind of funny how sick you

Where did you finalf make port, then?

Okay. Yokohama. Everybody shipped into Yokohama, and everybody went to
Camp Drake. Camp Drake is where they had these big wooden barracks that
were battaliorsized. An old Japanese army base. And (laughs) in fact, they

42



Norbert Bentele Interview # VRK-A-L-2011035.01

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

hadfirepat r ol s al | night |l ong in those bai
They were tinderboxes. Anyway,lf that’ s
you was going to Korea, you went and got all field geainter gear, and

your rifle, ammunition belt, agska. Whatever you codldwh at ever you’ d
have. And then, they also posted orders for the guys that stayed in Japan.

About a third of the guys stayed in Japan, and tfoaghs of us went into

Korea. And then we got back on shipboard at Yokohatha General

Weige] which is a twestacked Liberty ship. Not a bad ship, but they had so

many of us crowded on thereabout four thousand on that shWiie had all of
thisgearwithu¢ hat you didn’t have room to ha
without stepping on somebodfnd we sailed around the peninsula and ended
up at Inchon where we unloaded onto LSTs that took us into the shore. And
finally got on shore about, oh, must have beé@nwvas getting dark. Took us
over to an olgshotup train. We set on there until midnightith the snow
falling and getting colder. And th
you' ' re in a combat zone, because t
it down in the vestibule of the train. Pick out a couple of guys and tell them to
loadtheir rifles and stand guard out there. And anybody that comes close to
the train that doe s-ashdotthem. (laughg 8ad answer
that' s alilkéhe”" Waga, here!” You know?

en,
hey

| think, Norbert, this is probably a good place to s®p, the next session can
be all about what happened in Korea.

All right.

And then, getting you back home. But t
skill for telling us, in a lot of detail, what it was like growing up on the farm
anddur ng t he Depression and during Worl d
stuff. | look forward to the next session.

Okay. Very good.

(end of interview#1 #2 continues)

43



Norbert Bentele Interview # VRK-A-L-2011035.01

Interview with Norbert Bentele

# VRK-A-L-2011-035.02
Interview # 2: August 31, 2011
Interviewer: Mark DePue

COPYRIGHT

The following material can be used for educational and other nomsommercial
purposes without the written permission of the Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library.
AFair useo criteria of S#&LO7 mustbe fblldwed. dhfeset he Co
materials are not to be deposited in other repositories, nor used for resale or
commercial purposes without the authorization from theAudio-Visual Curator at the
Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library, 112 N. 6th Street, Springfield, lllinois 62701.
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DePue: Today is Wednesday, August 31, 2011. My name is Mark DePue, the director
of oral history at the Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library. And today is my
second session with Norbert Bentele. | alwaggeto hesitate to make sure |
say your last name correctly.

Bentele: You said it just perfectly right.

DePue: Okay, very good. Last time we had a great conversation about growing up in
the Depression and through World War Il and working with the railroad
stringing wire right along next to the railroad. Got you through your military
training, and basically, you had just gotten to the port of Inchon when we had
to quit | ast ti me. |l should mention al
appreciate you opengnt up for us. But if you could start with some of the
initial impressions you got of Korea just by sitting in the port before you even
make landing.

Bentele: Okay. Well, we moved from Yokohama to Inchon by the U.S.S8&heral
Weige] a troop ship. Andhiere was about four thousand of us on the troop
ship | estimate, with all of our gear. Very uncomfortable. It took about three
days to come around the peninsula and go up to Inchon. Because there were
Sso many guys and so muc hhaelghavepplacant on
to step on the deck. We get to Inchon and, of course, you had to set way off at
Inchon because of the high tides in there. And so we were out probably at
least a couple of miles at the entrance of the harbor. And right next to us was a
big Swedish hospital ship that the government of Sweden had furnished. |
forget what it was. | think it was callédercy. They had a helicopter landing
platform on there. And all day long and night too, when they could, they was
bringing wounded in fronthe front and landing them on the hospital ship.
And we set out there. You can imagine the impression that it made on the new
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recruits. We were setting out there on the troop ship waiting to get off, and
here they’ re | andi ng dumédiontbethospitals al | d
ship.

Remind us of what time of year this was and what year this was.
Well, this would be in the end of January

Fifty-three, then?

Fifty-three.

Okay.

Right about in there. Actuallyhte f i ghti ng was there at
never pushed the Chinese much further than the Imjin River. You could

actually see artillery fire on the hills, you know, up north when it was clear.

So anyway, we sat out there most of the day, and the ksressmme of them

come around in light boats. They let them come right up to the ship. You

could look over and look down in their boat. And now you think about the

problems they have nowadays of, you know, terrorists blowing up a ship. |

often thoughtabouhtat . They’ d | et those Koreans
know who they were. There were no chal
in these skiffs and come up to the shi
throw them a pack of cigarettes or whatever. Anywlagy would get right by

where the sewer spilled out of the ship continuously, all the sewage from the
latrines and probably the kitchen and everything else. And they had seines.

They would hold it up and |l et the sewa
take every bit of everything out of there, even toilet paper and particularly
thromedaway ci garette butts. And they’'d |
boat there and have them all laying on a piece of cloth or something, drying

them out. So right out dhe sewage out of the side of the ship. And anything

they could catch, that was there. So you know people were desperate. And so

that went on all of the day. Finally, they unloaded us in LSTs [Landing Ship

Tanks] that bring us into the sherdecause thawvas the only craft that could

come in there successfullyand land you right on the beach. We landed right

in the invasion port, right at Inchon; | forget how far, but | know it was darn

cold, I know that. And within the first hour after we landed, it sthrt

snowing; the first real snow of that year happened as soon as we stepped on

| and. I me an , before they didn’t have
snow. We marched over about a mile to the railroad yards and got on a bunch

of really (laugh) sheup coaches. | mean, they had no windows in them, bullet

holes all over, holes in the floor. Just wood seats inside and, of course, no

heat, no nothing.

When you say, “No windows, you mean n
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Bentele: No glass in the windows. Ely was all shot out. And so they loaded us on all
those cars. Now some of the guys that got off the ship, they went to units
around Seoul. They had trucks there waiting for them. But we were going up
to Ch’unch’”on which i s ochofdwiegasterm t he f
side but right wup pretty far north. I
Korea, but | think maybe Ch’unch’” on do
38th parallel. But anyway, we get on there and set down. Of course, like
everything n the Army, it was hurry up and wait. And we set there for several
hours.

| always remember the first thing that they done. The people that
brought us over there set up a case of ammunition in each vestibule of the
thing and selected several guys withithiéles as guards. They told them to
|l oad up, and anybody who approached th
halt, shoot them. And that brings it to your attention. (laughs) Anyway, while
were setting there-and this always happens in a situatide lihis—some old
boy from the Tennessee hills managed to keep his harmonica with him. And
he started playing those old lonesome hillbilly songs. (laughs) Kind of hard to
remember that. Anyway, we set there for what seemed like hours. Finally,
they got an Bgine and a crew there to come and pull us out. The way they
worked the railroads in Korea was they had a civilian crew, engineer and
firemen, but they also had a U.S. Army railroad battalion. And they also had
an engineer. They were douldlaty up therehe way they done it. We left
Inchon, and went through Seoul. The old Union Depot of Seoul is still
standing and stil!] i n use. I't was the
because it was blowed out. It was unusable. But it went on by, and then we
keptgi ng north, kept going north, kept
how far are going to go up here becaus
country?” (laughter) But we ended up i
repo depo was, and the unitswouldsenduc ks over there. I
they done that every day, or maybe they knew when the shipment was coming
in.

DePue: “Regeqpo,” meaning replacement depot ?

Bentele: Yeah, replacement depot. And so you just had to wait till a truck came from
your unit where you was assignedyas assigned to the Fourth Signal, X
Corps. Then finallyI will always remember this-right before that, the
“Tr iNp lc&k e | " —tAe FiveFivd-Feve Artillery—that backed up the
65th Infantry Regiment, the Puerto Rican regimbat just been overrun the
second time. They were overrun three times in the space of several years.
They had to act as infantry. In fact, a lot of those guys were killed or captured
because the Puerto Rican regiments broke and ran, and the Chinese jumped
right down their throat. Anyway, there were several trucks there almost
begging for replacement for the Trigkei c kel . And they’' d say
the TripleNickel? Anybody for the TripldNi c kel ?” Ther e was a
that were being assigned to thatlkry unit. But they had a rough go of it.
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And anyway, finally a truck from X Corps showed up, and we get on it. And
that was at least about another two hours or better over really bad roads to get
to the X Corps area. And in from the X Corps area yaltbaet another

truck to take you over across the cregke PohamRiver—to where the X

Corps headquarters was.

All of this was in the bitter cold weather. When you come out of Camp
Drake, they didn’t issue you—%heur park
mountain parka. You had an O.D. [olive drab] wool overcoat and not even
those new slick overcoats in gabardine that they have now. But some of them
were issued back, | think, into World War I. They were wool overcoats. Fairly
warm, but not anything to halike a parka. They give you, of course, a field
jacket and a pile jacket to go underneath that. But they give you two wool
blankets. No sleeping bags. And so when you slept, you always wanted to get
you about three guys or four guys because we alsoasigpnt floors or
wherever. And vy o uovrlaptbemltogetheruyou kbelva nk et s
and you had to |l ay on as much as you h
good to put all your bDblankets over the
ground. Youneeded the insulation underneath of you also. So you had to kind
of split things up. And usually, about three guys with six blankets could make
out fairly well. You know, but it was close sleeping.

But talking about those parkas again. The only way ydwge was
wait till the guy you was replacing would have a pasitae mountain parka,
you know, with the hood and everything else. And hopefully he was close to
your own size. And you just asked him
it. The same way witthe sleeping bag. The mountain sleeping bags had to be
willed to you, in other words. Some guy had to leave, and you had to be a
good buddy and say, “ Man, |l need your
really needed in Korea was a sleeping bag, one oé thhmaintain cold
weather sleeping bags. Because that was the only place you could get in that
really kept you warm.

DePue: | know the troops on the front lines, many of them, would be in the trenches or
in bunkers on the fr onsleeplThatwasnnofltieat ' s w
case for you? It was the tents?

Bentele: No, we had bunkers. But we had tents at the corps headquarters. We had
bunkers for protection, but we slept in tents.

DePue: | think maybe we should make just a comment or two to explaedaple
who don’t know as much about an Ar my o
belonged to the X Corpsyour particular Signal battalion. There were usually
three to five divisions within a corps, and there would be Signal personnel that
would be assigned the division level as well. But they were was always a
little bit farther forward, and the corps personnel would be a little bit farther
back providing service.
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Well, the way we done it in our company is that you rotated in platoons. We

had severglaces up close to the front where we had switchboards and where

the communication would come in to tho
the field, and they would go up there for a month at a time. And one of them

was called JadAble, | remember, um the Yangu Valley, they called it.

What was that?

Yangu Valley.

And JadeAble?

JadeAble, yeah. Jade was a cedame for X Corps, and this was Jaklde.
Okay.

And we’'d send t wo glatgosthaahad dane differa f r o m
things. And they would stay up there f
be replaced by two more guys.

When they were pulling that duty, how close then were they to the front?

You would go up and work #te front. And you probably would be five, six

mil es back. But you would go up and wo
there .We had the carrier vans with the equipment in them. Those had to be up

there close to the front. You had to have one in evetigidn. And what you

would have up there depended on how many artillery outfits, how many other

outfits you had, how heavy the communication was. And the carrier vans is

one that had what we called carriers. In other words, here comes a hundred

linesintot hi s carrier. They’ re condensed do
frequencies, so you would have probably a dozen channels on one carrier

instead of one. You' d feed down to the
cabl e. 't d be f our owdseneandieceivecontbat c ab | e

same cable. And all the messages coming out of the X Corps where you had
the big bunker in the mountain and the-gosition switchboards. And we had
carrier rooms there, and it had banks of carriers. And each one of theth woul
have a designated cable. And they were called mod andodd s . Yo u ' d
modulate down to a certain frequency, like compressing. They still do it. We
still do the same thing. And then at the other end, they wouidate The
message would be stepped bacland go back to the individual lines.

Okay, you’  ve already bl own past my exp

But anyway—

| t sounds | i ke it’s al/l wire, but t hen
to radio communication.
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Well, the telephone communication used frequencies, also.

Okay.

l't°s not just voice frequencies that vy
you' ' re talking on. Just |l ike getting t
Okay,you never hear that, do you? On you

physical side of the line. In other words, your voice frequency of about three
thousand cycles is going out on the physical side of the line. And the other

person is hearing you that wasour internet signal comes in on all kinds of

di fferent frequencies. You never hear
internet signal. All the information you get off your computer comes in over

your two wires on that telephone line. And whenithitsur comput er , i
separated out and brought in to the vo
communication.

| wondered what your specific job was then?

Okay, mine was installation and repair of telephone and telephone equipment.
We used a lot of teletype then. You know, the keyboard teletype that run over
the wires also. And we had higrequency longange radio. But really in the

hills in Korea, radio was pretty damned ineffective. Even today, unless you
had sat el | ithave usgddghem.c oul dn’

In other words, it was pretty much the line of sight?

Well, yeah. And walkigalkies were large and bulky, and they eat up batteries
real fast.

Especially in the cold.

Yeah, particularly. The telephonesva much more reliabl e, a
what, you know, we done.

Well, here’ s my question for you then,
landline would be. This is an artillery war by the time you got there. It had to
be that the telephonenks were getting cut a lot.

Yeah, they did. The main thing we had to worry about in the front when

you're in the Signal Corps was that vyo
there. To get them away from the roads and damage from vehicles and tanks

and everything else, we tried to take everything through the back country if

we could. It was shorter a lot of times. And it just made it eassafer. And

some roads in Korea had cables and stuff strung in there. Because if one them

went back, and you vgan a hurry, you had to get it going; instead of trying to

find the cable a lot of times, you just strung out another one.

Were you laying it on the ground or stringing it in the trees?
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There wasn’t any tr eeaspkAlovaftimeswemidie t o st
right on the ground as best we could. And where we had to go up near it, we

had to be very careful with what we had in the way of poles or material. It was

a difficult deal, but we managed to keep it done. But we had testamaits
everything else that we | ooked at. Tha
going. And we kept it going.

I don’t know i1 f | had asked MPS2u t hi s b
Mine was 3097. And that was a telephone repair andlies
And the unit that you were assigned to was the Fourth Signal Battalion?

Fourth Signal, and itwas a T and T company. | was in the | and M platoon,
which is the installation and maintenance.

The “T and T” eandtelegraph® or t el ephon

No, “T and T” stands for telephone and
telegraph at that time.

Okay.

The | and M platoon was the installation and maintenance platoon. And all the
different platoons were set indir specialty. Well, actually | converted my
MOS to 1238 which would allow me to get more rank when | was a platoon

sergeant. Thatwas polelreui | di ng and stuff | i ke th
opportunity. One would be master sergeant. If your MOS sitarit two,
it’d be sergeant first class. Three wa

same MOS and gain any rank from it.

What was your rank when you first got to Korea?

| was a private E2.

Wel | , it s ountdysaprivatkER overdhere.di dn’ t s

No, Il didn’ t. I n the first month | was
was probably the corporal. And then in July, August, right in there, | was
promoted to platoon sergeant.

Which was the E6.
The I and M platoon.
Staff sergeant, at the time?

Yeah.
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DePue: Okay. Tell us about your typical day then when you were there during the
time the war was going on.

Bentele: Well okay. During the ti me tidamrofshootin
men over to X Corps headquarters. Let me describe what we had in the
bunker, which the engineers built in the side of this mountain. It was an eight
room bunker. Now the corps general had his war room where he had the big
maps and everything elgast like you see in the movies where they have a
big sandlot table and have the terrain, and they plot all their moves. Then we
had a crypto room which had all the cryptography machines in it. And that
was another thing we hhasuptUsguowould | a
wire them up, but we couldn’t see t
machine—very secretive. And the crypto room had to be guarded by MPs.

The popular legend was that if we got overrun, the first thing the MPs were
goingtogetoutws t he crypto men. But i f t he\
duty that they were supposed to actual
cl ai med. Because they didn’t want the
But generally they were pretty well taken cafeWe had the crypto room for

that.

ugh
h e

Then we had a teletype room. The bunkers were made out of twelve
by-twelve-foot beams; each room was twefe®t wide and twelvdoot long
inside this hill. And then we had a com center with all the messengers and the
guys picking up messages and taking them. They dispersed all the information
and messages there. Next door to that was the switchboard room which had
aroundthe-clock operators, and these were six big switchbeattsy called
them BD110s—and they were bigwitchboards. They had, probably, oh, |
don’t know how many. They had a chief
men on that switchboard tweatyo ur / seven. That’'s how bt
Then next door to that was our room. This was called the framewbens
the wire chief and all the wire come into and distributed out to these places.
And next door to that room was our X Corps carrier room. And next door to
that was the Eighth Army carrier room.

DePue: So, Eighth Amy headquarters was in the same bunker as you?
Bentele: Eighth Army Carriers was.

DePue: Oh, okay.

DePue: So in other words, the link to the Eighth Army headquarters.

Bentele: Yeah, we had to link up to them, and the Eighth Army used their own

equipmentad send the messages back south or wherever the Eighth Army
headquarters was. And you see, at that-tiraeen though they had combined
after they come out—tleXC&pshal thgrspgeciabn Re s
privileges taken awaeconimammm@nymore.eveht wasn
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though General Almond stayed with it. It was integrated into the Eighth

Army, supposedly, on paper. But it never did, really. | was there until the end.
It never did, really. We still wore only the X Corps patch. And we had an
Eighth Army carrier that we hooked to our carriers to send what messages we
had south. In the war room and everything else, the X Corps general made all
of his decisions. He may have passed them off to the Eighth Army
commander, but they were still separate Méver saw any Eighth Army

people of any sort. It was still all X Corps.

Let me explain that real quick. X Corps was on the east. This was in the late
fall and winter of 1950. And that was the Marines and, | think, the Seventh
Division was there.

Yeah.
And perhaps the Third Division.

The X Corps was the one that landed in Inchon and took Seoul and everything
else.

Well, then they evacuated, and they went up around the eastern side.
They went in Hungnam and &dsan.

And they ended up having to evacuate when the Chinese came in, in late
November/December of 1950.

Right. That was the big battle of Ch’o
—of 1950.

But X Corps was set up by General MacArthur as his strikeeféknd he put

Ned Almond, his Chief of Staff, in charge of it to get him another star. And

there was a big controversy about splitting the commands. But the X Corps

was a completely separate command. It had its own air force which was a

Marine air wing. 1 had its own navy which was the landing ships and

everything else that was assigned to the X Corps. It had, like | say, the

Seventh Division and the First Marine Division. But they had everything that

an army would have, onobrgs. it wasn’t an

Now you' re saying that even two years
longer with that corps.

The Marines had left. Yeah, they had pulled the Marines out and put them
north of Seoul. And they took the Fifth RCT [Regimental Comnmiaam],

about the time | got over there, and pulled it out and put it over in the middle.
They were, more or less, a fire brigade. And we started getting more ROK
[Republic of Korea] divisions. We had some of the best ROK divisions. But
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we had the Fortyif th and the Fortieth. And actually, the Third Division was
part of the X Corps at one ti me when t

Um-h m. l " m I ooking at the map, and this
that time, the Twentieth ROK and the T¥tlelROK divisions were part of the
corps.

Yeah, we had three divisions. And we still had the Fortigihthe Forty
fifth—I forget now which one they had. They replaced each other.

Well, according to this map, the Fortieth and Féiftyr. But | know | read
just recently that, | think, the Forfifth replaced the Fortieth, afice versa

Yeah. | forget now exactly how that worked because we got some of the guys
from the Fortieth. | know that.

Okay, so sorry for the interrupto n s . Now that you’ve don

describing where you were, what was a typical day?

Okay. Anyway, we always kept a teara squae—of repairmen over there at

the X Corps because everywhere you set very long, the communication just

kept expading and expanding. Everybody wanted something different and
everything else. And so we had abewthat would you say-a town almost

the size of Quincy. That’s how many t e
there working. | mean, we had a big operatiat,aounting up north. | mean,

this is the X Corps and the surrounding units. We had engineer battalions. We

had ordnance battalions. We had artillery battalions. We had medical corps.
Everything scattered up and down that valley. There was a lot of separat

divisions that made up the X Corps headquarters. And some of them were

Eighth Army, these other units. We had the big airstrip there which was the

only airstrip in that part of the country. We had that wired up with a lot of
communications also. And scevhad a lot of work to do. We kept a squad of

men at the X Corps constantly because there was always trouble. Some
colonel would want his phone moved, or
something. So you had all that all the time. Just like AT&T or Beléphone

did here.

Except your customers are even more impatient to get things fixed.

(laughs) Yes, they are. And every colonel that ever set down at this desk when
they moved him wanted his telephone ringing as soon as he sat dowm, | mea

they were sticklers. |l f you didn’t get
headquarters, they’d just raise hell

know, they’'re the most iIi mportant wor k.
unimportant if their phonewasnt wor ki ng. You know, “ Ma

wanted to talk to me. (laughs) It was
was true. Anyway, we kept a squad of men there. Now, there had to be a
squad or two back at the battalion resting, getting their slezqube one
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squad would get off in the morning and be up all night. So you had a squad of

men over there always sleeping in the daytime. And of course, that rotated.

You had to have a squad of men doing the normal household stuff like KP and

guard duty. Yolkknow, we had to walk guard post; they had a twdaty-

hour guard post around the battalion. We had a perimeter wire that goes
around, but you didn’t know what was ¢c
out of there.. They weren’t supposed t

Was that concertina wire that you were using for the perimeter.

Yeah, it was concertina, and anything that they could strirghgsbed

wire—it wasa menagerief wire. But that was your perimeter. So you had to
have that many in there also. Ygenerally had a squad of men pulling guard
duty, KP, or whatever. And then each platoon had its own supply. And it was
set up that way. | had my own supply sergeant and repair shop where they
would repair the equipment that they could. And we had tworeethig

squad tents full of equipment that we would use out of and put back into, just
like you do anywhere else. And then we had a motor pool. We had our own
motor pool which we had to have a man or two there that either drove trucks
that hauled people avhatever. And we also had to assign a man or two down
there to help the motgrool sergeant. So | had, | think, about forty men. You
used all of them up every day. And then you had some men up in Jade Able
onthelethand si de, | ook remgnberthe onehthatwaswug | ¢
with the Fortieth on the Punchbowl side. So anyway, that was about a normal
day. And we done the normal things what a telephone company would do. We
repaired telephones, repaired lines, strung new ones, took them down, put
them back up.

And that's the kind of wor k that never

That' s ri ght .—thisaslrdally a gpre apetovauatso hady ent

top of this bunker where all of our cables come out of the bunker up through a

tunnel up to the o of the hill to what we call a cable head. Had a house up

there where all those cables started going out on up to the front and also down

into the corps area. So it was, | mean, major bundles, you know? And setting

right up there was the ASA Army securitggn so they could select trunks that

we was using. They had a van full of equipment and recorders. In fact, in the
morning they’'d have to noti f-andstoh.e” wi r e
You couldn’t pass any i nfoumathat on on e
particular circuit so they could set with their recorders and listen to see if
anybody was not wusing code words or wa
have been or whatever. And they would set there and record. If they found
somebody doinghiat, he was up for counbartial, just like that.

Was that because there was a concern that the Chinese or the North Koreans
would infiltrate the lines and tap into the lines?
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Right.
Did that happen quite a bit?

Welbyoudon’t know whether they did or not
evidence of that happening. But they could have done it, as sure as the world.

But the ASA van kind of knocked our transmissions down quite a bit because

it just was another piece of equipmeettimg there. And first thing when we

had a | ine that nobody could hear on,
van. (laughs)

Any specific incidents that you recall, just in the matter of doing youtalay
day business, that really stick with ytmuthis day?

Well, like | say, you were so busy with so many small details. One thing that
stuck with me was that the only time | really had to pull any guard duty was
when | first got there. It was in the middle of the wirteeally cold. And

there was some Mickey Mouse boots assigned then. They had just started to
come out with those. But they were so hot on your feet that a lot of times, you
were better off not using them. We used shoe packs which | liked a lot better.

Mickey Mouse bootsWere these big heavy, rubber boots?

They were rubber. As long as they stayed with no hole punches in them, they
were fine. You'd never freeze your fee
between two rubber layers, and they were vacaaailed. So theworked if

you just stood or set or whatever you was going to do. But if you were

walking, your feet just sweated like everything in them. And so anytime you

got your feet wet, you're causing your
were a lot better | mlays thought. | never did wear them.

Well describe a shoe pack for us.

Well, they wore the shoe packs during the Second World War too. The bottom

part of your boot was rubber. They were like the L.L. Bean hunting boots. The

top part was lgher, and it had a twelvach boot. They breathed, and they

were laceup, and | always liked them a lot better. But anyway, talking about

the guard duty. And, like | say, | pulled guard duty about three times when |

first got over there. You went on duty twentyf our hour s a day;
two hours on, four hours off. Well, you know, if it was really cold, you went

one hour on, and then went back-eh, can’'t say exactly ho

that out . But you had to wabkdnedode guar
damn shift, | want to tell you. (Il augh
in our platoon, and he sticks in my mi

from down South somewhere, and he was a draft protestor. You know, they
drafted him, ad he was over there. But he claimed the Army food ruined his
st omach. He couldn’t eat i1it. And he ne
was saying, “Well, what the hell i s he
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hamburger joints around there. Nothing.. That wa&nd he claimed he

couldn’”t eat it. Hi s mom sent him a ca
mi xed with water or coffee. And that’s
his went on for quite a while, and eve
isthisgy doing?” Well, | was oKwaglaecar d dut
Ri, or they called it the HMRi.lbMANng Ri ve
about two o’'clock in the morn+tng, and
somebody wal ki ng a ttmabdeep, yau krnow, abow sExk . It

to eight inches deep. In the cold weather, part of it was froze over anyway.

And across the way over there, the Eigbatghth MP Battalion had an all

ni ght mess hall. I n fact, theophyPs was
there and eat or get coffee. Anybody could stop in and get coffee or a light
breakfast or whatever you wanted. They just kept a twientiyhour mess

hall going all the time alongside the main road. And so | halted whoever was
coming across the creek was this damn guy. He had been over there at that
damn Marine mess hall. And he cl ai med
eat. He was a slacker. In other words, he would try anything in the world to

get out of doing his duty. And so when | stoppéd and found out who he

was, Il said, “ I -ofahbitth, ityou eteecbnie agrossu, Yy o u
here again...” Of course, you had ammo
on there“l’Ims@gisng ..t o stick thies bayon

him again. But finally, they shipped h
remember.

You'd mentioned when we talked earlier
front.

Yeah.
That sometimes you guys got to do that.

Okay. Now if you had trouble on any circuit going towards the front, you sent
whoever was available. You’'d be sent u
out. You just went. So | know | was on that ammo run at least twice. And

you' d go up and wo &«fromt.lOf coudse, we ghvayst t y c |
had jeepsorthreguar t er tons. We never did hav.
And, in fact, there was no place to stay anyway. So we always drove and

come back down to the battalion. Now, when they was having these big

pudhes that they had, you know, a big battle going on like at Heartbreak Ridge

or the Punchbowl, they would always come over because the Transportation
Corps would need extra drivers to run
over and get drivers fromthe Sig@br ps or some ot her uni
to the ordnance depot; it was right do
with whatever. You di dRatiohsorkgremadesavh et her
mortar rounds or what. And then you followed one of the gtaisdhe was a
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black guy. You had desegregated Army, but they put most of the black guys
driving trucks.

Did you say that it was desegregated at the time?

Yeah. Desegregated. But mainly, you ended with the black guys driving all

the trucks. Anday way, you’' d al ways end up foll
Transportation Corps that knew where he was going. And of course, you had

no lights, and it was dustier than hell. | mean you were right up next to the
bumper on the ot her dtlepeeperYadlightstchatu |l d n’ t
they had.

Cat lights?

Yeah. And that’'s what vyou tried to kee
couldn’t even see them because of the
trucks in a line going over from X Caup over the pass to Yangu VaHeit

was called Yangu Pass. Now it’s cl osed
away with it. It was an old part of the rea@ cow path-that the engineers

dug out of the side of the hill. Now this went up over a prettylgage of

mountains. And it was about eighteen miles long. And you went up and

zigzagged all over the country going up there. It was one of those switchback

roads, you know? And just wide enough for a deuce and a half [two and a half

ton truck]. If you s& those pictures of those roads down in Bolivia and stuff,
that' s about | i ke it was.

You got one foot off the road and you

That's right. 1t was about three to fo
down off the ravi e . Now you’'re driving a truck
you’' re right i-end {fbneguypdtopped(clagsk-y ' s as s
everybody stopped. Andtheroadwas sifiglene. You di dn’t knc
you was on the edge or notupov&thgrevay, t h
Very nervewracking. Anyway, | remember this one time we went up to the
Punchbowl, which was a | ot better beca
go over. But you did have two or three rises that you went over with the signs
righttheretht sai d, “When you reach the top
enemy, and they have it zeroed in.” 1In
of the front, they could see you. The Chinese were good with their artillery. |

mean, they had those pla@soed in, and you had to take your chances.

You’d set on this side. One truck woul
|l ot of times, they wouldn’t fire. But

going to take a run eat—zoom! Ugovebthbehflou’  d t
as fast as you could and down the other side before you got out of sight.

Sometimes they fired. Sometimes they d
road. So you had to run your <chances.
coalmhe. We're setting there, waiting. |
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supposed to go. We’' re setting there wa
what to do. No lights. No nothing. And all of a sudden, all hell breaks loose. |

mean, we were setting rigim the midst of this artillery battery. And they

were starting firing. And you coul dn’t
setting right there, and all of a suddeblooey! God, you talk about scaring

the crap out of you (laughter).

Well, your storyillustrates that a lot of this driving was done at night. And,
obviously, you don’t have your headl igg
reveal your location.

Yeah, that’s right. And then I’ d say i
daytime becaus&hen you got close to the front where you had to take it, you
were exposing yourself to the enemy atrtillery.

What kind of vehicles were you doing this with?
Two and a half-deuce and a half.
Two-and-a-half ton trucks.

Yeah straight shift. Finally, about the middle of March or April we gave all
those old World War Il vehicles to the ROK.

Were they gas?

Gas, yeah. And all were jeeps. In fact, all of our vehicles were World War Il

vintage. Most of them comdfdhe islands and were stockpiled in Japan. And

some of them were still over in here. We gave all of our old trucks and jeeps

to the ROK army. And then they’d take
truck to Seoul, and we 'dteldpfullofkhera,p new v
these new automatghift trucks,the ones that had the rounded hood instead

of the square. And the new jeeps with the rounded hood. And new three

guarter tons, they were like Cadillacs. Boy, you had a shift lever on those

automatidc r ansmi ssi ons. Wel |-clutchanything.i dn’ t he
With those old trucks you had a hard time getting them in gear a lot of times.

| assume the threguarter ton is essentially a pickup truck.

Yeah, and t ha trivesAnywayathat was goad.kAeydiaytafter d

we give them to the ROK army, it wasn
Koreans didn’t know how to drive. They
road. If you was anything smaller than a thgerter ton, like a jeep, they

would run over you or run you off the road. You had to dodge them. It was
dangerous, (l aughs) with one of those
remember this coming back. | went down there one time to Seoul. We stayed

in an engineer outfbecause it was all down by truck. And we stayed
overnight in an engineering outfit. I
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there since February. This was probabl
The MP’s woul dn’t | ethyoy dheyhacakcerfewimo ur we
Seoul at six o’clock at night. AlIl the
had to be off the streets. Because there was a lot of things in Seoul that could

get you killed (l aughs) retéfrogtlboc k. An
probably a lot of infiltration too. And somebody had a pistol with them. All of

us had hunting knives, you know, the long knives. Down the road a piece was

a place called Pig Alley. That'’'s the p
enterténment was at that time. Seoul had thirteen million people in it,

counting refugees. People had no place to go. They would walk the streets

until they fell over dead or whatever. And, | mean, people were packed in

there. No lights. Nothing. So of courseg Wwad to go down there, you know,

all of us guys. So we trooped down there. You know, it was interesting,
(laughter) 1711 say that. Now that’'s t
say, pretty cold weather. They had fire underneath the housesngau

Really warm—sleep on the floor.

They called it ondol heating where it’

Well, they just built a wood fire, and the flames and the hot gases would go
underneath the floor and exit the chimney on therogide. It would draft it
through there. Actually, that was toas
up and you was laying on the floor, it would be pretty good. (laughs)

It s better than sl eeping on the froze

Yeah. Anywaywe had a hell of a time in there. Actually some of the guys set

one of the buildings on fire, and they
in the morning—1 " | | neve¢r slhodget I itm getting ou
going back to tiSse dngn megemyrsgldyt fyiotu.
down there in a group of about six or

myself. Now it was so dark you could just see pieces of people, you know? |
walked with my knife in my hand, and, you know, let people know that |

didn’t want anybody close to me. We wa
the engineering outfit where we were staying. Well, here comes an MP jeep.
And he says, “What the hel/l are you do
night?” And | course]thkey kmawmwe wagval lddwn thefre in
the Pig Alley, you know? And | said, *
take our weapons with us.” And of cour

we took our weapons with us too. And of course, we were all the front,

so they were pretty generous with the guys, you know, coming down and

doing that. They knew what we was goin
get in here before you get somebody Kki
run me back to the emgeering outfit. So the next day we were driving these

jeeps back over to X Corps which is a hundmate trip counting the road in

there. Because you couldn’”t make it, vy
sound of “smooth sailing”).
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Buttherever e no straight I ines to anywhere

No, and you had to go up the Han River quite a ways till you got a little bit
south of Wonju where you turned north and went back up the one road there.

Wel | I 7 1 | is oldemaster serfgeamt. fNewt the tU!s. Army in the
field is just as mean and nasty as any other army in the world. (laughs) | mean,
a | ot of people think everybody i s goo

These aren’'t a bunch of saints.

No.Andhe ol d master sergeant was riding
out fit. I don’t know what he was fr om.
transportation outfits. And the Koreans were carrying thefirafnes [back

pack frames]. They walked along the sidehaf toad in just a regular
footpath. Of course, they wouldn’t be
over and killed, you know? Anyway, he delighted in it. He had like a pool

cue, almost. A londnandled club. He would delight in driving by these old
Korears intheir Af r ames and shoving them off th
of f. They’'d roll down the embankment s,

When you guys were making the ammo rwahd that was a pretty
harrowing experience, as you describeddid you lose any vetles ever
doing that?

Wel | , not wher e | was at | east . I me an
the gulch that didn’t make it. But | n

Now you talked also about carrier trucks. Those are the ones wiitie all
wiring nodes, for lack of a better term. Did you ever lose any of those?

Yeah, we lost one in the last big battle of the war there, in June and July, when
the Chinese come throughahundteth o usand strong. And th
overrun the Tpple Nickel again.

For the third time, then?

Third time. They were behind the main line of resistance. We had another line
called the Kansas line. They set these lines where you were supposed to
advance to. But the Chinese come right thiotlge main line of resistance.

Come through the Kansas line; they actually penetrated about fifteen miles.
And by that time they lost steam in their assault because our artillery and Air
Force was just slaughtering them. | mean, just slaughtering thecou@ie,

this here says a hundred thousand, but | always heard about eighty thousand.
And | don’t think five thousand of the
completely slaughtered. But in that battle we lost contact with one of our
carrier vans up thre that was handling that communication. They were an
important van because they were doing the connecting between the X Corps
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and IX Corps. | mean, that was how they was coordinating their offensive.
And so we had to get that back online.

| was a sergeamactually in charge of the platoon at that time. So myself and

another two sergeants went up to Kumhwa Valley to locate this van. Well, we

found the van. The tanks had either run over their cables or whatever. But in

t he mel ee, t he mgenvhookeg backtup, eng thgyhasdlt di dn’
damaged cable and stuff like that. So we got a team up there and found them

and got them hooked back up there as soon as we could. But the sight of those

in that valley.they had bodies | aying

And you were on that trip going up to get that van?
Yeah.

So you saw all of this destruction?

Yeah.

What was the closest you ever had to actually seeing the erarie
enemy coming at you?

Of course it all dependsonwha you call <c¢cl ose. When yo
three miles of the front, you’'re cl ose
up there because they were scattered a
solid wall that you can look at even though there waghes pretty much

over there. But it was probably about three miles. In other words, | never did

see anybody actually, you know, coming over the hill.

| wonder if you can tell us about some guys that you were especially close
with while you were ovethere, and any stories connected with that. Some
very good friends perhaps that you were with.

Well, like | say, | had some of the guys that | went over with that were still

there when we rotated back together, one or two of them. And some of the

guys that | promoted, you know, that were good guys. No one particularly. |

had three or four of them. You kind of
(laughs)

When did that happen?

Let’ s see. I was pr omodkatanyreqordsSRightt e mb e r
in there somewhere in September.

So it sounds like after the main fighting was over.

Yeah, after the main fighting. But actually that is a misnomer, because when
the ceasefire took effeetl * | | hav e taginightebythewaype t hat
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there was still the same combat operations going on that you had before.
Everybody stayed in place. You were still up there eyeball to the enemy. And

there were stildl some skirmishes, Il > m
where tle enemy was probing, you know, to see. And we were doing the same
thing to them. | ’ve talked to a | ot of

that never developed, things were still about the séme&s almost the same
damn thing as you did beforerfseveral months until things were ironed out.

DePue: | wanted to back up just a little bit here. | want to hear your impressions about
how the war ended and the armistice t@keseteragspecially during June
and July, but even the months before thatuyparticular corps has got a fair
number of South Korean troops in there as well. Did you have an opportunity
to see them in action very much?

Bentele: Well, I can name this one old boy. In fact, | met him on a revisit trip to Korea
in ' 93. H eindingageneral, acealiy tough old boy. He had the First
ROK Division which was a crack division. | mean, they were good. And he
was the kind of general that if he sent a lieutenant out to do something and the
lieutenant failed to do it, he shot him hinfs@lheir discipline was a lot
different than ours. Their sergeants would carry a little baton, and if he wanted
to discipline his troops, he just smacked them over the head with his little
baton. Hell, yeah. The Koreans respected that type of force, yourkand
they expected it, you know? It was kind of funny, you know? But they were
bl ood and guts right down to the botto

name. He was stil!/l alive in ' 93.
DePue: And you say he was the division commander duringviue?
Bentele: The division commander, yeah. I 11 thi

actually see him in battle, no.
DePue: What was the reputation that they had at the time?

Bentele: Well, we had to depend on those three ROK divisions because wkazhl
one American division left there at the end of the war. It was the Fortieth or
the Fortyfifth—I forget which it was. But the rest of our territory was
defended by ROK divisions. And at that tithey were a good army. Of
course, they had no suppttops whatsoever. Frontline soldiers was the only
thing they had. We furnished everything else. You know, their
communications and everything elseve furnished it. In fact, we started
training them right after the ceasefire.

DePue: Ok ay. Let'tdhet arimi asbhowte t al ks. By the t
been going on—for, I don’t know
Bentele: Two years.
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—close to two years by that time. What was the thought that you and other
Gls had about this?

Well really, we were busy enoughttvae di dn’'t even hardly
We never got the news from what was going on over there. And it was kind of
a subject for derision, really. “They’

Did you have a sense of what it was about the peace-talkat the ssues
were that were really dragging this whole thing out?

Well yeah, we knew that the prisoner exchange was really holding everything

up. Syngman Rhee, mainly. And of <cours
woul dn’t send hi s othersteydoted absut thad alsk. . Il ha
But we really didn’t pay that much att
with our own duties and everything els

we did was the day it was signed. We did get word just almasiasas it

was signed at ten o’clock in the morni
o’ cl ock—tatel wiegttour s | ater. So everyboc
you whatever that next week we’ || be b
di dn’veitvoeld holé at all, much less get even started. So the word was

passed to all the units and everything
night. | thought, “Well, |I’'d better se

real high knob on a hill wére we had a highowered radio set up. | said,
“That’'d be a good observation because
about dusk, when it got dark, our artillery started firing. And | guess theirs did

t oo. | d icabualtiedrons tkae Budtheyyfired every round that they

had. | often wondered if the cease fir
we use for ammo? Because they fired and continued to fire for four hours

straight. And | mean, you could almost read a newspaper. | meandhe

front was | it up—bofnste wertt RBAMUIusttike th&.n o' c |
Just like you turned a switch out, and not another gun fired. Where | was,

there was none of them firing. | heard some say that they did fire off a round

or two after thatBut there was none of that where | could see it. And then it

was just deadly quiet. And everybody set there. And we set there. And we

said, “You wait. It || happen.” And pr
come on, you know? And wherever they hatvpr you started seeing lights

come on.

That was July 27, 1953. You'd been the
time. Before that time the peace talks had been going on, as we mentioned
before, for a | ong ti meisornot btApril t know
20th was the start of what they called Operation Little Switch, where the two

sides were exchanging those who had been hospital cases and severely

wounded.

Yeah. Ones that were dying, really.
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Yeah. Do you recall that atl?

Not really. | knew they was going to take place. But they were going to do
that Little Switch without signing the truce. You know, they wanted to

exchange those type of prisoners that

care of. And thedea was that, you know, they had had that big riot down at
Wolmi-do Island, or Kojedo.

Koje-do, yeah.

Yeah, where they had send the Airborne troops down there to quell it. And so
they had the attention of the pecplthese prisoners did. Little Switch

was going to take place whether they signed the truce or not. It did take place,
and they signed. | don’t know whethe
that.

No, the truce was signed several months after that.
Yeah.

But as | understand it, both sides knew they were getting closer, at least the
people who were doing the negotiating knew it.

Yeah, but they also wanted to get those sick prisoners off their hands. There
wasn’'t much sai d ewthabwas goingoa.t . Nobody

Well, this is the portion of the Kor
| " ve tal ked t o peopdblslandwhentheghadkto t her e
storm into the compounds because the North Koreans and the Chinese, but
espeially North Koreans, had taken over the whole compound.

They took it over. Yeah, they captured the commanding general. He was
stupid enough to walk in there. (laughs)

You had already alluded to this. | know you remember this date: Jtime 18
Syngman Rhee, who was the president of South Korea, issues instructions to
his South Koreans in the middle of the night, and twsetyen thousand

North Koreans—

They opened the gates.
—ijust slip into the countryside.

Right. And you know, at that same time the South Koreans, by the urging of
Syngman Rhee, was demonstrating against us, having marches in the roads
and the streets. | got pictures of them in here. | can show you that the South
Koreans were out in the roads and shreets and everything else
demonstrating against us. And then he opens up the gates and lets twenty
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seven thousand prisoners behind us. We
to them. They had to send teams of people in there, MPs and everything else,

to try to round up as many as they could. They rounded up quite a few of

them, but there was a | ot of them that
know.

What ' s the rationale of Synsgwwman Rhee s
thousand prisoners?

He told them that he would not sign that truce. And he did not want them to
sign it, and this was his protest. And another thing, the Chinese and the North
Koreans wanted all them people to be returned to them forcibly. And they
pretty much knew that &y was going to kill every one of them when they
returned. And this was another reason, | believe, for the big battle ord&oje
Island. The ones wanted to prove to their leaders that they were still with

t hem. I n other words, ckDbrctauskodt mme
demonstrating.” And | think that was o
there. Syngman Rhee didn’t sign that t
protest against it. One of his ways of

want to @ back was to let them all go.

So these are people who never wanted to go back?

These were al/l his prisoners And it w
prisons that he just told the guards,
did. So...

What does that make you think?

And at the same time, we had that big battle going on up on the front;

Heartbreak Ridge was going fddlast, and we had our hands full. And you

know, you didn’t know howe. Whretctey peopl e
going to attack small units, or somebody on the road, or whatever to get

weapons and food or whatever?

Were you given instructions? Were American troops given instructions what
to do?

Yes. They said, atTelhleyalnleetdhée¢ ogkaregs at
And everybody was on alert for roving bands of guerrilla attacks. You know,

it would be four or five men in a bunc
But they would be wanting to come in anywhere they could aad ftod,

weapons, whatever. And you know, they made sure their guards were doubled

up.
Did any of that happen?
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Bentele: Never seen it. | still to this day have never seen anything written on what
happened to those people. Where they went.

DePue: Well, my understanding-

Bentele: Because they didn’t make it back. They
way in hell they could have went back north. Now | know they caught about
probably eight, nine, maybe ten thousaftie MPs did. Because they sent
unitsdown there to round them up wherever they could get them.

DePue: What | ’'ve read about it is that the So
had no intention of going back. They had already been screened and declared
their intentionwgotbacekt t hey didn’t wan

Bentele: Well, that might be true, but all of them were released. Even the ones that
didn’t declare that. And there were so
there wasn’t some Chinese in there.

DePue: As you wer e ment icbaptermhgtveoyditfledsrkmown her e’ s
about.

Bentele: Yeah, and you know, it’s just |ike the

two countries would go together just simply by intermingling across the MLR

[Main Line of Resistance]. And undoubtedly ovee trears they have crossed

over and back. And families that were
completely. And you know, eventually if left alone, they would assimilate to

each other.

DePue: Did you understand at the time why Syngman Rhee and so mémy $6uth
Koreans were so adamantly opposed to the armistice?

Bentele: Well, Syngman Rhee wanted everybody to do his battle for him. In other
words, he wanted to reunite his country. And you know, Syngman Rhee and
Kim II-Sung was cut out of the same cldthim II-Sung wanted South Korea,
and Syngman Rhee wanted North Korea. KiBuhg attacked first is what
happened. Because we wouldn’t give the
extent, or heavy weapons, before that war started. We kept them down
because w knew Syngman Rhee would attack.

DePue: What did the Americans think? Did you
we need to finish this war by attackin
Bentele: Well you know what? | think everybody by that time knewdama| | you’ d

never stand a chance against all them Chinese of taking them. And to this day,
any damn general or politicians who want to get into a land battle in Asia
would be nuts. And MacArthur knew that too. You know, he was an

intelligent man. And you kow, the idea of attacking China on the mainland is
stupid. And you know, there was no one that | ever knew that was interested
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in attacking. And |’ 1[I tell you the tr
September we were making arrangements to go north.ad/alleady set up

another corps area about ten miles further north. So that told me one thing:

We were figuring on moving north. If there was any recurrence of the battle,

this army was going to go start on the
set stil anymore. And that was going to be the whole case in a nutshell.

Because we was already making arrangement for communications further

north.

You mentioned MacArthur. And of course, MacArthur was long gone by the
ti me you got t HhotweyearsHRut wihat Was thengerggraln e
opinion of the soldiers that you knew about MacArthur? Favorable?

Well, no. Now remember most of the guys | was over there with went through
the McCarthy—you know, the—

McCarthy era?

And al®, MacArthur had already been back and had all his glory and done his
speaking and everything else. We all heard that before we ever went in the
service, you know? But he was back by that time. And so pretty much our
opinion of General MacArthur was thag lwas way past his prime. He should
not have been in command. And the only reason the Joint Chiefs of Staff left
him in command, | believe, was they were afraid of him. But | think he was
way past his prime. There was a lot better generals than MacAtttinat a

time.

By the time you get close to the end of the war, the whole thing was so

politicized. | mean, the POW thing was very much part of that political
struggle as wel | . 't s kind of an inte
but do ya recall seeing things like propaganda fliers that the plane was

dropping on you? That kind of stuff?

Oh, yeah. Yeah, |l " ve got several of th
Check Charlie was good for.

Bed Check Charlie?

Yeah, tlere was a lot of aircraft that would buzz. In fact when | first got over
there, he was pretty regular. At least once a month, or maybe two or three
times a month from the north. He was a light aircraft. It sounded like a Piper
Cub or a biwing. And he wou fly over in the middle of the night and
sometimes drop mortar rounds and small bombs that he could probably throw

out . It reminded you of World War | ai
you’d see him, you know. Anwdgomai nly pr
sever al of them here. It says, “Here 'y
Korea. And here’ s Mr. Moneybags making
|l iving the high |ife down in Florida.?”
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showed pictures of thempyu know? But here’s what ha
got an aifraid siren going at Bed Check Charlie, you never knew where it

might have been a MIG, too. What the hell. You know, everybody had to fall

out and get down in the bunkers and the foxholes and srehdur there

until they give you the altlear. So that disrupted the Army. That was another

reason why it was done, too. You know, he only flew at night just when
everybody was in there. That night’'s s

Was there mybody who was convinced by the propaganda leaflets?

I don’t think so. There was some gr umb
end of the woods over there everybody was kept damn busy. You know really,

you didn’t have ahatynews yomgotwanthraughtletteasr o u n d
from the home front. We had the Armed Forces Radio network that anybody

had a radio could pick up. They played music and different things going to

keep the morale of the troopsrtoap. But
what they had already been told to pas
know, there wasn’t anybody on the news
rotten apple. That didn’t happen.

The next war, maybe fifteen years later, the Gls tleewn Vietnam—a lot
of them starting thinking, “What in th
any of that when you were there?

|l didn’t see any of that. Il n fact, | d
talk about. Undoubtedly, there ghit have been somebaodyf course | mean,
you know, marijuana. But | never seen
to it because that was part of my duty. There was a lot of drinking went on.
But none of that. | mean, rryookmew, | don’
taking that and saying, “Well, this wa

No.
Okay. Some of these are much more general.

Well | think one of the reasons why that is, too, is a lot of people overlook the

fact that we wereaised during the Second World War. And a lot of us were

the little brothers of guys that were in the Second World War. So | think we

|l earned early the way that the militar
the opportunity to pick up all that trash tlia Vietnam veterans did. You

know, they were indoctrinated before they ever went into the service. You

know they were already indoctrinated. The culture at that time was anti

military right down the line. And being that they were drafted, they thought

they had the legal right to protest. You know, even while they was in the
military. Now, there was a | ot of good
all veterans from Korea or anything else. We had a lot of veterans from the
Second World Wetl §bom fnadout bhnll ) But
discipline like we did in the service when they went through basic training.
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e b
know any kind of mil it ar ymeanjsstfronp n
watching them as veterans. There
al ways wondered, “What the hell d
we had to learn the book. In other words, when we went through basic
training, they had clags on what was the proper etiquette and what you were

supposed to do as a soldier. And | don

They must have slacked off from t m
I e.
’ a d

h
i
S
i d th

DePue: You mentioned this one World War Il veteran?

Bentele: Okay. He was a World War | veteran also. At one time when | first got to our
company shortly after |1 got there, the
got his name in here. (laughs) He was a stickler about guys going and having
any of the whores coming in there or anything else, you know? There was
always some washer women titizey always wanted to... And anyway, he
would courtma r t i a l guys for doing that. Wel!/
what el se they had going on, but the n
gal down in his tent. The captain was caudrtialed in hisswn company. |
mean, placed under guard by his own me
They had to walk him to the latrine, you know, under the gun until he got his
courtmartial or until they relieved him. Yeah, Captain Remove. Remove. He
had a funny ame.

DePue: But this guy was both World War | and World War 11?

Bentele: No. Anyway after that, they took the first sergeant and the captain out. Well,
the one we got to replace him was call
forget him. He was a World Waveteran. Spent six months overseas during
the combat in World War |. Nowf course, he was a career Army. He spent
all of World War Il in the South Pacific. And he was with an ROTC asia
trainer in the state of Washington. Some way or the othgohen the levy to
go to the Far East Command. Well when he got over to Japan, they was going
to leave him in Japan. He said, “Oh, n
over to Korea.” He said, “I’m an arti/l
tosedl me overseas, you're going to put |
when he got over there, well he was sitty years old. And when he got
over there, they needed a first sergea
ended up. He used to keep by ket pretty much. And | used to go on R&R,
and | always claimed they’d send him
keep watch after me over in Japan. (
know. But anyway, | went on two R&Rs with Sergeant Brown. A gddd o
boy. He liked Old Forester right out of the bottle. And he was a strict old boy,
but he was a numbene first sergeant. His Ike jacRefrom all the

W
| a

SGeneral Dwight D. “I1 ke” Ei s e Aemnghyeeketwith agatioeedishadr d uni f or
around the bottom. It became something of a civilian fashion standard, though most military officers wore
standard lengtfackets.

69



Norbert Bentele Interview # VRK-A-L-2011035.01

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

campaigns he’ d been on, would put MacA
ribbons that went up over his shider. But he was a dandy old boy. He really
was. | really enjoyed old Edmund Brown. Three wars.

Yeah, that’s hard f or —snhatkindobservioes t o c O
Tell me how you were managing to keep in touch with the family. Or were
you?

Well, yeah, | was. Of course, | had eight brothers and sisters and Mom and

Dad. And generally, | would write once a month usually. Or write one of my

sisters or something a small note or whatever. In fact, | bought some china

that myoldestsiste | " m sure stil/l has at home.
Tokyo, | done shopping then, and she wanted a set of Noritake china which |
bought for her and sent to her. But ma
prolific writer. But I, you know, sent lette. And they would send me

letters—smy br ot hers and sisters would. And
that too much.. Of course, the guys got boxes from home, you know,
particularly at Chri st mas. But I I | ne
walnut@ o ki es . Now the only thing | don’t
And guess what they were: black walnuts. And, of course, like | say, with nine

kids she lost track of whether we liked black walnuts or not. Because | never

did like them. For some rsan, | mean, | grew up on a farm and everything

el se. We had al/l kinds of walnut trees
picture of a little Korean girl eating one of those black walnut cookies because
that’'s how | got r i doartcdlariywinewasiniyl aught e

platoon had an Italian wife. Man, she would send the best care packages you

ever saw. The first time | ever seen pepperoni and salami. Of course, the

Italian cheese would bmoldy. We would just carve the mould off of it.

Wheneer oldSchumer s ( he was from Pennsyl vani a
everybody went to his tent. They’'d say

How important was mail call to you then?

It was all right. But | tnme ame. maiwasmall
homesick. | had already spent my time away from home, you know. | worked

on the railroad. | always wondered about this. A lot of the guys | know are

Korean veterans. Now they married their wives before they shipped overseas.

|l " m not haaysnpad. But it i s when you ¢
One of my biggest things when | was platoon sergeant and the squad leader

and |I would always tell my guys, “You
because you | i ve haeatbaktheenTdisiyyowhome goi n
now. You keep your head right here.” |

wandering around in a minefield thinking about his wife back home or his

kids or whatever. | wanted his head to be in the work. And | always though

that wasn’t a good thing. | mean, | re
a drag on a guy over here.”
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Most of the time you were not on the front line, a few miles back. Did that
mean that you got a few hot meals occasionally?

We dways had a mess hall. Of course, we ate a lot-BB@ons too because

any time you’'re wor-Rationg Buwetdidhaweea al way s
mess hall . It was Army rations. We did
anything el se. (thisatongttosThis duy waefrom Bast t o t €

Texas, and | knew him down in Fort Gordon, Georgia, when we was going

through basic. Great big guy. Hell, he had to weigh at least 300 pounds. Big

old muscle farm boy. The only thing from East Texas that grows ot ihe

brush, and the only thing that old boy ever seen in his life was trendss a

mule. | know it. He was as dumb as they come. Everybody kind of, you know,
mistreated him, and | always kind of watched after the old boy because he just

di dn’ to hnmnawceh tsomarts. (Il aughs) Anyti me
come to me. Anyway, he couldn’t do any
was assigned as a grease monkey down in the motor pool over there in Fourth
Signal. About the only thing he could do wagrk with the trucks. And he

was so greasy. They never required hin
some official come arouréthis was after the war endedhey started to

align up all the tents and get them back the Army way. The captain would say,
“Whe'rs (name deleted)?” And they said,
send old (name deleted) out in the brush somewhere waiting till the inspection

team (|l aughs) went through, and they’d
first got over there, thefirstonnt h or two, he told the c
starving.” He was a big man, and he sa
Those cooks are throwing away food. " A

gallon cans of old Ration food—t hat ' s whna dumpgitirva s
those big containers and then heating

He said, “They’ re throwing away food vy
| could eat.” So the captain went down
s e r g e agoes throtgHhithe line just like everybody else. Give him the

same portion. But after the mess is ov
everything that’'s | eft over.” Well , th
old pans, you knowke big old squar@ans, and dumped everything in there.

|l mean, if they had somebody that didn
They'd set it front of (name del eted)

there and gobble it dowmnlythingthat ght er ) N
happened to (hame deleted). No, there was a black guy about the same way as
(name del eted). And he worked in the n
name. Anyway, he had some musume out there in the brush somewhere that

he was screwinglgqughs)

“Musume” ?

Yeah, that’'s what we called them: Mo o s
al |l kinds of slang words besides “gook
of venereal disease you would ever see, | guess. Hell, they evendeaudi to
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him back stateside. But after he left, (name deletdxding the dumb bastard

he was—he took up with her even though he knew his buddy got the worst
case of something you ever seen. | mean, it was the stuff that would rot your
dick off. And anyway, héook up with her, started shacking up with her. Well
naturally, he come down with that. Well he come up to me and he said,

“Sarge, there’s something wrong with n
wrong?” He said, “1I"m bleediwpugand And h
everything else.” And | said, “For God
| took him down there, and | said, “He

at him like a horse. They really did. They give him as much penicillin as it

would have tok for a horse to get well. (laughs) They cured him, | guess. But
man, Il 11 tell you what. They treated
(laughs)

Was there one-Ration that you patrticularly liked, and one that perhaps you
didn”t |ike?

Well, to tell you the truth, everybody tried to get the pork and beans. They

would fish around over at the repo dep
the main truck route. Well, they had a rest stop for the truckers, | mean the

guys that run supplies. Athey had to have rest stops every now and then

where they could pull in and rest and get something to eat. (laughs)

Ot herwise, they wouldn”t. Well, they h
kettl e. I don’t know whersemewher®. Ahde | | t h
set it on a wood fire out in the middle of the parking lot where everybody

woul d come i n. Th e yRatidns wresywewayoutuinthee c a s e

field, and you’'d get a pack every day,
little cigarettepackage and everything that was in them. You know, they give

you free cigarettes so you could learn how to smoke. (laughs) Yeah, the

tobacco companies done that.

Anyway, everybody just dumped theirfCat i ons i n there.
a can out , wacadin. A evergbody tvauld fish around that
son of a bitch. | always liked the corned beef hash. That was my other
favorite. | liked the pork and beans and corned beef and hash. And they had a
big stick with a strainer on it, and that way you coutdistout a can. And if

you | iked it, that’s what you kept. Yo
same great big old pot where this boiling water was. The corned beef and hash
was good. I-Rat demng$. mi nidi Ced them. And

knowwhat to do. They’  d get that hambur ge
supposed to take it out of the damn can and throw the lard away. It was

packed in there for a reason. And then heat the can up with the hamburger

patties in it. They were pretty goddound nothing wrong with drations.

You had like a coffee can you could find wired onto your manifold of
your jeep or your truck, just setting right on the exhaust manifold. And then if
you di dn’ t p uRatibn can, ithvouldexplode ont yoieell, C
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you'd have t haorhatiulhof wate—andf ywat dr set vy
C-Ration can down in the water. And hel
sucker would be hotter than bl azes, yo
take it oluave aynmwadurnyolwotd food. That’'s ho

vehicle there had a can wired on the manifold. That was an old trick from
World War Il, and that would be the way that you done it.

A I ot of guys would set arou@dd, and
Rations up. Well, these little packets of jam or jellyou know, those little
round cans that ft downinaRat i on can. They’'d al ways

them—hard as this table. And the guys would be setting around, have a little

fire going. Somebodwould sneak one of those little cans in the campfire.

That son of a bitch would explode 1i ke
of you. It d blow fire everywhere. Il s
for that, too. | mean, | seen fights staver that. (laughter)

| know you’ve got a story for this nex
when the line was relatively stable. And then of course, you were there after
the war. Did you have any entertainers come over for you?

Therewere several USO shows come into X Corps area. The platoon
sergeants and everything would pull duty when the USO show was in so our
men would be able to go to the USO show. So | never did get to see a USO
show. Never saw one. Of course when | was a privagecorporal, there

wasn’t no shows. You know, they just d
country. You know, that was pretty remote over there on the east side, and
they just didn’t make it. Anyway, we h

Moore—the gal thawore the mink bikini that caused such a stir back here
stateside-was in the show. They had it at Inje, which is up the river just a
little bit, where they had a pretty good sized stage up-thaneold theater in

that town. Inje was a little bit biggerah where we were. And so after their
show, we had a makeshift NCO [Non Commissioned Officer] club at the
battalion. And we was able to get booze directly from Inchon. Actually, we
had a truck that the corps general would send over to Inchon under omlers an
pick up steaks because it was an open port. You know, we had an NCO club
that had drinks and everything else in it. Well they showed up, and Penny
Singleton, | think, was in that group. | may be wrong on that.

Penny Singleton dBlondie?

Blondie Uh-huh. I think she was in that troupe. But anyway, there was about

five: a couple or three women and two guys if | remember right, from the

USO show. They come over to our makeshift NCO club which was a couple

of squad tents put together to tgdu the truth. It had a bar in it. Drinks were

like, oh, twenty cents a drink. We had San Miguel beer, and Pabst. San

Mi guel was MacArthur’'s brewery down th
stuff looked like it was made out of maple syrup. You know, #pes avere all
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rusted shut. Anyway, they stayed there for, oh, a couple of hours. And during
the course of the evening Terry Moore had to go to outside to the bathroom.
Well, all we had for a toilet was a piece of canvas strung around a couple of

littteshot pol es with a hole, you know? It
Guys went down there to drink. They di
anyway, myself and another sergeant, w
out there to show you whatyoutgo ” So, we did. We took
course, it’s blacker than hell. And we
And | think she had a flashlight or so

because they wore jumpsuits that had a zipper that cnassathem like this,
down to their waist.

From the shoulder to the waist.

From the shoulder across. Every USO show person or woman that | ever saw,

when they were not on duty, they wore that. It was almost like a uniform. |

guess maybe thArmy made them wear it. It covered up everything, you

know? (l aughs) So she couldn’t get tha
me.” So | wunzipped her all the way dow
shirt. So | can actually say | undressed Howandgdthes ' s gi r |l fri end
mi ddl e of a Korean night. (|l aughter) A
convention in Washington, D.C., a few year back, and she was one of our

speakers. Terry Moore is one of the people that, you know, identifies with the

Korean War veterans. We were in this dining hall or reception room, and she

had spoke up on the main dais, and | was back about the middle of the crowd.

We was packed in there real tight. And when she was talking about her

experiences in Korea, she mentionlee fact that it was difficult and she had

to have help to go to the bathroom. An
said, “God dang, she remembers that!?”
through the crowd and everything like that, she had alreadsy got the door.

So | never got to see her. So one of t
of Terry Moore and, you know, see if she still remembers. She mentioned it

on the stage. |l said, “Son of a bitch!

One ofthe better memories you have from Korea, huh?
Yeah.
| think you also mentioned you had a chance to go on R&R. Tell us about that.

Yeah, well actually | was real lucky. | went on three R&Rs, and a lot of guys

di dn’ t e v mostggenerallg, alldhe guBs that wanted to go on

R&R, they got one R&R. And sometimes two if you were over there an
extended period of time, which | was.
tell you how | got to go on three. Well, my first R&R wasktokura, Japan,

which is kind of on the middle way of the main island there in Japan, south of

Yok ohama. 't s not <cal IPeodncKoBut at haw’, s
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where we went. FIl ew out of Ch’>unch’ on.
Ch” unch’coonul dirhleaynd t he bi gger aircraft
C-47. And the funny thing about flying in a47—of course the war was still

going or—they give you parachutes and told you how to use them and

everything else, and you wore a parachute. | guessfigured if they got

shot down, you could bail out.

We go to Kokura, and of course, | went with two other guys in my
squad. One of them was nanmdtthews and he was frorGreen Alabama.
A big old lanky boy. Another guy was from Springfield, Missonamed

King. Well, King had been over there o
cab when you come out on that main dr a
there, they feed you a steak dinner. \
overthereseveralmbnhs. We’' d never seen anythinc
mean, there’s no buildings where we we
you think, “God, Il ook at this.” I n Jap

of course, the first thing they do is tajkau into the mess hall. You get to eat

as many steaks as you want. A lot of guys ate two. A few of us ate three. They

were small Thone steaks. | remember that Japanese boy looked at us guys

that was eating three stehé&m. | They’ ' I'My
eat us, too."”

Were you one of those people?

| ate a good part of that third steak.
since well, when we shipped out of Sea
meat on the troop ships and edn the mess halls. So that was the first fresh

meat that you actually had seen, you know? Anyway, they actually give us our
uniforms. You got five days. And they cash your money and change it into

yen. Three hundred and sixty yen to a dollar is whaexicshange rate was

then. You could buy a quart of good beer for about fifty yen. So you see you
didn’'t have to have much money. You Kkn

We made Japan rich, by the way. We spent a lot of money over there.
Everybody spent erything they had. | knew guys that come back from
R&R—d i dn’t even have their uniform. The
everything else. What are they going to do to you? Send you to Korea?
(laughs) You know? They come back wearing a towel or a kinlonov e s e en
them do that. And anyway, after we got our uniforms and money and
everything else, they didn’t allow any
street coming out of the R&R camp. But boy, once you hit the main drag out
there, it was like a swarm @fes. The cabs, the rickshaw boys, the pimps,
whores—ever ybody just descended on you |

my place.” They was all trying to get
“Don’t get in one of 't hewheorceahsus el.h’e yW
| said, “ We |l | where in the hell el se d

we got in the cab. The shoeshine boys would sneak up behind you and smear a
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bunch of shit on your shoe and then sa
shine! We | | he just put the sh+do there! |
anything, you know, that they could get by with.

Anyway, so we got in the cab. Sure enough, bingo. Right over to the
nearest cathousea big bar. They had as much as a hundred gals in there.
And they unloaded. Here they all come. All crawled in the car together, and

they'd actually drag you out. Just dr a
You ain’t got much choice. We set down
something to drink, and Kingould send every gal the old gal sent over to

him away. “No, no.” He was married, by
Matthewswasn’'t married. And so the ol d Jay
like any of them. So she brought out her whole troupe of aboygfits and

' ined them up. Said, “You pick! You pi
the place. (laughs) So we did too. So anyway, we ended up in this little R&R
hotel which you could rent for a week’
funstated So | won’t go any further than t

(laughs) Then I go back from Kokura.

My next R&R was Tokyo. That’'s when
sergeant from World War 1) went with me, the first one. Now he knew where
to go. Her indapdn enany times. And he had a little R&R hotel
called the Moray. 1711 never forget it
was a Japanese prince’s home before th
A small hotel. | think only about thirty or fogriguys stayed there. He had
some way of getting in there, and that
out of the main gate, and you were just almost downtown Tokyo. And you
never knew it. Beautiful place. They took care of you and everything else.
You reeded a good place like that to go to and keep your stuff, and you went
out on the town otherwise. That was my twefitst birthday, and | spent it on
Ginza Street in Tokyo. You’'ve heard of

Right.

Well it was themain thoroughfare for everything, just like Broadway or

Times Square. And anyway, the day started out on my twgstyirthday

with the first thing Brown always wanted to do. We had to go down to Rocker
4 Club which was the NCO club PX.

The Rocler meaning the stripes on the insahi

Yeah, Rocker 4. And you had to have four stripes that were three up and one

down to get in there. And they had a big PX that sold everything. | mean

everything that you would want. Well, Brown hadtogoddawh er e. We ' d
always buy a case of Old Forester and take it back to the hotel room. Now of
cour se, he’s in his sixties. He’' s not
didn’'t have to chase them over 1in Japa
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We always took a case of Old Forester back to the room so we could have
something to nip on back there. Anyway, so we go down on the morning of
my birthday. They had another place called the Tokyo Onsen which was a big
family Turkish bath. Have you ever had origtmse Turkish baths with the
Japanese girl that gets up on and walks on your back? Have you ever had one

of them?
DePue: No.
Bentele: You’ve got to do that. Put that on you

to the Tokyo Onsen. And it was actuallfjeanily hot bath, and a big pool. |

mean, you had to ease down there because the water would just about boil

you. And it’'d be whole families. Il  me a
there wasn’t no screwing around, there.
and the girls that took care of yetthey took your clothes, hung them up, and
everything. They’d press them and cl ea
while you was in there. And then they would put you into a steam cabinet.

Now you'r e cdBEverything goheyAndyalkset in the steam

cabinet for a while. It really feels good, by the way, those old steam cabinets.

And then you went out to the pool. There were several pools. And there would

be Japanese families with their kids and everythisg i@ there, all of them

compl etely naked. And you’'d ease down
water had to be well over a hundred degrees. | mean it was damned near
boiling, let’”s put it that way. But on

you got through soaking in that for a while, they took you out and you got on
the massage table. Now these gals were expert on massaging. | mean they
would massage you, and then they had a rail on the ceiling above you. Of

course, t hey’ rTeheywaunld det up on\tthe tableeandluse gheir
feet to walk on you and massage your b
al most walk to Tokyo to get that. But

when you got done, they would do everything for you. If yad & mustache

or anything else, they trimmed it all up. Trimmed your hair if you wanted it.

You didn’t even have to dress yourselHf
trimmed your nails. Done everything. | mean, you were like a new dollar
whenyoucomeow f t here. And they would dr ess
your clothes on you. Put your sock, tie your shoes, tie yourdiess you

completely up, completely. I think all for about twenty bucks.

DePue: |l don’t know i f you camgupédntimthech of a
cold—

Bentele: Oh, God.
DePue: —and then going to something like that.

Bentele: Anyway, that started the day out. And so then we went over to the beer hall.
There was a big old beer hall there at the head of Ginza Street that if you
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knewabout it, everybody went to that beer hall because the beer was cold, and

it was cheap. It had three floors. | remember that. Well, | run into an

Australian soldier, a soldier from Scotland, and one from New Zealand. And

of cour se, t heardlydvonkhow, wg edre weadthye y , h
compared to them. And they always had to stay back at their camp because

they couldn’t afford to stay in a hote
bussed out to it and everything else. Well, they decide to help nirateleny
birthday the right way. So we started drinking. | could drink Nippon beer.
Now it was 18 percent beer. And | ¢
get to a certain | evel and never ge
some guys justvent (makes sound of falling flat

oul
t d

So about middle of the afternoon | called up the old sarge, and | said,
“Bring a couple of bottles of Old Fore
good drink of American whiskey.” So he
with us and celebrate my birthday. Of course, by that time we were well on
the way. (laughter) | mean, well on the way. So they decide they was going to
take me to every joint on Ginza Street
many joints. (laughs) Anyway, watart down Ginza Street, drunker than shit.

Now Gls on R&R during the war, you could just about do anything you

wanted to do in Japan. They didn’t say
you could do anything. And guys done anything too. They thouglastanbig

sport at one time. They would grab these Japanese businessmen that would be

all dressed up, and they had a lot of canals in downtown Tokyo. You know,

they cross the street, they’d grab the
inthecanal. laugh) | " m telling you, it was |i£Kk
only way | can describe it. Mixed up with a Woodstock, you know? (laughter)

| mean, guys just went nuts. But they put a stop to that. | think one of those

guys drowned, and, you know, they put a stofhat. (laughs)

The time | was over there on the second R&R, the war was over. And
they were tightening down what you could get away with. They still left you
alone, but you couldn’t rampage, in ot
starteddownGima Street, and where | |l ost the
anyway, some little Japanese gal got a hold of me. Anyway, | ended up out in
the outskirts of Tokyo in the resident
different now. But these were placeshwibe little huts and the little narrow
streets just about this wide between them.

Just about three feet wide?

Oh, yeah. Just | i ke you was in a maze.
where | was. You know, | woke up in the mornirg Wheeri n t he hel |

| mean, I still had my billfold, and | was still alive. (laughter) Anyway, they

took care of me. Took me out to the bus stop. Got me on the right bus to

downt own Tokyo. So | survived it. But
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twerty-f i r st Dbirthday I|i ke that. I guar an

even want to mention.
DePue: You mean, they didn’t hear some

Bentele: Oh, God, no. The way | got on third R&R was, they had a slot open. And

nobody was gimg to take it up. Well, you had to have money for one thing.

And so | said I"1l1l take it. And
flew out of Yong Dong Po on a-C24, and you ended up in Tachikawa Air
Force Base in Tokyo where you landed.

DePLe: And the Yong Dong Po is Seoul s

Bentele: Right across the Han River from Seoul. Big airport. Now when |
talked about the @7s and the parachute, al24 even to this day is a huge
airplane. | mean, if you’
Museum in Dayton, take a | ook at

mean, triple decks in it. | mean, a big clamshell front. That sucker had four

engines and stubby wings. Didn’ t

workhorse airplandt hauled tons of stuff in there and still put two hundred

men upstairs. And no parachute.

damn airplane anyway. | mean, this plane was humongous. But anyway, you

never got a parachute. You just got on there add.r8o anyway, anytime

you went to Tokyo, that’s what you
Now | didn’t do any messing around

of rotating back to the States,

downwith( | aughter) some kind of disease.

enough to cure vy

ou. They didn’t
di seased state. That ' s

Anyway | was within a few weeks of rotating back. So | went on

R&R, and this time | neer done anything but sightsee. Bought my sister the
china. Made a call home. | actually put in a call over in Tokyo and called the

house. Now the way they done that then was the overseasHaaifis
Telephone Service. And they way they done it is, yeatvdown to the

telephone office, and you placed your order and your telephone number, and
you was calling the States. And they informed you when to come. You had to
wait maybe a day. Then they woul d
Five
and that was a lot of money back then. I think it was sixty dollars. In order to

get my brothers and sisters and everybody there at the time | was going to call,
Bell Telephone called aheadaite and sai d, “You know,
goingtocallatthissuecandsuch a time.” And they
talk to my parents and brothers and sisters. And | think | spent sixty or sixty

We' re goeyougcatabsudaads uch a t i me.

five dollars for that one phone call.

DePue: That woud have bought a lot of beer at the time.
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Oh, yeah. Anyway, I wasn’'t partying on
through the Imperial Palace, the parts you could. Went to the Imperial Hotel.

Went around and saw Tokyo sober. (laughter) Anduaky had a good time.

But anyway, flying back to Korea, | had another little escape at Tachikawa

Air Force Base. They were still flyingB7s out of thEre. You
every now and then take effa real odd sight. You know, it looked like it was

all propellers. And anyway, we was flying back in thid24. (laughs) Me

and this other sergeant was setting there, and we was discussing whether that
damn thing would fly on two engines, Yy
to find out, queddusg.t"haMe dmeoked out
enough, one of the engines on the starboard side had oil running out of it, and

the pilot was feathering the prop on that engine. So we had just got over the

coast of Korea. And then, what he done, he killedother engine on the

other side to balance the airplane up

Wel | 11 tell you the truth. Time we
mil es further, we was down i n the Han
today were there then, we wouldn’t have

We were coming in on a real long glide. And he landed that up on the upper

end of the Yong Dong Po airstrip which
airport. Man, we rolled the wimlength of the runway because he reversed
propell ers, but he didn’t have enough
that much. And he actually ended up dropping the nose. We would have lost

the end of the runway into the sand. You know, and we wasokiladighing

about it You know, we wasn’t worried.
see. | know he had a jeep down in the lower hold. He had at least ten tons of
mai | t hrowed on there. And a bunch of

forget ths. There was a major flying the airplane. And when he opened up the
hatches, well they all come out in the jeep. This one guy hollered up to him.

He knew him. And he says, “Hey, you di
major was flying this trip to get &iair time in. You know, they got extra

money i f they flied so much. And that
know, you damn near ditched us.” You Kk
Well, you're here, sitting here, talki
Yeah.

Did you get any injuries while you were there?

Oh, just the wusual bumps and scrapes t
you know? But other than that, no combat injuries.

How about any special medals or citatiovisle you were there?

Well now, | did get several letters of commendation and citation. One of them
in particular had to do with an i1 nstal
Corps was redone and widened and lengthened to get biggeetsad
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airplanes. And this was after the ceasefire. Of course, they was realigning all

the tents—putting them in nice rows and policing everything up. Well, the

commander of the airstrip wanted a speaker system put in and new telephone
service. Of courseaw, our central office is over this way, and the Han River

is over this way, and the airstrip is between the two. So the way | had to get
cableinthereeand this is a true story. (1l aug!
picture of this little dog in here to@ne of the guys had a little puppy he had

picked up and kept. And anyway, there was an iron pipe about eight inches

thick that went underneath the airstrip all the way to the other side. And | had

to get cable over there t ationsmhprove t he
couldn’”t go around the end of that air
there was field wire buried kind of in the ground in the runway. So | had to

put some cable over there. It wah e | | |  d-ahundted yamdso w

through this tube over éne. So | got the little puppy dog. Got this guy that

was his master down at the other end of the pipe. And we tied a real thin cord,

|l i ke fish cord, around the dog’s coll a
guy start hollering for him over at the ottend. (laughter) And actually, that

little dog run right through that pipe, the first run. He went straight through it,

just like an arrow. And he actually ended up running out over there. And then

we took the fish cord, and we pulled through a rope tlagl we pulled

through the cable. (laughs) Anyway, we get over there, and | rewired this guy

all up. Fixed him up with a fancy phone service and everything else. And put

his speaker system in and the whole bit.

Well, he sent me a nice letter of commenatatio the company
commander. And the company commander gave me another commendation.
And | got one when | got out of the service down here when they have the
corps general. Il 11 tell you, this was
has to rebuild. think it was General White. The engineers and him built this
mess hall where he wanted to be able to welcome dignitaries. The Senators
started popping up over there. You know, the war was over and they wanted
to get their overseas trips in. And they hddtaf dignitaries, so he wanted a
nice place to feed them, you know? They had plenty of those round rocks in
Korea, and they built everything out of them. The engineers and the Koreans
built this nice big rock mess hall. | mean, it was elaborate witly,ebi
conference table down the middle efHdlining table. Well, they wanted
communications put in theretelephone particularly. So | devised this jack
box, and |I’'d seen this before so it wa
that | had to make theachn thing. Had a woodworker. A carpenter made me
some boxes and put telephone jacks in it. And so | had those installed in the
wall all the way around the dining tableabout four on each side. They had
Army stewards, the cooking people, in white jacket$ @rerything else, you
know. | wired it up so that all the stewards had to do when a call come in for
whoever was therethe general, or colonel, or whoewewas just take the
phone with the cord with the plugging end of it, and go around to where the
officer was, and set it down in front of him, and reach over the wall, and
(makes sound of plugging in) jack it i
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their call setting right there. Boy, they thought that was really nice. Well, it
was. (laughs) That really immsed the hell out of them. And | got a nice
commendation out of that there.

You had talked about this a little bit before, but Korea is really the first war
for the United States military that you had an integrated Army. Any
reflections on how thavent?

Well, Il tell you. |l had a bl ack pla
Il can’t r e meetemanor something lkenteat. Anyway, he

was a good guy, and he was a career sergeant. He done his work, and he was a
good guy. Ad when | was a platoon sergeant, | selected a black kid from

South Philadelphia named Roosevelt Palmer, and he was my assistant platoon
sergeant . | * ve ¢ otatopghguy. umeansa reallytobghm 1 n
old South Philly black guy. In fact, treewas a guy from Georgia that

challenged him up there after he got his sergeant. He was an old Southern
hillbilly. And Pal mer said, *“AIll right
out in the brush behind the camp and had at it. And Palmer beat trmitrap

of this guy. And next morning when | heard about him (his head was swelled

up and everythingd went up around to the guy fr

do you want to do here?” You know of c
“Take my shliongeffa $émgeaant.” And t he
“Not Hiendoeat me fair and square.” But |

reasons | picked Palmer was that he had the respect of all the black guys that

knew him, and the white guys too. And he was prettghfair with

everybody. The blacks had a tendency at that time to group together, and they
woul d play their musithandl d€vhalt amwg’ Worc

bunnies” then, you know? And when they
reverted back ttheir black neighborhoods. Sorry to say, but they did. | mean,
|l " m just speaking the truth. But Pal me

found out that there was a bunch of them got together in the tent by

themselves, he wanted them to stay dispersedvduld actually go in there

and tell them, ®“Look, you guys break t
everybody el se. |l ain’t going to have
do that. And he would spread them out, so that was about the only thing

would say. And like | say, there was only a few of them that were trained as
operators that could do it. I don’t Kkn
school to do it, but there was not too many of them that were technicians. And

so we used them gmiards, truck drivers-you know, stuff like that. But there

was a few that could do 1it, but | don’
schools didn’t take the time to train

You didn’t have any directeBlutevddti ng wi t
was the general impression you and other soldiers you served with had of the
Chinese and the North Korean soldier?
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Bentele: They were good. |l mean, | et nobody ki d
weren’t | aundry men.,particilarlg garlywe The good s
Chinese wasn’'t volunteer. They sent h

€

t
good training ground for them. And th
give up their lives. And the North Koreans were vicious. You know, none of
them were pantywaists, let’s put 1t th:
of the American soldiers. They had this idea that, you know, we were best. So
| had a lot of respect for them.

DePue: How about some of the civilian population? Comparedeagthys who were
in the frontline units, you were moving around in the countryside quite a bit
more and probably saw some of the South Korean people more.

Bentele: Well, yeah. Of course at that time they were still a very Third World country.
And | remembethis one area back behind us there where we used to go to
make radio tests. It was as primitive as you could get. You very seldom ever
seen a piece of iron in the farm grounds. And this is where the houses and the
barns were together. Animals and peopled in the same buildirgvery
primitive. And they had areas like that all over. And of course, we had contact
with a few of them through the KSCs, t
where they put the men that were too old to combat or too lame teweha
They put them in the Service Corps, and you could go down there, and you
could check out a hundred men just like you would slaves. | mean, you know,
“1 want a hundred men.” Load them up a
day long doing whateverpd, you know, that was how they served. | actually
had a Korean houseboy that was part Japarksemother was Japanese
that | used as an interpreter. He could speak pretty good English. Our chaplain
picked him up with some other war orphans about 195Ptlaay stayed with
the battalion all the way through to the end. And | used him as an interpreter.
He could speak Japanese and English pretty well. Mainly it was cuss words he
used. (laughter) And naturally, Korean. But he was a real sharp kid, about
twelve years old. And he could just about do anything. Best poker player |
ever saw. (laughter) And in fact, | was lucky enough when | made a return
visit to Korea that | was able to get a hold of him and met him in Seoul for a
reunion. He was living in Seatfl@/ashington, running Korean tourist groups.

|l think that’'s where he stil!]l i s. Can
|l eft over in Korea, and | ’>ve got pictu
three years later to find him.

DePue: That is amazing.

Bentele: | think | was the only one that ever done it.

DePue: Did you have any KATUSAS working with your unit? Korean augmentees?

Bentele: No, unhu h . See, l' i ke I told you, there wa

troops. They di dn SignalCargseengineeysyou They had
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know, they didn’t have anybody I|i ke t
that’ s what we started doing right af
camp and selected South Korean soldiers that wanted to learn the
communicabns. And we run regular cycles through our training camp. | had

two sergeants and two corporals over there as instructors. And they went

through a training camp just like we went through. We tried to set it up just

like the training schools in the Statesteach them the basics about wire
communications.

Did you find them to be receptive students?

Well, we kind of picked them. | mean, we went to the units, and there were

guys that would volunteer for that. Well then | had Little Joe Itbeean
interpreter], and |I’'d say, “Ask them t
questions: What kind of schooling did they have? How far did they go in

school? Did they have arithmetic? Did they have any science? We actually

found out, and we selectecetbnes that had went to school, and we found a

few of them. And that’'s how we done it

How well did they take to the training?

Well, they took real good to it. And | used to take them down in the villages

and have them wire up villagesfore | ephone service. And t
leave it. They liked that. That was working in their own country. | had all
kinds of materi al |l eft over at the end

go down to these villages and have them wire up a whitdg@iand run
wires everywhere. We would put in a telephone and leave them.

You were there for several months after the armistice started.
Yeah.
How did conditions for you and American troops change?

Well, they changed a Idsetter. Like | said, they started to align up all the

tents and make it more military. And we had all new vehicles at that time. We

had better food. | mean, you know, they started getting a little more different

kind of food. We had more shows. Ofcounggg u” r e getting mor e

How quickly did the Army start sending American troops home?
Well, there was continual rotation. That never changed.

There would be troops who were arriving and leaving?

Yeah.

But were hey sending some divisions home?
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Bentele: We | | now, I didn’t know of any divisio
whole divisions—parts of them were sent. But they still had the replacement
system and the pipeline from the States. And there wer&atils coming
over to replace the ones that were theneaybe not as many. And there was
continually troops going back through the repo system. In fact, when | rotated

back, you didn’t know exactly when you
showedup,and hey sai d, “Your name’s on the
you had enough time to go around and say goodbye to everybody. And |

remember | had a working Russian burp

had a Russian carbine that was issued ®iCthinese because it had a short
stock. And | had one .45 pistol and another .45 nipkelat ed pi st ol (I
up from somebody that r-edratteastthey Coul dn

said, “Don’t even attempt it .thetWhen you
away from you.” | reall ylwokdavegtthht about
have had that Russian burp gun. | woul

dollars today. (laughs) | had fired it. It was, you know, in good working order.
And had the drum, yoknow? And when | walked out, well, | put the burp

gun, the two rifles, the two pistetsthrew them down on my bunk and turned
around and walked out the door and got on the truck. So whoever found them,

got them.

DePue: “Ascom City”?

Bentele: Yeah, that vas up by Inchon.

DePue: That sounds like an acronym. Is it?

Bentele: No, it’s not. That’'s actgeadnm Andgwu Kor ean
can |l ook it up on the map. I1It’>s right
everybody went reomthedvaywback. Anyway, e kndw thiath e
the X Corps and the Fourth Signal was going to go back stateside soon. |
me an, |l didn’t know exactly when.

DePue: So the entire unit then would be redeployed?

Bentele: Yeah, well, the flag.

DePue: Okay.

Bentele: They left the unitthe people over there, and dispersed them out. What they
called moving the wunit. Just the fl ag

Kansas. And Fourth Signal was disbanded after a while. In fact, talking to the

guys that was there, thaapened about two months after I left. But | had to

turn in all my TO&E, which is Table of Organization and Equipment. And so

| had turned in everything that | was supposed to have that was on my TO&E

list, all the equipment, all the weapons. We also bad Browning
shotguns—automatics<i n our weapons arsenal. A |o
that we used shotguns over there too. A lot of troops did. In trench warfare,
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they' re the best thing you could have.
shoot birds. Thereras a lot of pheasants over there. Yeah. Anyway, we had

all the weapons we were supposed to have. All the equipment for telephones,
switchboards, repairing them, everything that we had in there. | turned it all

in. I still had two tents full of materiak#ting there. (laughs) | even asked the

commander, “What am | going to do with
mar ket where you could have sold it. F
of stuff, and | just wal kkgds awpay yand s
(laughs) You know, “The hell with i11t.7”

Anyway, we just had a big beer party. The whole battalion had a big
going away party, more or less about, oh, two or three days before | rotated.
And | mean, a big party. Everybody, you know, was therel we had ice.
Very seldom you would ever get ice, but we had ice from down in the
engineer outfit. Beer, everything. Music. And so we had a big party. Had beer
left over too. We had four of us rotating back. Two of the guys | had come
over on the ship wit One of them waSchumeythe moto#pool sergeant.
And so we took one of the duffel bags and took all of the clothes out of it and
put the clothes over in everybody el se
and we lined them up in this one duffel bagdAnl don’t know how
cases you could get in a duffel bag, but it was so damn heavy you could
hardly pick it up. A lot of beer. So we started drinking beer when we left, and
we left a trail of beer cans all the way across Korea, because you had to go
clear across Korea to get to Ascom City. And we still had a little beer left
when we got to Ascom City.

When you get to Ascom City, you end up going through the clothing

exchange. Of course, they didn’t want
with you. Ard the hemorrhagic fever was carried by a parasiery
dangerous. (laughs) 1t’s almost | i ke t

hemorrhagic fever? Oh, boy. You get that, you either do two things: You die,

or you get better. Themlygyoded YOu no i n ©b
would hemorrhage on the inside. Blood would come out of your ears, your

eyes, your skin. You’'d just hemorrhage
living on the ground and by vermiamice or rats—just about like the Black

Plague. Andso anyway, in Ascom City you stayed in the barracks up there. In

the morning you'd go down to process.
could have |l eft any amount of weapons
it because there was some guyswentdawnd di dn’t come back
were there when | come back, and they
have stuck my burp gun in the mattress and carried it out. Anyway, we go

down. They’ve got a clothing exehange,
end. Your cap goes in one bin. Your shirt goes in another. Your pants in

another one. Your shoes in another one. Your socks in another one. When you

get to the end, well, they start giving you your clothes batile fresh clothes.

They took everything-even your duffel bag which you never get rid of in the

service. | had the same duffel bag | went in the service with. You know, it
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went all that way. In fact, | even argued. | said, you know, | had my name

painted on that, and everything else on there. |said | want t o keep
They said, “No, you can’t."” | had one
my dad had in Worl d Warloaderslké@phthetn’ s how
stacked up in that little leather cartridge case. And they took exen y

shaving gear because guys would hide stuff in the bottom of the shaving

pouch. This cartridge case was made out of leather, about that thick. And |
said, “I’"m going to tell you: You’ Il h
the story behind it. Aththey let me keep it. (laughs) Anyway, when you come

out the other end, you had all new geaverything. Shaving kit, everything.

Duffel bag, new clothes, the whole bit. They sewed your chevrons on.

Everything else that you had. And you went back up to parracks to wait

for shipment out to the ship.

And so anyway, that’s when | found
weapon up there because they never looked in your gear again. Never. All the
way back—clear back to Macon, Missouri. Nobody ever inspegtmdagain.

That was it. One inspection was it.

Anyway, it processed pretty fast because they had the ship waiting out
there—theWeigelwas the name of it. No, tl@eneral Pope | " m sorry. |
the General PopeTheWeigelwas the one when we went to hon. And we
done the same thing. Only by that time they had already built a wharf way out
into the mudflat, clear to low tide, that you walked out on. | mean, that damn
wharf would float up during the high tide, and you would walk about, oh hell,
at leasta quarter of a mile or further to get to the LST, then you loaded onto
the ship. And coming back, it was the quietest ride you ever saw. The whole
Pacific was just as cakmjust a slight swell in it. | was thankful for that,
because | di dtnforget exaetty hosvéolagst tockkrom B u
Inchon. It seemed like about fifteen daysomething like that.

Was theGeneral Popsyour standard troop ship?

Yeah, it was a twstacker—a pretty good ship. And knowing the trouble the

guys from Vieham and the guys from Iraq and Afghanistan now face when

they come back | always have maintaine
time. You fly back. You fly everywhere you go now. You get picked up, and
within a few hour s ytaougudick fer cdmhatduysst at e s i
One thing, you have to learn how to adjust your thinking and your language

and everything else. And riding back on a troop ship gives you that time. |

think that’s the best thing in the wor
get off than you was when you got on. And | think it all has to do with that

long ship ride. | really think that there was a lot of benefit to that.

Where did you make port?
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In San Francisco. Now you got to look at the other side of idgdarComing

back, they landed us at Treasure Island. Of course, we had a bunch of Marines

on there too. And they got off on Trea
off on the starboard side of the ship. And they had bands and all sorts of

hoopla. Youknowhow the Marines do. And | mean the families were

welcoming them and everything else there. Of course, that was a Marine base,

you know? And the soldiers we unloaded on the other side in ferries. And then

they took us up to Camp Stoneman. And of cqurgeen we got off at

Stoneman, it was getting pretty dark and pretty late in the day. They processed

us at Stoneman, and it was just another repo depot where they processed the
troops. There was nothing. | mean, nobody there. (laughs) Nothing. You
know,een t he people that was going to st
meet their people there. They processed us through there real fast and put us

on a Southern Pacific train, a passenger train.

| had to go to Fort Carson, Colorado. And | remember onexdirgt
stops. We had Pullmans. Of course, it was two nights over there. The black
porters on there, they come prepared. All of them had two or three cases of
halfpi nt s of whiskey they were selling.
| mean, they made buck or two off of each of them. But they had two or
three great big cases of halhts setting in each car. And they all sold itfer
| think it was less than five bucks. You know, pretty reasonable. You could
buy them then for about a buck and a hdiaH-pint. And so everybody had a
drink. And we welcomed that. Anyway (laughs), the funny thing about it was
the Southern Pacific goes through Las Vegas. Of course, Las Vegas at that
time was just a little dusty owif-the-way place. Well, they stoppedette for
either a crew change or something. And we were out of booze. Right across
the way was a |l iquor store. So they sa
| said, “Give me two or three guys to
away we went over tthe liquor store and bought as much as we could grab
out of there and loaded back up and headed back to the train. | told the porter,
“Don’t | eave.” (laugh) 1t was Las Vega

Finally we got back to &@ungoCar son,
our thirty-day leave. And then | had to go back to Carson to get orders where
we was going to be stationed. They gave you a choice of where you can go. If

you'd | eft an outfit, regular Army guy
going backo that original assignment that you got levied out of if there was a

space for you. So | said naturally, * &
They | ooked at me | i ke, “You’  ve got to
where | came fgomenfThat Teywysasd] *“ Wel
something in the Fifth Army area becau
(laughs) 1 said, “What the hell ?” And

You gave it a shot.
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Yeah. And so anyway, when | pigkoit t o For
any camp in the Fifth Army area, and i
Wel | | I picked out every camp except F
they sent me.

But that’'s the Army way, isn’t 1 t? (1| a

Yeah. But anyway, | deon thirty-day leave out of Colorado Springs and take

the train to Kansas City and take the
written home for probably, oh, at least three months because | was busy.

There was nothing to write about, and | knew | was gtorge rotating. |

didn’t know exactly when. So | didn’'t
When you’'re a rotation back, you ain’t
moving all the time. So | get off the train in Macon. You ever been over to
Macon,Missouri? It was about four or five thousand then, a small town. Grew

up there. Anyway, | take a cab. Of <cou
uniform. I go home and walkk#ra bout t he mi ddl e of t he
home. I mean, Momddsdnbtut wabpkki agd But

brothers and sisters, there was always somebody home. Of course, there was

not that many of us at home then, but there was still half a dozen at least. And

it was summertime. School was out. Not a soul. So the lady abmsge¢et

was good friends. Her name waances Creel think. Yeah. Anyway, she

come running over, “My God, you’'re hon
t hat . |l said, “Well, where’'s everybody
mom’s up at ht hCearhodsymi”t almywiytoungest si
she’s got nephritis or something serio
her . I sai d, “Okay. [ call a cab."”
her car and away we went up to the hospishme hepital still standing.

And | walk in the door, and of course, everybody in Macon knew who | was.

Like | say, in full uni form. So | said
up the stairs and to the right. So | go up there, and all these nurses follow me

up. (tearfully) This is hard to say. (laughs) Anyway, | walk in, and Mom was

over on the other side of the room wit

going on here?” Mom turned around and
Norbert, can’ tn’'ysousisceke? "t h(alta uCghrtodry) An
herself. (pause) Anyway, then she, you
ment al picture of the neighbor and the
hell ?2” (Il aughs)

Wel l , that’'s a f uymowngsdrydoryu.as wel | as
Yeah.

| imagine that was quite a night too, once you got everybody home.

Yeah, it was. Sorry about that. Anyway, and then | get back right after my
thirty-day leave. | buy a car and drive out to Fort Gar<olorado, and they
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assign me back to Ford Leonard Wood, so | drive all the way back here to

Fort Leonard Wood. Wel, Il " m assigned
Sergeant of the 314th Signal Battalion. The story behind that is that the 314th

was the gjnal battalion for the Eightginth Division in the First World War

which my dad was 1 n. So anyway, |l " m do
duties | get was | ' m-fvaopourgueyeftomt o t ak e
battalion (of c¢ ou+theenginedisandetufslikeahath er g u
down to the State Fair at Sedalia and put on an exposition. We lived right
there. Put up the tents. Had a mess ha
in the Army | ever had a bugler. We had a bugler even. You knayeg

mess call and all the other bugle calls none of us paid any attention to. And

you know, we showed the equipment off and how the Army lived and stuff

like that. Well, that lasted for about two weeks.

| come back to the cowvegkgeh sndweand we
get notified that the whole company is going to convoy out to Camp Hale,
Colorade—which is right on top of the Continental Dividell winter long
for the Mountain and Cold Weather Training exercise. Camp Hale is where
the Tenth Mountain Rision trained during the Second World W-seski
troopers. And so they sent me and all the rest of the sergeants to take a crash
course in convoying. And there was a lot more to it than you realize when
you' ' re going to move a hnmenacrosthisvehi cl e
country. (laughs) It takes some planning. Also | went to demolition school so |
could learn how to blow holes in the rock up there. So we was to build
communication for this big skrooper exercise. They were afraid the
Russians were gagnto come over the polar ice cap at that time, and they
wanted to have troops trained for Mountain and Cold Weather Trainig.
we get all loaded up. | mean, we convoyed out there in segments oftwenty
five vehicles at a time. The cooks even had a bigean the back end of a
deuceanda-half, and they cooked on the run and made sandwiches and
everything else. And we had fuel trucks. We had a trail officer that paid the
claims that might be put against us. And in fact, my job was laying the damn
route ait. | had to find places to park all this stuff at noon and refuel and eat,
and generally keep them safe. That was a hell of a job.

That sounds easy, but that was, I " m su
Oh, God. I had a truckl| oadeadboutamttout t h
thirty minutes ahead of time, and wherever there was a railroad credidiag

Wi chita, I had to get the police to es

route change at an intersection, | had to put a guard there to direct the traffic.
Otherwise, those guys would just drone off into the distance, you know? Your
troops would be scattered everywhere. And that was a job. And | had to find a
place at noon where we could drive the fuel trucks down the line of trucks to
fuel them. And then als@f the cooks to distribute food and water and
whatever. And trying to find a place for a hundred trucks and that many men
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to go to the bathroom. You couldn’t ju
“Here, park here.” (laughter)

We even camped out. Thiest camp out was in Kansas. It was in a
school football field. We pitched pup tents and stayed in pup tents. The next
night we stayed in Lamar, Colorado, in an old Air Force hargaside, but
we still had to sleep on the concrete. And the next nigiwagein Camp
Carson. Now Camp Hale had no buildings except a field house which we
played basketball in. It got to fortyo below zero. The average temperature

out there was in the thilgelowz er o r ange every day. Yo
thousandandsorml d f eet. And you’  re working s
and everything else you had to do. It was so cold in the mess hall, they

couldn’t even wipe the tables off. The

they would keep the bread from really freezirkg la rock, they put it in the
cooler. That insulated it a little bit. Now we stayed in the field twelve hours at
a time, and they’' d feed us at noon out

Now amazingly, you're up at that al
cold.lmea the sun is so warm on you, VYyou
know, as |l ong adogbtu dweat, gdonwetfall
because you'll freeze |i ke a rock. And
know, the fresh bread would be frozethg time you got through eating it.

That's the truth. You couldn’t even bo
the burners in the fiftfive gallon drums that they have for sterilizing your

mess kit. Uswually you’'ve glbdntto bhaivle t
water up there. There’s no way you cou
day |l ong. You could stick your hand do
bet ween warm and hot. You couldn’t boi

We had the only two horse oultfits left imetservice at that timethe
Forty-Fifth Quartermaster pack and the Fourth Field Artillery pack. And they
were up there training also, with pack mules. | actually served with the last
two cavalry units.

Did you get any time off while you were there?

Well, we worked eight days in a row, t
threeday passes to go anywhere we wanted
those ski resorts like at Glenwood Springs. Only rich people skied then. It was
tooexpensiveeAd | mean, the gals in those sk
show up over there with our uniforms on. Hell, we never had to buy nothing,

you know? (laughter) You had to push them off of you, you know? Yeah. And

that was the third winter now that | spengitent.

Which place was the coldest of those three places?
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Colorado. By far. And we worked up there. We worked hard. That was the
only Mountain and Cold Weather Training command exercise they ever had.
And the snow. When we got up theretba 3rd of September, it snowed three
foot, the first snow up at the top of the mountain. Cooper Hill is a ski resort

that' s there now. It s about, oh, fift
where Camp Hale is. Thr eeoufkmmwthissf snow
a pretty good snow.” And they said, “N
were right. Ten foot of snow was not hi

believe the amount of snow that fell up there. Or course, they taught us how to
ski. We learned the rudiments of skiing. You know, that was kind of fun. And
we would go up with the vehicles as snowcats. We was building these lines up
over Resolution Pass, another area up there, and we would take the snowcats
where we was ddialways takeacoupl® af airs of\wlas

with us, and it would be a fifteemile run back down to the camp,n d we ' d
ski down the road as we went back. So that was kind of neat, you know?

Well, for some reason | ' m attendimgki ng |
bar.

n

Oh, yes. Well anyway, we were talking about R&R over in Japan. Leadville,
Colorado, in the wintertime at that time of day was just as bad or worse. Of

course, all of these troops that was up there were specialized troops. We had

the cavalry wunits. We had what you cal/l
them that back then. They were just specialized airborne, infantry, and

everything else that were up there taking part in this exercise. Well, these are
hot-blooded lads anyway. @, then we got the cowboys that live up there.

They ain’t got anything else to do in
drink. Then you got the local establishments and the miners. They were still

doing a lot of mining in Leadville, particularly Clem, which is right north of
townthere~=bi g mol y [ mol ybdenum] mine. | dor
up there. Had miners, cowboys, and soldiers. (laughter) And whores. Now can

you i magi ne? Yo uthaere were threa ohthemvewenttov e r n
quite ofe n . It was called the Silver Doll al
that owned that. | was running around with her a little bit. Her jealous

boyfriend shot her right through here with a .38 pistol before he went to

prison.

Right through the bis?

Right bel ow her ribs. Didn’t break any
through here. And she owned and operated the Silver Dollar there on the main

street in Leadville, named after that old silver kifgylor Street. Anyway, as

a warning tlat she had better not mess around on him. Well, he was in the

Carson City Prison. Well|, I run ar ound
showed me that damn bull et wound, and
sai d, “Oh, he shotn.me Ymaf &krneo wh e awmealn tl
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“Son of a bitch. Here | am...” (laught
out.

Anyway, you’'d have to fight your wa
they’d be fighting. The cowboyes, and t
fighting right outside the damn bar. |
push your way through the fight. Somebody would just walk up and smack
you. And you fought while you was in the tavern and fought to get back out of
the tavern. And there wawd taverns down there together called the Pastime
and the Pioneer. The Pioneer Club had a beautiful French rosewood bar and
back bar that was taken up there during the Gold Rush and silver days, about
1870 or 1880, by horsebaely mule pack. Beautiful. | san, it had big old
round rosewood pillars clear to the ceiling. And it had all the wings and
attachments that went with a fancy bar like that. She was offered almost a
million dollars for that bar. Some guy down in Denver wanted it, and she
wo u | d nit Tthe lsgent Wwas that the miners used to stand there, and there
was about that big a gap from the ceiling down to that big round pillars that
was the back bar.

Just a couple of inches.

Bentele: Yeah. And they’d throwydpoelthdt. coi ns u

You'd throw coins up theAmrdadadnbtoumnelel
much we (laughter) throwed in there. Anyway, | got to know that gal that run

t hat place too. And being as | was pre
d o. Iphedtend ear, more or less to keep the soldiers in line too, you

know? (l aughs) They didn’t mess with n
know her pretty good. And she’d pay me
That place right there had a cathousstaips. It had about eight girls working

in the cathouse. When they weren’'t who
waiting tables or setting there drinking with the soldiers and miners and

everything else. Had a good friend of mine narmdadvey Myer he wa off

the Rosebud Indian Reservation. Big old Indian. And he was a good old boy.
Anyway, we would run around together out there. You know, you pretty much

had to take a buddy with you, (laughs) to pick your bloody remains up.

Anyway, | remember when we hadrked across the street, and we was

walking into the bar. And thesetwominers * d esti mate their ¢
probably in their early thirties. Real good old husky boys. And they were

whipping the shit out of about four soldiers right there in front efaiace. |

mean, two of them were taking on four easily. But when they got through with

the four soldiers, we kind of watched them for a little bit. They dusted their

hands off and wal ked into the bar to d
takethem.Léts j ump them.” | said, “You’'ve g
about to.” He says, “Jesus Christ. You
(Il aughter) Say, “Hey buddy, Yealysou know,
the police out there did policing only wheneglly got serious. They all

carried .45 revolvers on their hip. N O
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but surprisingly, if you run from them... This one soldier did. They had a trial
going on for this one police officer. And instead of shooting atahe sl i e r ’
legs, the officer plugged him right in the middle of the back and killed him
deader than hell with the .45. But they all wore cowboy boots and carried .45
holstered, you know. One of them gave me a ticket for sometkpagking

wrong, or somethingdAnyway, the gal who worked at the Silver Dollar Bar
said, “Go over there to the miner’s ba
judge. She said, “He’'l/I be over there
couple of drinks and teldha&at ' ms welaat ylou
went over to the miner’s bar, which wa
And the old judge was in there about thgemrters drunk. So | bought him a

S

couple of drinks and pulled out my tic
do me a |ittle favor here?” I sai d, “
soldiers don’t make much money.” And h
goddamn guy is doing it again.” He sali

he wrote ond trheelreeas‘epd”i danmadh ever yt hing
to me. (laughter) That was the lives and times in Leaduville.

Well, this sounds like right out of a 1950s western in fact.

't was. It actually was t maybroowbiy. That
really was.
Well, |l et’'s get you back to Fort Leona

All right. After we done our stint up there, it was middle of March or late

March when we | eft Camp Hal e. Now we' d
convoyed back the samey as we went out, laying the route out. Of course,

it was pretty cold then coming across Kansas. And the funny thing about it,

it’s surprising how much in these smal
pulled into, I think Limon, Colorado, which is not evday very big. It was

a little bitty town. We pulled in there, and we were staying at the hangar out

there. And sure enough, the bar owners had already transported a bunch of
prostitutes in to set up camp. Just like that. They knew a hundred soldiers

wer e coming and staying overnight. And

How much longer did you have after you returned to Fort Leonard Wood
then?

Wel | | here’ s what | did. We come back
looked like they hatbeen down in Florida all winter because we were burnt

brown from the snow and the sun. And everybody was in damn good shape
because the high altitude cuts every b
wor ki ng. I me a n, lt’'d seaeVvVegrylabdy’ $ uis
good shape. We get back to Fort Leonard Wood. We had missed the Army

field test that the Army gives units to qualify therthe Army qualification

test. So, guess what?
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Just a physicditness test?

No. The whole comgny goes out in the field and sets up camp and stays in

the field for a week. And they assign you projects like buildihgproject

was building a mile of pole line. And they just give me a coordinate on the

map and the mat er i alndtheyjudge yabythe “ Her e vy
speed that you get it in how good it i
for speed, but iIit’s got to work when vy
They have the guys going around, you know, with the armbands and judging

you. And they take part of your troops

You know, it’s a regul acCaptainBagtoldr eadi nes
me—he said, Now, you’'re getting out at the
“You don’t havRutt ohgos aiud, t“hRay, "I " d s
you.” And | sai d, “Oh, [ do it."”

So we go out in the Army test, and like | say, my project was building
this mile of pole line with everything in+tall the transpositions, the wires,
the cable—everything hado be done complete. Well, | had a little trick up my
sleeve. | had these line trucks then with a platform on top of them. But the
platform on top of them with the railing would be just about the height of the
cross arms on the poles. Well, | set my reglsind pulled the reels out with
the vehicles in front of there. Run them up over the top of these big Army
trucks, Iine trucks. And the guys woul
could just stand right up there. The cross arm on the pole was just almos
waist level. Had to do all their work while at the top of the truck. Had two of
them going down each side of the pole line like that. And we finished that
pole line in under four hours from start to finish. From the time they give me
the coordinates, aridound where it was supposed to-gbecause | had to
find it on the map—-and started, and had these hole diggers. And by the time |
got it in there, | built that mile of pole in less than four hours. And the
inspectors come by, uand utshey | opipe.d ‘Ye
Well, they looked it over, and they could not find anything wrong at all
except ..

There was already two sergeants that had been assigned to the platoon
to take over when | left. And | put them to work ringing up the cable. $&d u
to ring cable. We used to have these tension rings. The cable used to lay in
them. You still see some of them hanging around. And when they started
ringing this couple of spans of cable they were supposed to put in, they put the
first four rings backwals to the rest of them. There was nothing wrong with
it l't’s just that vyou could either st
four of them at the first pole was turned opposite than the rest of them. And it
was the two sergeants (laughs) that wmasharge of it. They gigged me four
points—one f or each one of those rings. |

never seen one built better.” And he s
that.” He said, “But |’ ve" Dlhey twor’itnd
believe—l can’t give you 100 percent.” So
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was the best t hat had ever been done.

best | ’ve ever seen.” The next day, wh
one day left. And started processing out that very next day. It was the 30th of
March. They worked me every day except
that’ s when Bowman Barr, the captain,
thing for you as | will for the firstsegeant . ” He said, “1 1|
me if you want to do it. I f you’ || ree
stripes on the table, and he said, “Th
days and pick them up.” So.

Andwhatwashe captain’s name, again?

Bowman T. Barr.

Bowman T. Bairr.

Yep. DoubleR—B-a-r-r.

But you didn’t take him up on that.

No, | already had a job. In fact, all the guys in the platoon were betting like
crazy ¢ebadati $td They knew | woul d. But
it. | liked the service. | really did. | got along good in the Army. And | had,

you know, rank, and | knew a bunch of guys in the Signal Corps then, like

Captain Barr. And | had had an eagyprobably.

You'd have an easy go until twelve, fi
Yeah, here’s what bothered me. |l coul d
service and hanging around some mil it a
lonelyplace really. And | just couldn’t do
job waiting for me, and | had to go out and take it. You only had so much

time. Here’ s another thing, too. The u

hold that job open. You had to takeufi after so much time out of the service.
But that was the only reason. | would never have liked to have been in the

service. Not that you couldn’t maybe g
somewhere like that that would be interesting. But | think the iflbaing in
garrison don’t appeal to me for some r

Okay. We’'ve spent quite a bit of time
give you some time to talk about getting back into connection with some of

your military buddies afterwds in either reunions or VF\sthings like that.

And kind of finish off with your trip in 1993.

Okay. Well you know, here’s what the V
War veterans. They woke us up. It was kind of like Japan attacking America.

They woke up a sleeping giant. Anyway, after the Vietnam veterans got their
monument in Washington, D.C., on the mall, | think most of the Korean

96



Norbert Bentele Interview # VRK-A-L-2011035.01

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentele:

DePue:

Bentek:

DePue:

Bentele:

veterans said, “Wel |, what the goddamn
tougher war. | mean, maybe not quite aglddaybe not quite as many killed.
But in the time that we were over ther

was. Korea was the bloodiest war the American Army has ever fought. Even

during the Civil War, there was more people killed in both sidesshorter

amount of time in Korea than any other war. There was constant combat in

Korea. And | think what most of the Korean veterans, when they seen the
Viethammonument , they said, “What the he
goi ng her eboythatSomundédihe KooehndWar Veterans

Association was a tanker sergeant, a World War Il veteran, and a Korean War
veteran. His granddaughter was going to go and write a thesis for her

grandfather’”s war. Well, whdémwashe went
about this big a paragraph in the history books about the Korean War. It made

him so mad, he said, “By God, |l > m goin
aboutthirtyf i ve of his buddies and said, * We

t o cor rAencdt tthhaits.s” how t he Korean War V
started. And then it spread like wildfire across the nation, particularly because
we wanted to build a memorial in Washington, D.C.

Had you been involved in the VFW or AMVETS or anything likat®

Yeah, | belong to both of them. In fact, | joined the VFW off of Ginza Street
in Tokyo.

Oh.
Yeah. (laughs) | never did make a meeting.

Well, you were too busy while you were on Ginza Street (laughter) to do that.

Yeah, | know. But anyway, that’s how I
in the first two thousand that joined. And | heard about it because we were

buil ding a Korean War memori al here in
involved inraisingmoneyah bui |l ding this one here a

You know what year that would have been?

Eighty-five | think was when we started the process of getting it put in. Then

it was dedicated, Il think, volwed’' 86 or r
And then there was a couple of guys wh
national organization just starting up. And there was only about two or three
thousand members at that time when | joined. But they were very intense and

very active and vgr you know, wanting to get with the program. We had a

lot of Medal of Honor recipients-Scooter Burke and General Stilwell and

General Davis. And you know, that Medal of Honor winner that was in

Vietnam—oh, Colonel—he wrote books. He left the country andnito
Australia. He’ s dead now. But anyway,
high-powered people that was involved in that and raised the money and
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everything else. | got involved with that and went to a reunion and joined up,

and got involved in kilding the national memorial and raising money. We

built this one, and then | helped build the one over in Springfield. And so that

got it going. That’s when | was actual
in Springfield.

Do you remember whategr that was completed?

Ninety-three, was when we dedicated it. But that got everybody involved, and
that’s how | got involved in the Korea
two terms as the state president, when we built the memorial, andwghen

had the fiftieth anniversary in Springfield. | was the state president then and

planned that out. And it actually really intrigued me. | kind of hate to see it

waning now because all of us guys are getting close to eighty years old now,
oralreadyaren t heir eighti es. It s very diff
that up, you know, with the health issues there and everything.

| know you went to Korea in 1993. How did that trip happen, and what was
that experience like?

Well, Korea is tle only country that we have ever fought for that actually

repaid their soldiers by inviting them over to their country, paying for all their
expenses while you were there and payi
were in combat in the combat yeanddorea, you could take yourself and one

other persor-your wife usually, or you could take agrandkid nd you’ d

pay your airfare, and they would pay all your stay over there and tour you all

over the country and have banquets. You got to meet the SowghrKor

president. They’d al ways give you a me
gifts and everything else. And really, really treated you wonderful. Now |

could go back for a second trip i f 1 w
itwas reallyawondérul trip. That’'s when | was a

through theKorea Timesewspaper with Little Joe and got him to come over
to Korea and have a reunion. And they run a big article iKtinea Times
newspaper about me (laughs) finding this housebdyhad a reunion over
there.

Well, the obvious question is how did you find Korea different from when you
were there before?

Amazing. It was really amazing. Now this is another story in itself. Before |

got this trip over to Korealmean,lhadn’”t signed up for ar
was a pretty good expenditure. But | had actually ended up winning a contest

in a promotion here in Quincy about going anywhere in the world. This travel
agency—it was their contest-gave five thousand dollars fonyvhere in the

world | wanted to go. | won it. It was
pretty good at. Anyway, then | said, *
trip.” Because | had already bought my
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downtown in Seoufor the hotel. And | was going to try and get on the trip

over in Korea. Solgotaholdefwe cal |l ed her “Lieutenan
a Korean Waera nurse. Her husband was an air force combat pilot and got

killed within the first few days in Korea. Sheasthe one that was running our

trip. So | called her wup. | knew her r
coming up.” She said, “Boy, | don’t Kkn
ful-up right now, but Il Int®$goldl SoHér sa
deal . |l " ve got this trip. Il want to go
be able to go with the guys on their tours, you know? And partake in part of

that. Just shoehorn me in on thdt.” We

end up in the Seoul Royal hotel downtown, which was a very nice hotel. Well,
the other veterans were out at the Ambassador Sofitel, right down in the
southern part of Seoul. So | call out there, and | dietiéh of Lieutenant

Honey. She sat®, 1T9Wbai &, yoWe’ re downt c
said, “Well, cancel out there and get
got a room out here.” So we cancell ed

out to the Sofitel-a very nice hotel.
DePue: Sofa?

Bentek: Sofitel. They re al/|l over the worl d. R
room. So we go out there. and we take care of this tour. The tour over there is
a week long. Do all of this stuffthe banquets and everything else. Well, we
still gsatay atthe 8ep@ Rdyal downtown. So me and my wife stay
in Seoul. By that time, | had met this MRarkthat had done the advertising
for Little Joe. He worked for thikorea Timesiewspaper. Really a nice
gentleman. Beautiful cards he used to send regpds$sed away here seven
years ago. And Pakd wdnttdgo lpdo IrjeivValley. | wanr .

togouptotQuanDyRwher e |1 was stationed. Can vy
knew a cab company, and he said, “Yeah
said okay. And Little Joe was supposed
been up there There’s only been one s
goes up there. 't s all North Korea, a
You know, thpreheraobbtng few civilian
that' s all it was too. And very rough
anyway, the morning comes, and we was going to get an early start. We

packed a lunch because Narks ai d, “ No wnhotgabthefodd. bet t e

Make sure you get a lunch with you. Buy food here and take it with you so
you won’'t have any problem. You’'re goi
country.”

So anyway, the cab shows up with the driver. | paid that driver a hundred and
twenty thousand won. | mean, | had to paythedrver don’ t know whe
exchange rate was then, but pretty good mer@yundred bucks or so. And

anyway, Little Joe didn’t show up. Wai
So | said, “ Golwodynwi,tH meetdhatomean i n
Mr.Parki nt o goi ng. He didn’”t want to go,
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DePue:

Bentele:

with me so |11 know to tell these peo
el se.” There was a wat etmafcaneldownqut abov e
of the mountains. A fifteen, twenty foot waterfall and this pool. | knew that

geol ogical feature was there because |
Anyway, so | get MrParkto go with us.

Now we drive an altay trip. We getup her e, and it’ s a |
village right where my tent and the Fourth Signal was. Was about three or
four houses, just a little cluster of houses, setting right there alongside this

ravi ne. Now there’s a whole valley now
undewater. They built a new damn and flooded that whole valley. Where our
bunker was | was telling you about? Th
had no interest in going over on the other side. | stayed on the south side.

Man, | had MrParkaskthelag , “1 s t here a waterfal/l

yes. So | knew | had exactly the right place. | got pictures of that waterfall.

Went up there and sure enough, there it was. The South Korean army had a

nice teahouse built out over the edge of it wherg thauld go up and have

their tea and watch the water. Very be
a bit in fortysome years. And so we had all day up there.

We ate our lunch at the store. We brought our lunch in, ané ik
bought hisand the lag at the store picked us out a very nice area to eat in. |
asked her, “How many-—$8oB5diepntsdhave?beé
“ T w-eg/ou and one other man. And then one Korean’manT hat was Lit
Joe. That was all that ever had been up there diriatBecause the South
Korean army was the only thing that was there, plus a few civilians, because
you'  re above the 38th parallel. There
the Punchbowl. So the South Korean army had fortifications all over place.

Anyway, we get Dback to Seoul and he
Little Joe wrote me a not e. He said, *“
sick.” | said the way he acted at that

hi m. (1 aught ethe)lastAheagrdirang Littletlde.d talled him

once before. Yeah. That was quite a trip. | always wanted to see Honolulu. So
coming back we flew into Hawaii, and spent a week in Hawaii. And then
checked in. | liked that. That was a good trip.

Take t back to Seoul, though. Difference between Seoul in 1953 and 19937

Very, very—in fact, Seoul was fought over three times. It was pretty well
blowed apart. | mean, you know, buildings were still standing. The only
building that a soldier would regnize is the old rail terminal which is still
there, still used. Been rebuilt and everything else. Set down in downtown

Seoul . 1t’s still there. That buil ding
is a modern metropolis with higise skyscraps. Underneath the city streets
there’”s all kinds of shopping mall s th
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DePue: Now, were the Korean people, when you were there

Bentele: Very congenial.

DePue: |l think you would say the ones in "50

Bentek: Oh, they bowed to you.

DePue: But they were in desperate straits at that time.

Bentele: Oh, yeah. But we were treated very kindly.

DePue: When you went back?

Bentele: Well, in fact, me and my wife walked everywhere when we were there that
extraweek. W wal ked al | over. And you know,

temple. You ever been out to that old temple?
DePue: Unh-uh.

Bentele: On the north side? We spent a day out there touring through that old temple. |
didn't even know t hllahe diffecerst shoppiegrareas And s
and touring through that temple. Then we walked back to downtown just to,
you know, take the walk. Everybody treated us very, very well. Very well.

Looked out after as-everything.

DePue: Did it surprise you that it wenhat way?

Bentele: Not really. | expected it, really. The young people in particular were very
generous. | mean, you know, there wasone of that animosity that you see
that’'s publicized so much. That’'s a Ve

DePue: Well, this is kind of araside to what we have been talking about, but World
War Il in the American memory and American imagination has been so
domi nant. And then you get to the Kore
forgotten war—the Korean War. You ever have any resentment thng?

Bentele: Not resentment, but | can explain why it is. There were so many World War 1|
veterans called back in. All the generals were World War Il generals, even the
high-profile generals like MacArthur ardoh, the one thatthe Air Borne

guy.
DePue: Ridgeway?
Bentele: Ridgeway. Theywere allhigpr of i | e. The only gener al

there that was higher was-heRvasdead.n. The
But there was so much of it that | think people kind of looked at it as just an
extensiorof World War Il. And then, of course, Truman in his political sense
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really done us a disfavor when he wanted to keep it contained and called it a
police action. |l think that really cha
going to be another skirmisWell, that skirmish changed like hell when the

Chinese entered the war. then it come affatlged battlefield war. The

American public had a hard time grasping that. And again, it was not
publicized. They didn’t shigowvcampse t hi ng
You know, we knew these prison camps where they kept our soldiers which

are supposed to be protected by the Geneva Convention were worse camps

t han Dachau was. The only thing they d
They probably done sonoé that. But they were worse than the worst camps

in Germany, not counting the prisoner of war camps. The prisoner of war

camps that the Germans had for us were country clubs compared to what they

done over in Korea, and that has never been rectifiecsel$ame guys that

done that torture to our soldiers are still alive and walking around heroes over

there in North Korea. Never been punished for their actions, you know?

But | think what happened was that that was underplayed to a great
extent. You can lok in these magazines, and you can see the first part of the
war up until about 1951. They had quite a bit of coverage, but it was negative
coverage. You know, they were talking about the brainwashing and showing

the troops being marched through the citesWe | | , t hat’' s a pl o
But they did not force the issue of sa
to report what they seen in those pris

publicized that to the United States because the administration dichnbt
the American public to get so agitated that they would want to gblast
and maybe cause a third world war with Russia.

Before we started today, you showed me one okifteenagazines that you
had saved. And this is thédfe magazine thareported the end of the wathe
signing of the armistice. And | wonder if you can talk about that real quick.

Yeah, this was real interesting because, like | told you before, we all grew up
with theLife magazine in our hands with World WarAnd when | come

back, |1 said, ®“You know wthikem&azinélm goi n
can lay my hands on during the course of this war and see how it was
reported, particularly in this area wh

that had anuseum (laughs) dfife magazines, and | bought a bunch of them.

This right here is August the 3rd, a week after the ceasefire was signed. It

shows the picture of Eisenhower and some of the chief of staff and his staff

back here. A very small crowd. Andetty * ve got a | ittle cer
here. And it says, “No whistl es, no c¢h
that says that on there. | took it to Washington, D.C. when we had our

dedication to our national memorial. | had a big banner made up &itbrih

there and hung it up in our hospitality room. And a lot of guys signed that.

And a lot of guys had never seen that.

Well, it’'s-apagyeeaehnial bat hat they’  ve g
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DePue:
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Yeah, a very small article.
Thent here’ s a few pages of pictures.

Yeah, of the queen’s cor onrdndochinaas And w
they called it then. The main thrust of thé magazine was not the end of the

war in Korea. It was the French and what we were doingdtmnam at that

time. And talking about that, | knew in Koradot of our supplies were being

flown to the French and dropped over there to supply the French army in

Indochina.

Well , about the time you Il eft in "54 w

Yeahh And that’s when the Air Force was f
showed pictures of them dropping the stuff right here. | always figured that a

lot of us guys over in Korea at that time, particularly guys that had time to go,

would just be shipped ev to Indochina. And probably at that time in history,

i f Ei senhower had just | ooked a Iittle
field army that we have in the Far Eas
sent them to South Korea

You mean Vietnam?

I mean South Vietnam. I don’t t hi nk th
don’t think it woul d have.

|l " m going to get back to Vietnam here
think in retrospect what the United States was attelgpt de—what you did
as an American soldierwas worth it in Korea?

Oh, yeah. Now you | ook at the South Ko
They’”ve got a wonder f ul country. I n f a
shopping, gotoKorea. Ald t hi nk i t’'s one of our be:
don’t realize that the Koreans wer
Vietnam alongside of wus, and they’
So they’re our st aumoeehsothah the Japanesei n
They' ' re the only anchor we have 1in
coming on board here, we’'re going t

What did you think about the Vietham War? One, about whether or not we
wereright to be there. And two, the way the public reacted to all of that.

Wel |l again, it’s just | ike this war in
clearcut call as to why we was in there. There was a lot of conjecture about

whether this was ayt-up war. And you know, LBJ and the Gulf of Tonkin

proved out that it really wasn’'t true.
think people had a sour taste in their mouth when it started going wrong on

them. And again, fighting a land war on the coaftt of Asia is not the thing
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to do. | think they were politicized before they ever got in the war. And | think
they should have quit that war way before they did.

What did you think about all the protests going on in the United States?

Well, | always said if there was ever going to be anarchy, they missed their
chance because it was back during that era when we had serious protests
going on here. With the war going on over there and they way it was going
and people to support the protestbere in this country, | think we were close
to anarchy, you know, and it never happened. That was no fun. | think it was
terrible.

Just a couple of more questions to kin
at it for over three hours now, Norbert

Jeepers!
Yeah, well it’s been fun. I't goes f ast
who’ s got the interesting stories that

war, but you saw enough combat, and you saw enough serious things going
on. Doyou think that whole experience changed you?

Well, undoubtedly. | think it changes everybody. | think, you know, you see

things that you know went on, and | think that changes you. Again, we were

so inoculated to World War Il stories and what wemthere and everything

el se that the military really wasn’t t
people in a Third World country had to live and everything else. I think that

makes you realize how much better off you are. And | think it changes

everybody.

Are you a better person because you had that experience?
Well, maybe. (laughs)

If you were to offer some advice to people who are listening to this interview
down the road, what advice would you offer?

Wel | , olned tshaiyng: |l wouldn’t hesitate t
|l ot of people have doubts about whethe
think wartime service is a high calling if the military is run right, and | hope to
hell that they are. | mean, setimes | look at the way that these social mores
are corrupting the military. That' s
better than the Army. And |’ m not t
anything else. But | will say thisjust knowing the rigorsf combat and the
training and everything else, there is no way that they could expect a woman
to do the same thing. Young men havedhpritdecorpst ' m not sayi ng
young women don’t either. But it’'s a d

t h
al k
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wonder, beng as how | was an old cadre sergeant hooy in the world those
guys ever get those guys trained in any degree.

Well, we’re just about done here.

But | think the guys that went in the serviead | notice in most of the

veteransgroups t hey’  re tal king about the ser
the veterans groups. |l " ve talked to so
service. And | think they didn’t apply
in other words. Just what | wasysag before—I always wanted my men to

|l ive where they re at, accept the serv
until they get out. And | think they’r

service—t he ones that did not heirbokne. They up.
weren’t proud of the uniform they were
that was their main problem. And | see
almostbetyows-I| * v e nev e +butldd gon thahalnpst D0l percent
of the veerans groups are made up of the first three graders or officers. |
really do. |l don’t think you’ll have t

Well, officers and nortommissioned officers.

Yeah.

Are you proud of your service, then?

Yes | am.

How would you like to finish up our conversation today?

Well first of all, thank you for taking your time. And | hope this is something

that will be useful to somebody down the road. | hope | was able to describe
theexpee nces wel | enough. A |l ot of the th
like my old buddyGene Putmaand his pictures. I tried to convey what it was

like to be in the service and some of the experiences you have. | stayed away

from the combat partandéh st uf f | i ke that: everythi
was another part of the service that very seldom gets talked about. Like the

trip over, the trip back, and the service troops that done a hell of a job. For

every one man on thmbéronher gos’ Niengot
him. The tip of that spear i s only one
back that guy wup in all the different
job.

We | | I think, Nor bert, wsantervigwoisu’ ve bee
how challenging that job was and how important those jobs were as well.

Absol utel y. I al ways tell the guys t ha
“You know what? If it hadn’t been for
shod i ng at each other.” Which is true
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Signal Corps is involved in iIs the mai
be able to form any kind of an attack or set any kind of a barrage or get
supplies i f i1al waemps bhecavwdhe Shgwn' re
that message and get all those things done. Now they do it by computer. But it

still takes a guy to do it.

DePue: |l think that’s probably a great way to
Bentele: Yeah.
DePue: Thank you verynu ¢ h , Norbert. It s been wonder

Bentele: All right.

(end of interview)
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